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LISTING INFORMATION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(Stock Code: 01219)

R pIE Y REGISTERED OFFICE
Clifton House Clifton House

75 Fort Street 75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350 PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman Grand Cayman
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Cayman Islands Cayman Islands
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Room 2001, 20/F, World Trade Centre, 280 Gloucester Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

ir.tenwow.com.hk

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Jianhua (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Juewei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam Hang Boris (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Yeung Yue Ming
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Longgen
Mzr. Liu Chang-Tzong
Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mzr. Lam Hang Boris

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Lam Hang Boris
Ms. Au Lai Hang

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Longgen
Mzr. Liu Chang-Tzong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Longgen (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Juewei
Mzr. Liu Chang-Tzong

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mzr. Lin Jianhua (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Longgen
Mzr. Liu Chang-Tzong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
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Appleby Trust (Cayman) Ltd.
Clifton House
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Cayman Islands

LEGAL ADVISOR

Paul Hastings

21-22/F, Bank of China Tower
1 Garden Road

Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Guotai Junan Capital Limited
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Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
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183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
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Financial Summary

HOEH CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

BET A=+ —HILEE

Year ended 31 December
A e = = e =
2013 2012 2011 2010
ANR¥EFIL  AREFTFT AREFTT ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000

A Revenue 4,724,888 4,252,081 3,790,323 3,785,853
SR B Cost of sales (3,988,435)  (3,708,888)  (3,328,699)  (3,439,350)
EH Gross profit 736,453 543,193 461,624 346,503
S EERAR Distribution costs (156,411) (121,635) (133,239) (96,236)
(iGEa Administrative expenses (140,300) (93,815) (79,948) (69,032)
HAtlg A — 348 Other income — net 23,139 9,550 10,016 26,628
HAth k18 Other losses (8,556) (2,817) (103) (14,438)
BB REA Operating profit 454,325 334,476 258,350 193,425
MHIA Finance income 8,871 7,655 6,274 6,272
A A Finance costs (91,334) (67,374) (48,017) (31,676)
R AR — Finance costs — net (82,463) (59,719) (41,743) (25,404)
JRE AR B ) i Share of profit of associates 565 1,057 93 (3)
JREAL — [ % 2 ) i A1) Share of profit of

a joint venture 30,459 25,613 19,826 15,612
W% Br 49 0 8 ) Profit before income tax 402,886 301,427 236,526 183,630
FT S BB 3% Income tax expense (105,501) (71,082) (62,610) (49,564)
A B YR Profit for the year 297,385 230,345 173,916 134,066
Hib2mikA Other comprehensive income

HEWRGES B ZHGEMIEE  Iems thar may be
subsequently reclassified

to profit or loss

— SN S — Currency translation
differences (11,927) (3,112) 3,077 (4,988)
FEEF S WA Total comprehensive income
for the year 285,458 227,233 176,993 129,078
A7 BE Y ) SR SR RS Total profit attributable to:
AL E RS DN Equity holders of the Company 286,304 220,758 157,242 121,997
FEPE e 2 Non-controlling interests 11,081 9,587 16,674 12,069

297,385 230,345 173,916 134,066

Annual Report 2013 4°
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Financial Summary
BRETAZ—HIEEE
Year ended 31 December
“EF-EE SF-F DR ZE-RE
2013 2012 2011 2010
ANREFE ARETFT ARETFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
EE VN 1) Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
AAFRERFA A Equity holders of the Company 274,377 217,646 160,319 117,009
Fe v b 45 Non-controlling interests 11,081 9,587 16,674 12,069
285,458 227,233 176,993 129,078
AR wRE R R N A S A Y Earnings per share for
IR AR profit attributable to
equity holders of the
Company
— AR A R AR — Basic and diluted
(LA RN R4 51 R ) earnings per share
(expressed in RMB
cents per share) 17 15 10 8
i @5\ Dividends 242,891 114,240 — -
B L £ CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Rt=H=+—H
As at 31 December
e e T =
2013 2012 2011 2010
ANRW¥FIE ARETT AREFTLT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
IE B AR Total non-current assets 1,024,842 963,873 922,447 771,852
B G A Total current assets 3,854,820 2,369,781 1,908,479 1,751,678
M Total assets 4,879,662 3,333,654 2,830,926 2,523,530
FEoish & A Total non-current liabilities 125,391 139,838 145,707 93,231
B A A Total current liabilities 2,347,229 2,269,830 2,026,244 1,937,678
=ty b Total liabilities 2,472,620 2,409,668 2,171,951 2,030,909
HE %3 40 %0 Total equity 2,407,042 923,986 658,975 492,621

Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”) of Tenwow
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), I would like to present the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2013 (the “Year”).

In 2013, the People’s Republic of China’s (‘PRC”) economy and overall retail
industry had slowed down and year-on-year (“YOY”) growth rate of gross
domestic product (‘GDP”) had slowed down to 7.7%, while total retail sales
revenue of grain, edible oil, food, beverages, cigarettes and liquor grew by
13.9%, reflecting that growth momentum of the country’s food and beverage
industry remained strong. The PRC government continues to improve people’ s
livelihood through continuous improvements to ordinary citizen’ s basic income
and provision of various subsidies. This will help to narrow the gap between
standards of living in urban and rural areas, alleviate the worries of ordinary
consumers and improve the living standards of general public. The Group
believes that more customers from rural areas will become its target segment in

the near future.

A consumer segment with stronger purchasing power is expected to emerge
in the country on the back of its ongoing urbanization and rising personal
income. At the same time, demand for packaged food products and beverages
is also increasing as a result of rise in living standard, change of consumption
perceptions, and more diversified consumer tastes. All these trends have led
to an excellent opportunity for the Company’s development. As the market
penetration of packaged food and beverage in mainland China has been
increasing, the industry is expected to continue its strong growth. Frost &
Sullivan has predicted that from 2013 to 2017, overall retail value of packaged
food and beverage in the PRC will grow at a compound annual growth rate
of 13.7%. In recent years, development trends in the beverage industry have
indicated that lifecycles of food and beverage items have been shortening and
that competition among food and beverage enterprises is intensifying. In order
to survive, industry players have to be innovative in launching and marketing
their products. As a result, sales and marketing costs are steadily rising as a
percentage of turnover. In addition, the consolidation of the country’s food and
beverage industry is expected to intensify in 2014 as there have been growing
trends of mergers and acquisitions of major domestic enterprises, cross-industry
investments by food companies and acquisition of domestic brands by domestic

and foreign investors.

Annual Report 2013 40
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Chairman’s Statement

A M B RES T WA BT > BEMLKE
BE HOMELRKRES YgERAs
DI R TH## Z ek /oK DLREE &
i SETS I R BRI S AR (E o A AR
WMAEMEE T AEE T -ZFEEHEN
F11.1% > 2B ARM47249H 80 - He >
LA i G T T A ORLT KR IR B 8 B 3%
BILABEE  WAZARE27.6H & T 1
R66.8% ° HA M 5 R F & (BRI KR
Rl QA8 1% ) s s AR 7100 1 BT > 34
1 24.39% o AR B 55 =7 b R i AR AL 2
SEH > AT OB SR 2 i B e AR -
LB PRI = A s AR RORHT 3
T~ — ARG T &L B
A T A% E A B e v e R o B
R W B R o A P R B R R Y
PO > [A)BRE ST AHT P RS & > 5 =
TR ORI A R 7.39% » BB AR
2,328.9 H BTG o RANBRAA T KM —F—=
FIA L BTG5 A RA R F4R
(T BT ) B AR A b B S O i 23 2% S
I R HEERE BT HE =
R = H LR AR R R ROROE A R
ANRWE3033 8 HE -F—=F1T_H
=t —HILEERREM S ANRE 175 -

“E - EZEERARBBERER AR AR
IR = F— = I £ BB BT EAR
Ll R EAL MR RERN - MEEER
B A ) B PRy L T 2% A B R A A SE 5 3%
JEBE TR E AR o

JEE % — AR s AL E TR R A A
Gke > BN PR ERE N LI > T
SRR T 85 3 - R T [ A A A O
(R SE e o BRI IRE > A 5 B 6 R Tk
BB W HEB R > LR IR TG 85 K
& E TR E MG - RS A A W
AR i AL 2 (R > A 2 AN B 42 7 E
R oy S A A AR TR > HE— 20 I
BERE S LU R W R OK > 2RI A0
BEF ST o SR G r B TELOR ) 5 £ ORHE
TEE T S o B T o

To cope with the intensifying competition, the Group adheres to its business
principles with dedication in research and development to improve its products,
and enrich its product portfolio to satisfy consumers’ varied demands. The
Group is also improving the operations for different product categories in order
to enhance its brand value. On the back of an effective management system, the
Group's business turnover in 2013 grew by 11.1% to RMB4,724.9 million.
In particular, the sales performance of the Company’s own brand non-alcoholic
beverages “Tenwow Tea” series was outstanding, with revenue growing by
66.8% to RMB427.6 million. Revenue from the sales of the Company’s own
brand food and snacks (including “Tenwow” and “Q Pig”) rose by 24.3%
to RMB710.0 million. Regarding the Company’s business of distributing
third-party brand food and beverages, alcoholic beverages remained the most
important source of revenue. The Central Government’s move to limit spending
on official receptions, vehicles and overseas trips triggered a structural change
to the country’s alcoholic beverage industry in November 2012. Accordingly,
the Group increased the proportion of direct sales in its alcoholic beverages
and shifted its focus from high-end products to the middle- and low-priced
ones. It also improved and expanded its sales channels, and introduced more
new third-party brand products into its distribution business. Revenue from
the distribution of third-party brand alcoholic beverages grew by 7.3% to
RMB2,328.9 million. Without taking into account the listing expenses
(the portion charged to income statement), as a result of the listing of the
Company'’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 17 September
2013 (the “Listing”), the profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended
31 December 2013 was RMB303.3 million on the back of rising turnover.
Earnings per share were RMB17 cents for the year ended 31 December 2013.

2013 was an important year for the Group. In 2013, the Company achieved
another milestone in its development as its shares was listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 17 September of 2013. The Listing of the Company’s

shares laid a solid foundation for the Group’s future development.

In 2014, the Company will capture opportunities for development in China’s
packaged food and beverage market and will strive to enlarge its market share
while reinforcing its leading position in the core markets. At the same time,
the Group will continue to improve current products, innovate and adjust
product portfolios opportunely in response to market trends and consumer
demand. While enriching the portfolio of its own brand products, the Group
will also continue to increase production capacity, expand distribution networks
and improve operation efficiency. Further improvements will be made to its
research and development capabilities to meet market demand. These moves
will comprehensively enhance the Group’s core competitiveness as the Group
aspires to become the PRC’s leading packaged food and beverage producer and

distributor.

0! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
ABEBRERERLT
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Chairman’s Statement

DIVIDEND

Having considered the Company’s performance in 2013, its surplus, financial
situation and capital expenditures, the Board will propose distributing a final
dividend of HK5.2 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2013
(equivalent to an annual dividend payout ratio of 30%) at the annual general
meeting (“AGM”) to be held on 21 May 2014.

APPRECIATION

The Group was able to achieve outstanding performance in 2013 due to the
support and hard work of all parties. On behalf of the Board, I would like to
extend my sincere gratitude to the clients, suppliers, business partners and
shareholders for their unwavering support. I would also like to thank all staff for
their tireless efforts and contributions over the past year. Listing on the Stock
Exchange has marked a new beginning in the Group's development. We will
continue to work for the Group’s consistent and long-term growth and for good

returns to our shareholders.

Lin Jianhua
Chairman
25 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

28 % RN L

BT — AR > SR A e AR
BTN E T > GDP IR A% 3
7.7% » SRR B~ SORMEE B R L
T3 R13.9% o AL HAMATE  FEIEER
i BT AR A RER IR 221 - oK
BR AR o P EIBUF B S A Y
o ORER TR RO - SRS
M MR NRAR IR > R P T A I TR
28 BRI RAAERKF - REEMGERA
A AT T 22 ARSI 2 AR A 4 Y B AT
TRERE o MBI TR — 25 I ) B 7
o R BRI O A SO A B g
TR TR o BEE SRR R T
8 7 A5 SR S A v o IRAE AR H 43 R
JER BB > AREFMENGIEESTL
()% 5 o A 3 KT A B e 0 22 4B Y i 3 £
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SHBHEHOKZ T RBEEREET B
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G IEANE T

B0 R A A B A L B R 5 B AR
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

In comparison to 2012, the PRC’s economy and overall retail industry had slowed
down in 2013. The PRC’s year on year (“YoY") growth rate of GDP had slowed
down to 7.7%, while retail sales of grain, oil, food, beverages, cigarettes and liquor
grew by 13.9%. As compared to other industries, the PRC'’s packaged food and
beverage industry still has enormous room for development, where the growing
levels of demand indicates a positive future for the industry. The PRC government
continues to improve people’s livelihood through continuous improvements to
ordinary citizen's basic income and provision of various subsidies, which helps
to narrow the gap between standards of living in urban and rural areas, alleviate
the worries of ordinary consumers and improves the living standards of general
public. The Group believes that more customers from rural areas will become its
target segment in the near fucture. As rapid progress in urbanization is spurring
growth of purchasing power, the Group expects a new attractive target consumer
group to be created as a result of the accelerating urbanisation trend together with
an enormous population base, and such target group will be more geographically
concentrated as urbanisation progresses. The Group believes that with its
dedicated efforts in expanding its distribution channels, the Group’s products will
soon be able to reach more customers. Improvements in standards of living and
changes in consumption perception have also raised the demand for packaged food
and beverages. Given that consumers’ tastes are getting diversified and concern
on food safety has increased nowadays, it is expected that these will present more
opportunities for the Group as it endeavors to provide customers with quality and
healthy food.

The PRC government will continue to raise domestic demand as the main
driving force to stimulate the economy, and highlight consumer spending
as the main factor in driving domestic demand. Measures such as increasing
citizen’s income and consumption power, improving consumption policies and
establishing consumption hot spots will effectively facilitate the strong growth
of fast moving consumer goods industry. According to Frost & Sullivan, it is
expected that from 2013 to 2017 (estimate), the PRC’s overall packaged food
and beverage industry will have a compound annual growth rate of 13.7%. The
Group will lay down the foundation for sustainable and rapid growth by taking
advantage of favorable circumstances through optimizing its product portfolio

and best-utilizing its sales network.

m! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The PRC government launched certain new policies in 2013 to limit the
expenditure on Three Public Consumptions which has pushed the alcoholic
beverage industry into a long period of structural change since November 2012.
However, the Group was still able to maintain a relatively high growth rate in
revenue from its third-party brand alcoholic beverage products by expanding

new sales channels and introducing new third-party brand products.

REVIEW OF 2013 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE

The Group’s revenue increased by 11.1% from RMB4,252.1 million in 2012 to
RMB4,724.9 million in 2013. The Group's revenue of own brand non-alcoholic
beverages and own brand food and snacks increased significantly by 66.8% and
24.3% to RMB427.6 million and RMB710.0 million, respectively. Third-
party brands of alcoholic beverages product recorded relatively high growth
rate despite a poor market environment, with growth of 7.3% to RMB2,328.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2013. Gross profit of the Group
increased by 35.6% from RMB543.2 million in 2012 to RMB736.5 million in
2013. Gross profit margin of the Group rose by 2.8% from 12.8% in 2012 to
15.6% in 2013.

Excluding the listing expenses (the portion charged to the Group’s income
statement) of RMB17 million (2012: RMB4.5 million), which is a non-
recurring expense, net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2013 increased by 34.6% from RMB225.3 million in
2012 to RMB303.3 million in 2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group produces and distributes a wide range of own brand products and
also distributes many well-known international and domestic third-party brands
of food and snacks, non-alcoholic beverages, alcoholic beverages, and several
other fast moving consumer goods in China. The Group's own brand products
and third-party brand products are mutually complementary, and such a wide

range of products is able to satisfy different consumer demands.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RE-F—Z4F AEBEZHBRAZE AR
47249 B0 BEEBMA11.1% > Kb
H A W E A 3 R 18.9% (% 4F [7] B &
13.9%) > 5% =7 S f A = 8.19 (K 4F
M A 11.5%) - WAMBEZBEREZRAAH
o NI T TR KL E S S B R R R E
BEG - WRED A G66.8% K 24.3% ° 5 =
7 it R g PR OB AR B A B R R
R IR - AR R 2 5 7.39% (K AR [R5
3.3%)

TRESNAERRBE “F—=4F+ A
= kA BE R S R T

The Group's total revenue for 2013 is RMB4,724.9 million, and had a YoY
increase of 11.1%, among which, own brand product’s revenue increased
by 18.9% in 2013 (2012: 13.9%), and third-party brand product’s revenue
increased by 8.1% in 2013 (2012: 11.5%). The growth in revenue was primarily
attributable to the Group’s own brand non-alcoholic beverage products and
own brand food and snacks products, with growth rates of 66.8% and 24.3%,
respectively. Third-party brand alcoholic beverage products continued to be the

Group's primary source of profits, with revenue growth of 7.3% (2012: 3.3%).

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue contribution by product

segments and main product categories for the years ended 31 December 2013

I E R, and 31 December 2012:
BEF Revenue
BE+H=+—HILEE
Year Ended 31 December
—EE—=kE TR AR
2013 2012
AR NANREFIr

RMB’ 000 % RMB’000 %
HA il L i Own brand products
ThAEE Food and snacks 709,978 15.0% 571,218 13.4%
FET R R Non-alcoholic beverages 427,562 9.0% 256,286 6.0%
RS okl Alcoholic beverages 238,217 5.0% 334,929 7.9%
HAtbo Others © 50,990 1.1% 37,496 0.9%

1,426,747 30.1% 1,199,929 28.2%
SE=J7 b WL i Third-party brand products
RS R Alcoholic beverages 2,328,926 49.3% 2,169,940 51.1%
&Sy Food and snacks 830,461 17.6% 775,941 18.2%
T RS AR Non-alcoholic beverages 57,427 1.2% 44,498 1.0%
Hity Others @ 81,327 1.8% 61,773 1.5%

3,298,141 69.9% 3,052,152 71.8%
st Total 4,724,888 100% 4,252,081 100%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Notes:
1) Primarily includes “Chuan Xiang” Chinese seasonings and packaging materials.
2) Primarily includes housecare products.

OWN BRAND PRODUCTS BUSINESS

The Group’s own brand products’ revenue increased by 18.9% from
RMB1,199.9 million in 2012 to RMB1,426.7 million in 2013. The increase
was primarily contributed by the Group's continuing focus on sales of its own
brand products, and the increase in revenue of the Group’s food and snacks as

well as non-alcoholic beverages.

®  Food and Snacks

The own brand food and snacks’ revenue increased by 24.3% from
RMB571.2 million in 2012 to RMB710.0 million in 2013 which was
mainly contributed by the introduction of the Tenwow sub-brands
“Tenwow Idea” and “Jing Chao Men”. Of these, “Tenwow Idea” products
brought new growth momentum to the food and snacks sector as the
marketing appeal is more on leisure side. As it is also less seasonal, the
Group is able to expand the price range effectively. At the same time,
in order to strengthen market penetration of its Chinese New Year gift
boxes, Hubei Wuhan Industrial Park and Fujian Putian Industrial Park
have begun production of Chinese New Year gift boxes to satisfy local

demand.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o IR OB ®  Non-alcoholic Beverages

B A i bR RS ORI = — The own brand non-alcoholic beverages’ revenue rose from RMB256.3
RN 256.3 T # TR N 66.8% £ million in 2012 to RMB427.6 million in 2013, representing an increase
F-ZFARK 4276 &G EEH of 66.8%. This was primarily due to the Group’s launch of new products
A A B T A LT E [ R BRI 5% | R B 4 such as “Charcoal Roasted Milk Tea” series, which has been very popular
FEfh— H R E BT - AL amongst consumers. The Group has not only enhanced its distribution
AEETE WY 0 [ TR AL 23 B A AR - ) network in well developed regions, but also expanded to other high
oAl B 1RV 1 s I 9K A - TR R R growth potential regions, while enhancing the Group’s marketing and
PN DT Sl advertising efforts simultaneously.

ey : ks
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Alcoholic Beverages

The own brand alcoholic beverage products include “%) ¥ F§ ft: 7, “¥&
e, “H [ &8 T and “% 34 E” branded wine sales, and rice wine
brand sales of “Guhe” (“& #1”) and “Tun Zailai” (‘B FE7”). Alcoholic
beverages’ revenue of the Group dropped from RMB334.9 million in
2012 to RMB238.2 million in 2013, representing a decrease of 28.9%.
This was primarily due to the decline in sales of its wines, particularly “%
ik = [ ", As the Group reduced marketing and promotional activities
(such as reduced promotional goods to its customers), gross profit margin
has increased. At the same time, one brand supplier was not able to
satisfy the Group’s demand and was not supportive which led to out-of-
stock situation and affected its sales. The Group’s own brand rice wines,

however, recorded a growth of 16.1% in 2013.

Sy agnlal %lln’ | {F

TEFEER ESEIEAR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

®  Others

Other own brand products includes “Chuan Xiang” brand sauces,
seasonings, and packaging materials. The revenue of the “Others”
category rose from RMB37.5 million in 2012 to RMB51.0 million in
2013, representing an increase of 36.0%. This was primarily due to sales

of new packaging materials to new customers.

1| PRERS

China Time-honored Brand

EiNERSAS SEENENEARGAETSE 5~
EANAIEE WAAS ADEN. RIRE. GRS
ARNS. "EFEMEFLEANEARNEAEN. GRE
AYAERALAEANEAnOERER

THIRD-PARTY BRAND PRODUCTS BUSINESS

The Group's third-party brand products’ revenue increased by 8.1% from
RMB3,052.2 million in 2012 to RMB3,298.1 million in 2013. This was

primarily due to increase of sales in all categories of third-party brand products.
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Alcoholic Beverages

Third-party brand alcoholic beverages products mainly include
Martell, Hennessy, Remy Martin and Maotai. Third-party brand
alcoholic beverages’ revenue rose from RMB2,169.9 million in 2012 to
RMB2,328.9 million in 2013, representing an increase of 7.3%. This was
primarily due to increase of sales volume in the Group'’s newly established

direct sales channels and new third-party brand such as Maotai.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Food and Snacks

Third-party brand food and snacks mainly include Nestle, Dove, Wrigley,
Glico, Kraft and Heinz. Third-party brand food and snacks’ revenue
rose from RMB775.9 million in 2012 to RMB830.5 million in 2013,
representing an increase of 7.0%. This was primarily due to expansion of
sales channels and widened product range offered by Nestle. Furthermore,

sales of Dove and Wrigley products also uplifted.

Non-alcoholic Beverages

The third-party brand non-alcoholic beverages include, amongst others,
Nescafe, Red Bull energy drinks and Wang Laoji herbal teas. Third-party
brand non-alcoholic beverages’ revenue rose from RMB44.5 million in
2012 to RMB57.4 million in 2013, representing an increase of 29.1%.
This was primarily due to the Group optimization of portfolio, expansion

of sales channels and more new third-party brands.

Others

Other third-party brand category includes Unilever household care
products and Mars pet food. Others category’s revenue rose from
RMB61.8 million in 2012 to RMB81.3 million in 2013, representing
an increase of 31.7%. This was primarily due to sales increase of Unilever
household care products, while the Group got this brand during the year

of 2012 which took time to tap into its own sales channels.
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TREII AL REE - F-=F K The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue contribution by retail
T—— M+ A=t —HIEERTE channels for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012:
REBI A ER -
BEF A=+ HILERE
Year ended 31 December
—E D CTE A
2013 2012
AR T ANRBT T

RMB’ 000 % RMB’000 %
HHEE Direct channels
Rk B2 o On premise channels” 560,321 11.9% 348,621 8.2%
BARE Modern retail channels® 950,881 20.1% 737,459 17.3%
TEEE Small business channels®” 624,084 13.2% 430,734 10.1%
HAhBE @ Others channels®” 89,973 1.9% 43,195 1.1%
NG Sub-total 2,225,259 47.1% 1,560,009 36.7%
Vo] Distributors
I © Nanpu® 1,393,631 29.5% 1,336,306 31.4%
5= Third-party distributors 1,105,998 23.4% 1,355,766 31.9%
/et Sub-total 2,499,629 52.9% 2,692,072 63.3%
st Total 4,724,888 100% 4,252,081 100.0%
Bt &E Notes:
(1) 45 5 AT 4 7 b 4Rk B ) A A R (1) Includes chain restaurants, hotels, and leisure and entertainment locations that

T R ] B e i provide the Group's products in cafeterias.

2) LR EGH K Y ~ B T R AE R - (2) Includes large chain markets, chain supermarkets and convenience stores.
3) GO REFEEE o (3) Includes wholesale centers and various retail stores.
(4) TE T E (4) Primarily group purchase.
(5) MR CEE) AR R (TR ) - ) Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Led. (B £ i (£ H FRAH) (“Nanpu”)

Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

COSTS OF SALES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s costs of sales increased by 7.5% from
RMB3,708.9 million in 2012 to RMB3,988.4 million in 2013. The Group's
own brand products’ costs of sales were RMB1,027.6 million, representing
a YoY increase of 11.0% from RMB926 million in the previous year. Cost
of sales primarily includes cost of raw material (including cost of packaging
materials), cost of outsourced products, depreciation and amortization fees,
direct labor costs, utility expenses, outsourcing fees and other expenses. Price of
certain major raw materials such as pistachios, almond kernels and melon seeds
increased in 2013. To ensure quality, stable price and supply of raw material,
the Group has maintained long-term cooperation relationship with certain
suppliers. Third-party brand products costs of sales were RMB2,960.8 million,
representing a YoY increase of 6.4% from RMB2,782.8 million in previous

year.

—
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GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s gross profit increased by
35.6% from RMB543 million in 2012 to RMB736 million in 2013. This was
primarily due to the Group’s dedication to increase sales of own brand products
which generates higher profit margins, and improve gross profit margin of own

brand and third-party brands products.

The table below sets forth the Group’s gross profit and profits margin by
product segments and main product categories for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 31 December 2012:

BET A= —HIREE
Year ended 31 December

=az—=l TR
2013 2012
EF EEViES EF BFI%
Gross Profit Gross Profit
profit margin profit margin
A REFL ARBF
RMB’000 RMB’000
EA i L Own brand products

&Sy Food and snacks 226,802 31.9% 159,997 28.0%
T RS R Non-alcoholic beverages 105,497 24.7% 53,522 20.9%
T RS R Alcoholic beverages 55,350 23.2% 51,794 15.5%
HoAth Others 11,482 22.5% 8,579 22.9%
399,131 28.0% 273,892 22.8%

SE=J7 b WL Third-party brand products
TR CRE Alcoholic beverages 277,265 11.9% 212,001 9.8%
Bk ER Food and snacks 50,558 6.1% 44,885 5.8%
TE RS R Non-alcoholic beverages 4,288 7.5% 5,249 11.8%
HoAts Others 5,211 6.4% 7,166 11.6%
337,322 10.2% 269,301 8.8%
MEt Total 736,453 15.6% 543,193 12.8%

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OWN BRAND PRODUCTS BUSINESS

The Group's own brand products’ gross profit margin rose from 22.8% in
2012 to 28.0% in 2013, which was due to gross profit margin growth in all
categories except for the “Others” category. Gross profit margin in the Others
category dropped from 22.9% in 2012 to 22.5% in 2013 as a result of increase
in sales of packaging material which had relatively low gross profit margin. The
gross profit margin of the Group’s non-alcoholic beverages rose from 20.9%
in 2012 to 24.7% in 2013. This was primarily due to increase in production
volume, leading to a dilution of fixed costs and decrease in average unit cost of
sales. Alcoholic beverages™ gross profit margin also rose from 15.5% in 2012 to
23.2% in 2013. This was primarily due to reduction in promotional activities
for alcoholic beverages products (such as reduced promotional goods to the
Group’s customers) in 2013. Food and snacks gross profit margin increased
from 28.0% in 2012 to 31.9% in 2013, mainly due to the reduction in costs of

certain products and establishment of new sales channels.

THIRD-PARTY BRAND PRODUCTS BUSINESS
Third-party brand products’ gross profit margin rose from 8.8% in 2012 to

10.2% in 2013. This was primarily due to a rise in gross profit margin in
alcoholic beverages and food and snacks. Alcoholic beverages’ gross profit
margin rose from 9.8% in 2012 to 11.9% in 2013, which was due to increase
in sales through new direct sales channels with higher gross profit margin and
optimization of product mix. Food and snacks’ gross profit margin rose from
5.8% in 2012 to 6.1% in 2013, which was mainly due to increase in sales of
individual products with higher profit margins. The growth in the gross profit
margin was offset by (i) non-alcoholic beverages’ gross profit margin dropped
from 11.8% in 2012 to 7.5% in 2013 due to the Group's on-going optimization
of product mix and refining of our inventory structure; (ii) the “Others”
category's gross profit margin dropped from 11.6% in 2012 to 6.4% in 2013
primarily due to an increase in sales of Unilever household care products which
offers relatively low profit margins as compared to the products in the “Others”

category.
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DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution costs primarily include wages and benefits, advertising and
promotion expenses as well as travel, transportation and entertainment expenses
relating to distribution activities. The Group’s distribution costs increased
by 28.6% from RMB121.6 million in 2012 to RMB156.4 million in 2013.
Distribution costs accounted for 3.3% of the Group's revenue (2012: 2.9%). The
increase in distribution costs was primarily due to rises in wages and benefits,

transportation, travel, advertising and promotion expenses.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

The Group's administrative expenditures increased by 49.5% from RMB93.8
million in 2012 to RMB140.3 million in 2013. Administrative expenditures
accounted for 3.0% of the Group’s revenue (2012: 2.2%). Increase in
administrative expenditures was primarily due to an increase in wages and
benefits as a result of growing number of employees and overall average wage,

and increase in expenses relating to the Listing.

FINANCIAL COSTS - NET

The Group’s financial costs primarily include bank loan interest and handling
charges. Total financial costs rose by 35.6% from RMB67.4 million in 2012 to
RMBI1.3 million in 2013. This was primarily due to an increase in the amount
of borrowings by RMB322.1 million to meet the working capital needs of the
Group.

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash and Borrowings

The Group's funds and capital required for operations are primarily sourced

from internal resources and loans provided by the Group’s principal banks.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had bank deposits and cash in the amount
of RMB1,195.8 million (2012: RMB286.6 million), representing a year-on-year
increase of 317.3%. Over 69.2% of the Group’s cash is primarily denominated
in RMB.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total borrowings in the amount of
RMB1,318.8 million (2012: RMB996.7 million), representing an increase of
RMB322.1 million as compared with the same period in the previous year.
Over 93.3% of these borrowings were for terms of less than 1 year. The Group's
borrowings are all denominated in RMB. Part of the Group's borrowings was
obtained at fixed interest rates and part of the Group’s borrowings was obtained

at variable interest rates.

The net borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2013 (total borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash) is RMB123.0 million
(2012: RMB710.1 million), representing a reduction of RMB587.1 million as
compared to the same period in the previous year. The Group’s gearing ratio
as at 31 December 2013 was 5% (2012: 43%). The Group has sufficient cash
and bank lines of credit that can meet future needs and for funding of major
investment plans. Management is also prepared to make careful arrangements
and decisions based on changes in domestic and international financial

environments.
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ey Lk USE OF PROCEEDS

AN AR = F—=4E L+t HEF R The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
BT A A T AR 2R R TR Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 17 September 2013 with net proceeds
AR A 1,714.2 F H T (R0 BR AL 8 1R from the global offering of approximately HK$1,714.2 million (after deducting
KA Y% c BREAMA-F =LA underwriting commissions and related expenses). According to the intended
EREN/NCIE Y eV I S DR usage as set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Wi A PIER RN BEF prospectus of the Company dated 5 September 2013 (the “Prospectus”), the

— =+ HA=+—HEeBHEEW T - amount utilized as at 31 December 2013 was as follows:
ATEH
i
AR
Net
HAlE  Proceeds (St AREH
HH Items Percentage  Available Utilised Unutilised
(EH#T) (GH#T) (FH#T)
(HK$ (HK$ (HK$
million) million) million)
8 70 B A R T Expansion of production capacity
L A E R at the existing facilities and
construction of new
production facilities 45% 771.4 49.9 721.5
B R B ) S A R Strengthening and expanding
R [ existing distribution network
and expanding into new regions 25% 428.6 23.0 405.6
BFEE - i B A Research and development,
WA ERmmEAR such as purchasing research
equipment and hiring qualified
research and development personnel 4% 68.6 4.0 64.6
B B B Marketing and promotion activities 10% 1714 23.9 147.5
BA G TR EME Refinance existing bank loans 6% 102.8 102.8 0
B E BHA— A& Working capital and other general
corporate purposes 10% 1714 1714 0
100% 1,714.2 375.0 1,339.2

AN T B 0T S S OE R A AR A A The Company has no intention to use the remaining proceeds contrary to the
J R TR Y F 3 o description as stated in the Prospectus.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

In 2013, the Group had capital expenditures and investments of RMB79.1
million (2012: RMB63.4 million). This primarily included the expenditures for
new production facilities in Fujian, Shanghai and Hubei and land purchased for
the production park in Sichuan, Chengdu. The Group's capital commitments

relating to land and equipment was RMB55.6 million as at 31 December 2013.

INVENTORY ANALYSIS

The Group's inventory primarily includes finished products, followed by raw

materials and packaging materials, as well as in-process products.

The following table sets forth the inventory turnover days for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012:

BRE+H=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E = R4
2013 2012
Inventory turnover days 62 K days 52 Kdays

1 85 L B A R o A A
R SR A DR T 2 S 5 A o A
A 10K T B 00 A T R
BCAP - TR A T R SO B0 f 5 DL R
ST LA O DLBE B S
T MUK TR AR B - R
JE 17 A 4 o 0T B 47 BOK T 3
B0 BB — S AR B H R A
fekkh E TR -

The primary reasons for an increase in turnover days are due to a higher demand
in non-alcoholic beverages. Therefore the Group needed to prepare sufficient
raw materials for productions and sufficient finished stocks for sales. Besides,
the Group also needed additional stocks to ensure supply of alcoholic beverages
products for new direct sales channels, resulting in a relatively high inventory
balance level at the end of 2013 as compared to 2012. As inventory turnover
days is calculated based on year-end average inventory levels, inventory turnover

days increased in 2013 due to increases in net inventory balance.
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TRADE RECEIVABLE

The Group’s trade receivable refers to the Group’s accounts receivable balance

from its customers.

The following table sets forth the Group’s trade receivable turnover days for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012:

BETZAZS—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

R DR
2013 2012
Trade receivable turnover days 107 K days 92 K days
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The primary reason for an increase in trade receivable turnover days is that
the 2014 Chinese New Year holiday was in January, which led to distributors
increasing their inventory of the Group’s products at the end of 2013. This
then led to an increase in balance of trade receivable of the Group as at 31
December 2013. Meanwhile, the economic situation in 2013, especially the
market conditions in the fourth quarter, had certain impacts on some of the
Group’s high-quality customers with strong payment histories and led to
delayed payment, resulted in increases in the Group's average trade receivable
and turnover days. Nevertheless, as at 10 March 2014, the Group had received
RMB1,069 million out of the trade receivable as of 31 December 2013.

TRADE PAYABLE

The Group's trade payable primarily includes payment due to suppliers of third-

party brand products, raw materials and outsourced products.

The following table sets forth the Group’s trade payable turnover days for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012:

BET-HA=Z+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

R R4
2013 2012
Trade payable turnover days 86K days 105 K days
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5y TR AN T R TS R DR 2 o The reduction in trade payable turnover days is primarily because the Group
7% B2 B E S R 16 /N 3 SR AL R 78 o 2 4R started paying a small portion of its raw materials suppliers on cash on-delivery,
B s A Ak 77 BT - 0 JF DARIR 77 X or prepaid for its raw materials, instead of taking delivery on credit in order to
MEAR A4S > DABE TR 1o o8 1 7 18 R B e it secure better pricing and stable supply of raw materials.

TE o

TR &R KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
TREIBEF =R F-CF TN The following table sets forth the Group’s key financial ratios for the years
S H R AR B Y R H R ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012:
BETZAZ—HIEE
Year ended 31 December
—ER=EE SR
2013 2012
TH = Gross profit margin 15.6% 12.8%
KRB F TR Operating profit margin 9.6% 7.9%
Ao R NEAG R Margin of profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company 6.1% 5.2%
T L% Current Ratio 1.64 1.04
R R Quick Ratio 1.33 0.77
EAARILE Gearing Ratio 5% 43%
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PROSPECTS

In 2014, the Group will catch the development opportunities in the packaged
food and beverage industry, strengthen its competitive advantages and focus on
the key initiatives discussed below in order to maintain the Group’s sustained

rapid growth.

Continued Emphasis on Product Upgrades

Consumers’ needs and demand for leisure, fashion, healthy and high quality
products are increasing as a result of continued urbanization of the PRC and
steady increase of the consumption level of citizens. To accommodate such ever
rising consumer market demand, the Group will follow through its development
strategy and continue to establish its foothold in medium to high-end food and
beverage products to attract younger consumer groups and urban white collar

workers through the provision of a more diversified product portfolio.

While the Group continues to improve on product quality of Tenwow, it also
plans to partner with European suppliers to introduce a new series of food
and snacks and beverage products for domestic sales. The Group’s own brand
product categories will continue to expand, and expect consumer confidence in
its own brand products will be increased through high-quality overseas recipes,
advanced production processes and new flavors. Looking to the future, the
Group will strengthen cooperations with renowned overseas suppliers to produce
high quality and safe food and snacks and beverage products that satisfy Chinese
consumers’ demand, as such promote the continual growth of the Group's own

brand product business.

Strengthened Development of Own Brand Products

The Group primarily produces and distributes high quality own brand products
under “Tenwow” brand. It also distributes well-known third-party brand
products. The Group will continue to increase the market share of its own brand
products in order to seize business development opportunities that has greater

growth potential, and as a result to improve the Group's profitability.

Non-alcoholic beverages’ overall performance was noteworthy for the year ended
31 December 2013. The Group launched its new “Charcoal Roasted Milk Tea”
product series in 2013, which was endorsed by celebrity Mr. Jacky Cheung and
promoted through events with the theme of “Flame-Fired Flavor” that spurred
its sustained and stable growth. “Fruit Flavor Tea” and “VitC VitE” have been
very popular amongst consumers and sales continued to rise. The Group will
continue to promote its star products and further reinforce the brand image of

“Tenwow” in the hearts and minds of its target consumer groups.
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Regarding food and snacks, the Group has noted that there is a huge demand
for mini packaged products. The “Tenwow Idea” line of snacks was launched
by the Group in 2013 and received an enthusiastic market response. The Group
plans to launch these products in more markets. At the same time, research and
development is underway to create more mini food packages based on existing
leisure food and snacks. More product varieties will be introduced to satisfy the

diversified demand of the Group’s consumers.

For alcoholic beverages, data from the previous year revealed that sales of
budget-end wine are much higher than high-end wine sales. Therefore, the
Group will optimize product mix and further focus on budget-end wine sales,
while reducing high-end wine inventories. In addition, the Company will
cooperate with famous and sales-leading wineries in Chile and Italy to launch “f&

f” and “FESE” brands respectively to enrich and optimize the Group's existing

brand portfolio.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In order to accommodate varied consumer demand, the Group plans to launch
more diversified product portfolios in the form of gift boxes. Gift boxes with
different price range will be offered as selections to consumers. This will help
promoting the Group's own brand products while generating sales volume
simultaneously. In addition, while optimizing product portfolios, the Group

will also invest more resources and better utilize online marketing channels.
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Optimization of Third-Party Brand Product Portfolios and
Leveraging Advantage of Existing Business Model

The Group will closely monitor changing trends in consumer markets and
continue to adjust and optimize product mix of third-party brands. It will
introduce additional high profit margin products to improve gross profit margin
and promote current third-party brand products to increase sales. The Group
will continue to utilize the same business model of producing and distributing
its own brand products and third-party brand products, as a result its cost
advantages will be more obvious. The Group will also integrate production and

distribution of its own brand products and third-party brand products to further

reduce operating costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Proactively Expanding Production Capacity and Improving Overall
Market Coverage

The Group has a total of 3 industrial parks and 3 factories currently in operation.
In order to increase production efficiency and volume, the Group will persist
in expanding production scale and optimize production equipments. After a
review of the past year, the Group has already initiated a plan for production
capacity expansion to increase overall production efficiency comprehensively.
In the fourth quarter of 2013, the Group began construction work in Chengdu
on an industrial park whereby the first phase (tea beverage production line,
warehousing and logistics) is expected to commence production in early 2015,
which will have important implications on the Group’s further expansion in
south-western China. At the same time, new Tetra Pak production line and
aseptic production line are also expected to commence production in mid 2014
and early 2015. As the tea beverage market is growing rapidly in the northern
part of China, the Group will actively consider the feasibility of establishing an

industrial park in this region.

-y -

: T . '
RN | Aok Alaly I IP.n-h

S ETE R

":‘.'nvf '.‘Iii:'ﬂ

b
- L] [ B8]

" X
k

F_ £ £

Annual Report 2013

@

2013 FEHSE



W B w43 A

Management Discussion and Analysis

i 2 UNUE X EE I ES
i $H B ) B 1

AT o B S A S T R
A BB - A SR B M IE — 25 3R 5 0
B LUK T 2 T BUE K 0 5 0
B UL BRI R 3 o ) 4
SEHA o AR AR K B 1L 5 BRI
7 S U BB A 1 = R R -
62521 S R R R o [ A 2 4
B 25 LA L O R R M
B SR 7 P [ 9 A K 4 R
A oAb o SR A% AR TR L
W31 o I B S S T 43 B 2 T S
LTI - 25 WK A B4R A T 4
AR

Further Expansion and Optimization of Distribution Networks

and Strengthen End Market Penetration

To seize the opportunities presented by increasing demand from end consumers
in the PRC for its products, the Group will strive for greater market share
through further expansion of distribution networks to widen market coverage.
Therefore, by leveraging its leading position in eastern and central China, the
Group will strive to expand and optimize its distribution networks, continue its
expansion from well developed regions to the third and fourth tier cities in order
to take advantage of the increasing consumer spending power there. At the same
time, the Group will continue to expand its distribution reach to other areas of
strategic importance, including northeast and southwest China where there is
huge growth potential. In addition, the Group will consider selectively seeking
attractive distributors who can complement its business for cooperation or as
targets for acquisition, so as to expand its distribution networks further and

strengthen network control.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Further Improvements to Research and Development Capacity

To meet the needs of the Group’s rapidly developing business and to achieve
long-lasting success, the Group will continue to focus on strengthening research
and development capabilities. The Group will devote more resources to new
research and development projects, purchasing necessary equipments and hiring

qualified research and development staff.

Looking back to 2013, the Group’s research and development team developed
a new “Charcoal Roasted Series” of beverage which was widely welcomed
by consumers. The Group will continue to strengthen its existing dedicated
research and product development team, and expand its product range while
improving product quality and production process efficiency. The Group’s
research team will closely monitor competing product types on the market.
Its sales and marketing teams as well as distributors will continue to offer the
Group direct client feedback to help innovate and improve its products in a way
that will satisfy the ever-changing consumer preferences. In view of the growing
demand by Chinese consumers for healthy beverages and lifestyles, the Group
plans to focus research efforts on healthier beverages, food and snacks with low
sugar or no sugar. In 2014, the Group will also launch “Charcoal Roasted Café
Mocha” and “Charcoal Roasted Café Latte”, and cup-milk tea products in order

to satisfy the various demand of consumers.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The majority of the Group'’s transactions are settled in RMB, which is not a free-
floating currency. The fluctuation of RMB during the year did not adversely
affect the Group’s performance. The Group will periodically review its foreign

currency risks.

As the Group is exposed to minimal exchange rate fluctuation risks, the Group
has not undertaken any hedging policy. However, the Group will closely
monitor and control its foreign currency risks and consider hedging where

appropriate.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, the Group was still in the process of
renewing certificates for certain land use rights with net book value amounting
to RMB1,466,000 and RMB1,348,000, respectively. The Group might incur
certain obligations in connection with such application of land use rights
certificates, and since the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability, no provision was made in the consolidated financial

statements.

ASSET PLEDGE

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had trade and bills receivables of RMB89.8
million (2012: nil), and buildings and land use rights with net book value of
RMB204 million and RMB19 million, respectively (2012: RMB227 million
and RMB20 million, respectively) which were pledged for borrowings.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND STAFF REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total of 2,751 employees in mainland
China and Hong Kong (31 December 2012: 2,331 employees). The Group's
employees are remunerated with reference to their position, performance,
experience and prevailing salary trends in the market. The Group provides
professional management training to employees, and offers incentives based on

employee performance and the Group's profits.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group provides employees in Hong Kong with retirement benefits through
its exempted occupational retirement schemes under the mandatory provident
fund or mandatory provident fund schemes, life insurance and medical
insurance; and provides employees in the PRC with basic social insurance and

housing fund contribution according to the requirements of the PRC laws.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the total employee benefit expenses
(including Directors’ remuneration) were RMB142.9 million (2012: RMB106.8

million).

Annual Report 2013 4@
20135 ERE



=T

Report of the Directors

KA A A S ERARZES G
it MARE =4+ A= t—HIE
L AR (R HLR -

FEEH

ARA R —FBEBRRAF - B> KA RIS
T B A 7 B A F KRB A F R EA
O3 E BT KR | R B A R TR
IRIY SR =7 b R FE dh - R B BLAR I
FEHORE ~ Brdh OF & JRIRS BORE LR H AR
AN, -

ANFRBER =B L AR
B AL

KATRE S A S L
T 41 0 2 MR BN BT e W
50

£
ARBE F— S S b LR
Z RSB G AT R 106 J 107 B <

JBe B
ERGEFRMNEE T =24+ =1+—
H kA B 00 A B 4 1 B 5 2 W il R
FNRE410) TR BIRAM S
108.72 F & J0 (Ml # A AR #8580 H &L »
MR B R RO AE A% i B — A A
AR (RN =) BT RGUASE R g Bt
%> HAE o

TR R AR R & R IR A AR > K
BEIR ZF—NENHILH (BRI —) R -
TP CFE-NELAZTH (E8H) %5
A7\ ) e 5 4 kY BROR -

B S S S Pk B R 30

The Board of Tenwow International Holdings Limited is pleased to present the
report of the Directors along with the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Currently, the Company,
through its subsidiaries, associated companies and joint venture company
primarily produces and distributes its “Tenwow” own brand products. It also
distributes well-known third-party branded products. Primary products include
alcoholic beverages, food and snacks, non-alcoholic beverages, and other fast

moving consumer goods.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 17 September 2013.

Segment analysis of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set

out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The overall performance of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 is

set out on pages 106 and 107 in the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board has proposed to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKS5.2 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB4.1 cents) per share in cash to
the Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2013, representing a total
payment of approximately HK$108.72 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB85.89 million). The final dividend is subject to approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to be held on Wednesday, 21 May 2014.

Upon Shareholders’ approval to be obtained at the AGM, the final dividend will
be payable on or around Monday, 9 June 2014 to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 30 May 2014.

Details of the dividend are set out in Note 30 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 19 May
2014 to Wednesday, 21 May 2014, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered, for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the 2014 AGM. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2014 AGM, all transfers of shares
of the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates and appropriate
transfer forms must be lodged for registration with the Company’ s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’ s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 16 May 2014.

In addition, in order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to
receive the proposed final dividend (if approved), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 29 May 2014 to Friday, 30 May 2014,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the proposed final dividend,
all transfers of shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17¢h Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p-m. on Wednesday, 28 May 2014.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movements of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, and
investment property for the year ended 31 December 2013 ate set out in Note 6

to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the past 4

financial years is set out on pages 5 and 6 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the year

are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during

the year are set out in Notes 16 to 18 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserves comprise the share premium, other
reserves and retained earnings. As at 31 December 2013, the Company had
distributable reserves of RMB1,918,077,000. Movements in the Company's

reserves during the year is set out in Notes 16 to 18 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

During the financial year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board was

made up of the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mzr. Lin Jianhua (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Juewei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam Hang Boris (Chief Financial Officer)
M:r. Yeung Yue Ming

Ms. Au Lai Hang

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Chen Shirley Shiyou

Independent Non-Executive Directors

(all appointed with effect from 17 September 2013)
Mr. Wang Longgen

Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong

Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a written annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company is satisfied that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent as defined under the

Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Lin Jianhua and Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren shall retire from their
offices as executive Director and independent non-executive Director at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 21 May 2014. In addition,
Mr. Wang Juewei, Mr. Lam Hang Boris, Mr. Yeung Yue Ming, Ms. Au Lai
Hang and Ms. Chen Shirley Shiyou who have been appointed as executive
Directors and non-executive Director, respectively by the Board shall retire from
the Board pursuant to Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association.
All of the above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of the Directors and senior management are set
out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 80 to 87

of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has entered into a service contract with the Group which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

At the general meeting, the shareholders authorised the Board to fix the
remuneration of the Directors. Directors” remuneration shall be determined
based on recommendations from the Remuneration Committee, while
also making reference to the complexity of the Director’s work, workload,
responsibilities, as well as Company remuneration policies. Details of the
Directors’ remnueration and the five highest-paid individuals of the Group are

set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO”)), which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which he was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

(i)  Interests in shares of the Company

R 0.10 8 C I
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BEA ST b
Approximate

£ [ kit Pt 9 H percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Number of shares held shareholding
MR TR ek R (WF3E)
Lin Jianhua Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 1,405,320,000(L) 67.77%
L—IA (L)-Long position
Fif3E - Note:

MR EE S A SR A IR A A 1009 o T A AR
24 PR A BB A AR F1,405,320,000 B 6 o X
UG o AR A R A S R A S R R R AT AR A
1,405,320,000 B A {5 B A HE 4 o

Mr. Lin Jianhua owns Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited as to 100%, which in turn owns 1,405,320,000
shares of the Company. Mr. Lin is therefore deemed to be interested in 1,405,320,000 shares of the
Company held by Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited.
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Lam Hang Boris
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Wang Juewei
2k

Yeung Yue Ming

L —lFE

=

Report of the Directors

(i) Interests in underlying shares of the Company

TR o0.10 8 E A B
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

i S ONE b ]

IR it 2 1L B R R

i i B e 1

Number of underlying

shares held pursuant to

Share Options granted

fEsHE under the Pre-IPO Share

Nature of interest Option Scheme
- 2N

Beneficial owner 1,666,667(L)
ok 2N

Beneficial owner 4,166,664(L)
. E:3 DN

Beneficial owner 1,666,667(L)
EifH A

Beneficial owner 1,666,667(L)

(L)-Long position

A 23 b
Approximate
percentage of

shareholding

0.08%

0.20%

0.08%

0.08%

Annual Report 2013 4@
20135 ERE



=T

Report of the Directors

Giid) A B T R £

(iii) Interests in associated corporations

AR E L/
RABEE NS E 2 #
Approximate
WAHEGNEAYAN percentage of
fEEH shareholding/
Number of investment amount
HELS HEREALTR fEtE securities interested in the associated
Name of Director Name of associated corporation Nature of interest or investment amount corporation
e EHEEARLA &k L:UN LRI (L)
Lin Jianhua Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 1 share (L) 100%
e HERERAEEARLA RS (HE) NEH 50,0007 (L)
Lin Jianhua Shanghai Tenwow Food Production Co., Ltd. Interest of spouse (Note) RMB50,000 (L) 5%
THE HERRERRHRAT EE 2N AR 130,000 (L)
Wang Juewei Shanghai Mornflake Food Co., Led. Beneficial owner RMB130,000 (L) 1%
THE Ligf LagHARAR 5T 2N AR H 875,000 7T(L)
Wang Juewei Shanghai Dingshang Packing Material Co., Led.  Beneficial owner RMB875,000 (L) 3.5%
L—IA (L)-Long position
Fff =t - Note:

AR E S A 0 I 0 e 25 i R R A A R
ANFIHEARES (A S8 A NRE 50,000 7T) » B IEE
B B wl A 2R o

B B BES > T A
oo 5 AT o] 28 35 5 A 2 W) 5 & AT BOA B Bir
o WA S ol e S AT BN B AR A R SOHAT
A T 05 0 (o 35 038 25 I 3 5 R 91 56 XV )
V9 A7 B 073 ~ R R T £ o T AR R
I BB WRI5E XV A 7 K s R SR M AR Y
) 98 R T R S R R 081 5 352 M
B A7 BB O > SO PR ATE v < A A 2
B AN ) RS BT RO AT T HE 25 B A

Ms. Yan Yuzhen, the spouse of Mr. Lin Jianhua, is interested in Shanghai Tenwow Food Production
Co., Ltd. as to an investment amount of RMB50,000, and Mr. Lin is therefore deemed to be

interested in the same.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, so far as was known to any
Ditector or chief executive of the Company, neither the Directors nor the chief
executive had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of SFO) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Name of substantial shareholder

R EARAF
Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited

China FNB Investment Holdings Limited®”
Carlyle Asia Growth Partners IV, L.P.V
CAGP 1V General Partner L.P."

CAGP IV, Led.©

TC Group Cayman Investment
Holdings Sub, L.P.

TC Group Cayman Investment
Holdings, L.P.?V

Carlyle Holdings IT L.P."Y
Carlyle Holdings II GP L.L.C."

The Carlyle Group L.P.)

-8

=

Report of the Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMAPNY

As at 31 December 2013, so far as was known to any Director or chief executive

of the Company, shareholders (other than the Director or chief executive of

the Company whose interest were disclosed above) who had interests or short

positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which shall be

disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO

or recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

(i)  Interest in the shares of the Company

e 25 1

Nature of interest

A A

Beneficial owner

E 5 2N

Beneficial owner

A 42 i T 11 e

Interest of controlled corporation
A 2 i L O 1

Interest of controlled corporation
TA S B R 2

Interest of controlled corporation
A 42 i T 11 i

Interest of controlled corporation

A 42 i T 11 i

Interest of controlled corporation

A 42 i T 1 i i
Interest of controlled corporation
A 2 i L O 1
Interest of controlled corporation
JA S B R A

Interest of controlled corporation

(L)-Long position

BRI 0.10 W T B
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

JRBEREA T 43 bo

Jir ks IR 4 i H Approximate

Number of

shares held

percentage

of shareholding

1,405,320,000(L) 67.77%
116,178,000(L) 5.60%
116,178,000(L) 5.60%
116,178,000(L) 5.60%
116,178,000(L) 5.60%
116,178,000(L) 5.60%
116,178,000(L) 5.60%
116,178,000(L) 5.60%
116,178,000(L) 5.60%
116,178,000(L) 5.60%
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WifeE - Note:

1. % % M i HiChina ENB Investment 1. These shares are held by China FNB Investment Holdings Limited. The Carlyle
Holdings Limited 55 A M 45 7 % J& #] Group L.P. is deemed to be interested in these shares under the SFO by virtue of its
F A& 1 > A The Carlyle Group L.P. % 100% interest in Carlyle Holdings I GP L.L.C., which in turn owns 100% interest
A Carlyle Holdings IT GP L.L.C. [f 2 & in Carlyle Holdings IT L.P., which in turn owns 100% interest in TC Group
i T B850 5 T 3% S I 1 e A M 4 > T Cayman Investment Holdings, L.P., which in turn owns 100% interest in TC
Carlyle Holdings IT GP LL.C. # £ Carlyle Group Cayman Investment Holdings Sub, L.P., which in turn owns 100% interest
Holdings II L.P. B2 TR 45 W Carlyle in CAGP IV, Ltd., which in turn owns 100% interest in CAGP IV General Partner
Holdings II LP.# % TC Group Cayman L.P., which in turn owns 100% interest in Carlyle Asia Growth Partners IV, L.P.,
Investment Holdings, L.P. 2 # ) #f 45 which in turn owns 90.83% interest in China FNB Investment Holdings Limited.

1M TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings,
LP.#E HTC Group Cayman Investment
Holdings Sub, L.P. ) 2 # # 4 » 1fiTC
Group Cayman Investment Holdings Sub,
LP. 4 A CAGP IV, Led. 9 22 7 1 1t >
i CAGP 1V, Ltd. # H GAGP IV General
Partner LP. 1) 4% ¥ # 4+ 1 GAGP IV
General Partner LP.#E A Carlyle Asia
Growth Partners IV, L.P. B2 LS o T
Catlyle Asia Growth Partners IV, LP.#EAH
China FNB Investment Holdings Limited ]
90.83% fii i ©

B b ScHgg g o > i F— =+ -H =1~ Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Company has not
Foo AR 2% w0 M0 R e AT AT N (B S e AR been notified by any person (other than the Director or chief executive
A AT BN B RO ) B AR 5 O of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
XV EB 5 2 Je 3 43 FiS A SCZR 1) A 5 ) 4 6 AR underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
TR S B B R 56 336 MRt kR A Rl A7 the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
5 T R AR A D PR A R R R 9 P R TR SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
B Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Y ERBERRERSLME  DIRECTORS/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
% INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

W SCT 4 A B 2 iy | — i T i Bt T i 3= Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
133 T BE R A AR A EOH R IR A A below and in Note 33 to the financial statements, no contracts of significance
O ) T 2 ] SR 2 ) 3 A AT S AT T A R (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) in relation to the Group’s
ARG T B O H R B 40 O 28 50 1 T L BB ek business to which the Company or its holding company or a subsidiary of
FR) > AR g e R R I the Company or its holding company was a party and in which a Director or
A B RHE A R =% — = AR I B4R AT A IR controlling shareholder of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
EAA B EREH) - or indirectly, subsisted at the end of 2013 or any time during the year.
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Mr. Lin Jianhua Nanpu
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Set out below are interests of the Group’s Directors in a business which
competes or is likely to compete with the Group'’s business for the purpose of
Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2013:

Nature of business Nature of interest

Hh B e i B Bk A3 B T #H

Packaged food and beverage Directorship
distributor in the PRC

As at 31 December 2013, Nanpu is owned by the Group as to 51% through
Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd.,
both of which are indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, and by
Shanghai Tangjiu (Group) Co. Ltd. as to 49%. Nanpu is accounted for as a joint
venture of the Company. Nanpu and its subsidiaries are not being considered
as subsidiaries of the Group from an operational, management and accounting

perspective.

Nanpu and its subsidiaries have been operating under separate and independent
management. The directorship of Mr. Lin Jianhua is for the purpose of
representing the Group’s interest on the board level of Nanpu. The board of
directors of Nanpu consists of seven directors, four of which (including the
chairman) were appointed by Shanghai Tangjiu (Group) Co. Ltd. and three
of which were appointed by Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. and Shanghai
Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd., collectively. At the shareholders level, decisions
in general require approval from holders of more than two-thirds of the equity
interests in Nanpu. The Group does not therefore control Nanpu both at the

board and shareholders level.
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Nanpu is a packaged food and beverage distributor in China and there
is potentially little competition between the distribution business of the
Company and Nanpu. Nanpu is one of the Group’s distributor and its
distribution channels primarily focus on the eastern and northern regions of
China, which is complementary to our own distribution channels. In specified
areas or distribution channels, mainly in East China (“Tenwow East China
Channels”), Nanpu uses the Group as a sub-distributor. The Tenwow East
China Channels are (i) Shanghai, Jiangsu, Zhejiang (Hangzhou), in respect of
on-premise channels or third party distributors and (ii) Zhejiang (Ningbo), in
respect of on-premise channels, modern retail channels (supermarket chains and
convenient stores), small business channels and other channels, as well as third
party distribution channels. In other words, Nanpu's distribution channels in
East China do not conflict with the distribution channels of the Group in East
China because, as the Group built up its distribution capabilities for specific
regions or channels, the Group do not rely on Nanpu's distribution capabilities
in respect of those regions or channels. The Directors believe that the Company
is capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from

Nanpu.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors or any of
their respective associates had interests in the businesses, apart from the Group’s
businesses, which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as required to be

disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

In order to protect the Group’s interests and its current business activities,
the controlling shareholders of the Company, namely, Zhi Qun Enterprises
Limited and Mr. Lin Jianhua, entered into a Non-competition Deed on 31
August 2013 (the “Non-competition Deed”) in favour of the Company, under
which Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited and Mr. Lin Jianhua have undertaken
and covenanted with the Company that they shall not and shall procure their
respective associates not to directly or indirectly participate in, or hold any right
or interest in, or otherwise be involved in any business that may be carried out
by the Group from time to time subject to the terms and conditions of the Non-
competition Deed. The Company has received a confirmation from Zhi Qun
Enterprises Limited and Mr. Lin Jianhua in respect of their compliance with the

terms of the Non-competition Deed for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed and confirmed the
compliance with, and the enforcement of, the Non-competition Deed by Zhi
Qun Enterprises Limited and Mr. Lin Jianhua for the year ended 31 December
2013.
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Report of the Directors

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than a contract of service with a Director or any person
engaged in the full-time employment of the Company, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2013.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following transactions are
continuing connected transactions as defined in the Listing Rules which are
subject to the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Certain of these continuing connected transactions which also constitute related

party transactions are set out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
1. Purchase of goods from Shaowansheng Commerce and its associate

The Group purchases goods from Shanghai Shaowansheng Commerce &
Food Led. ( AR E A B A IR/ H]) (“Shaowansheng Commerce”)
and its associate, Shanghai Huanglongtai Tea Company Limited ( = 1
HERKXEGR A A (“Shanghai Huanglongtai”), (who are both
connected persons of the Group), in the ordinary course of its business. On
1 August 2013, each of Tenwow Foods (Group) Co., Led. (KR £ i (4&
EHA R AT (‘Tenwow Group”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) (on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, excluding Nanpu and
its subsidiaries (the “Nanpu Group”)) or Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu
Group) entered into a framework agreement with each relevant connected
person in respect of the purchase of goods on normal commercial terms
for a period of three years commencing on 17 September 2013 and
ending on 16 September 2016. Payments will be made upon delivery of
the goods or monthly.

Shaowansheng Commerce is a substantial shareholder of Shanghai
Chuanxiang Flavouring and Food Co., Led. (_F 18I HFREFE G0 A FRA
F]), and Shanghai Chuanxiang Food Factory (18I & & A BRA A,
both of which are subsidiaries of the Company. Shaowansheng Commerce
is therefore a connected person of the Company. Shanghai Huanglongtai
is wholly-owned by Shaowansheng Commerce, a connected person of
the Company, and is therefore its associate and a connected person of the

Company.

As Shanghai Huanglongtai is wholly-owned by Shaowansheng
Commerce, the continuing connected transactions under the above
framework agreements have been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.25 of
the Listing Rules for purpose of determining its compliance obligations

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, the annual cap for the above
continuing connected transactions in respect of the purchase of goods
under the framework agreements and the actual amount paid for the

transactions are as follows:

BEZZ-ZHTZH=1T—HILFE
Year ended 31 December 2013

AR B TR
Annual Cap Actual Amount
AW ANR#TT
RMB RMB
KBS (fCRA G R Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself

i) NG N T and its subsidiaries, excluding the
PR ) Nanpu Group) 63,725,000 35,448,000
M (R ER) Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) 98,304,000 74,537,000
162,029,000 109,985,000

ALz H i — 4 ER o B2 A
AR -

1 38 S O

AR AE — MR A AR e b il S
05 4 A PR W) (T bl SR ) 2
A VACEN (F INC R Tl w L
FIEWEM > B AR LB EEAN L)
fiE R R A o RURSE B (URA S LK B
] S ELAE EE AE ) SR i (U
AR A& A BRI R (SR ) AR )
(TEHISRM ] - fCRA S K E e
EE)EAMHR-F-=ZFEARH R
S el ANk A HE S
BRI S A A B O A 2
H-ZF =LA+ LtHBEE-F X
FIATARIE B =4 o AR E
ARSI & A s B A AT

R SR e R Y R R OR > T
3 S A 4 D B AT 519 0 MREE T
RS T A2 W) B W0 2 ) > DRI 2% A 2
LR NSRS A E ST P AR 3 E
T PR 7 o WO B AR m] A B BN
3TN R

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

For further information relating to the above transactions, please refer to

the Company’s Prospectus.

Purchase of goods from Shanghai Tangjiu Group

The Group purchases goods from various members of the Shanghai
Tangjiu (Group) Co. Led. (_F ¥ 17 BF 3¢ 18 W5 (% M)A IR 2 7))
(“Shanghai Tangjiu”) and its associates (together “Shanghai Tangjiu
Group”) (who are all connected persons of the Group) in the ordinary
course of its business. Each of Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself and
its subsidiaries, excluding the Nanpu Group) or Nanpu (on behalf of
the Nanpu Group) entered into two framework agreements with Bright
Food (Group) Co., Led. (JERAE 5 (ZE M) A FR/A A ) (“Bright Group”)
(on behalf of itself and the Shanghai Tangjiu Group) on 5 July 2013
and 26 July 2013, respectively, in respect of the purchase of goods on
normal commercial terms for a period of three years commencing on 17
September 2013 and ending on 16 September 2016. Payments will be

made upon delivery of the goods or monthly.

Shanghai Tangjiu is a substantial shareholder of Nanpu, which is
indirectly owned by the Group as to 51% and a subsidiary of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules, and is therefore a
connected person of the Company. Bright Group is the holding company
of Shanghai Tangjiu and is therefore its associate and a connected person

of the Company.
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Report of the Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the annual cap for the above
continuing connected transactions in respect of the purchase of goods
under the framework agreements and the actual amount paid for the

transactions are as follows:

BEZZ-EZHTZH=1—HILFE
Year ended 31 December 2013

A R TR
Annual Cap Actual Amount
AR AR
RMB RMB
KIS M (RRA S R H Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself

Mg m - ANEsE and its subsidiaries, excluding the
[ENGEE) Nanpu Group) 90,569,000 64,762,000
mH (LR A ) Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) 317,798,000 266,065,000

408,367,000 330,827,000

AR LR H g~ 48R B2HA
R -

1) R A T B L e N\ B £
A AR B — P SE B AR AR v 1) A 7
T LI BN E i TR A £ 2 7 (T
- o)) W%Aﬂ‘]tﬂii/\ﬂﬂﬁﬁa@/\ﬂ:
WERN - RZF—=FAA—H> X
VR AR (R A S R E AT » AR
T VR A ) B R (A e AR ) BRHL A%
SRR 1 RPN A A HE 3 A
B E &N HESR Tﬁf]nﬁa’ H_-%—=
FIATEARZEZZE-AFENLATA
Hik > A =4 - ﬁ@aﬁ\iﬁ\%ﬁﬁ\ﬁdﬁﬁ
sl RF B H SA o

I 2 it o A ) RN S A
BEEHA > SOLAAR NG R AL
BEAL -

7S P 2 o B e A B

AR BT RIS 14A.25 1 » i Bl AE SR
Toh sl T O R BRI S 5 B R

For further information relating to the above transactions, please refer to

the Company’s Prospectus.

Sale of goods to Shaowansheng Commerce and its associate

The Group sells goods to Shaowansheng Commerce and its associate,
Shanghai Shaowansheng Food Company (L 1 R R A A)
(“Shaowansheng Food”) (who are both connected persons of the
Company), in the ordinaty course of its business. On 1 August 2013, each
of Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, excluding the
Nanpu Group) or Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) entered into a
framework agreement with each relevant connected person in respect of
the sale of goods on normal commercial terms for a period of three years
commencing on 17 September 2013 and ending on 16 September 2016.

Payments will be made upon delivery of the goods or monthly.

Shaowansheng Food is wholly-owned by Shaowansheng Commerce, a
connected person of the Company, and is therefore its associate and a

connected person of the Company.

As Shaowansheng Food is connected with Shaowansheng Commerce, the
continuing connected transactions under the above framework agreement

have been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.25 of the Listing Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, the annual cap for the above
continuing connected transactions in respect of the sale of goods under
the framework agreements and the actual amount paid for the transactions

are as follows:

BEZZ-ZHTZH=1T—HILFE
Year ended 31 December 2013

AR B B
Annual Cap Actual Amount
NG AR
RMB RMB
KIZEE M (RFRA S H Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself

@A w o AEHE and its subsidiaries, excluding the
[ENGEE) Nanpu Group) 117,940,000 102,998,000
mH (R R A ) Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) 176,838,000 96,123,000
294,778,000 199,121,000

HB L2 i — 5 &R W2 A

I b 3 A A S A 1

ARG B AE — i S A v 1o L g A
LM E R A AAEERL - KR
SR (RFA G R AR A
T 4 1) R o (PR R F R AR ) & B
B4 1] (R A% B B b v 0 3 0 3 4 ) )
AR E =LA R E =
EEH A ANHIRERHERGT LA
M EERMERRZ® A =% =4
WA+ EARE-Z—XNENLATAH
1> B =AE o A BRI A &
R A AT -

e S e ) AR TR
8 B ol A A 519 0 Bk B
LS 2 A2 W) B W0 2 ) > DRI 2% A 2
L BN S A ESE P N3
T R 2 B2 ) o AL 23 A % ) ) i B8N
AL

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

For further information relating to the above transactions, please refer to

the Company’s Prospectus.

Sale of goods to Shanghai Tangjiu Group

The Group sells goods to various members of the Shanghai Tangjiu
Group in the ordinary course of its business. Each of Tenwow Group
(on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, excluding the Nanpu Group) or
Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) each entered into a framework
agreement with Bright Group (on behalf of itself and the Shanghai
Tangjiu Group) on 5 July 2013 and 26 July 2013, respectively, in respect
of the sale of goods on normal commercial terms for a period of three
years commencing on 17 September 2013 and ending on 16 September

2016. Payments will be made upon delivery of the goods or monthly.

Shanghai Tangjiu is a substantial shareholder of Nanpu, which is
indirectly owned by the Group as to 51% and a subsidiary of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules, and is therefore a
connected person of the Company. Bright Group is the holding company
of Shanghai Tangjiu and is therefore its associate and a connected person

of the Company.
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Report of the Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the annual cap for the above
continuing connected transactions in respect of the sale of goods under
the framework agreements and the actual amount paid for the transactions

are as follows:

BEZZ-EZHTH=1T—HILFE
Year ended 31 December 2013

PR o
Annual Cap Actual Amount
N PN
RMB RMB
KRG B (R A G R Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself

i) N N T and its subsidiaries, excluding the
) Nanpu Group) 246,456,000 105,269,000
m (LR A ) Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) 839,008,000 687,008,000
1,085,464,000 792,277,000

A L2 h g — 4 ER > B2 A
R -

1) g 4

AR A — AR AR AR e R B A
Al RS i BB =7 B R A o A TR
—ZHEANH—H RBEHERAY
R FCHA B 22 ) o N B0 e I 4 1) B g
(3R P i 4R T ) 0 IE 3 i S s aT S0 A
B ERMOERR > A% =4
AATERREZZ-RERLA AR
Ik By =4 o A BRI S A B
RF e H A

B A AR A B KR (R ) & 5 A R
AE R bR B A R A SR A
519% » M A1 _F U SE R R A 499 1 3t
(7] 2 1 BB o B A P AR RIS
1441130 JF B+ > HARYE it
R 55 14A.06 1 T 52 Br A5 B A
+ Bl

1. AEEBEAEZIERELAES
HIN A #E S o R A E
HEREMBEREALEA R

WP e R ER BB E R

il

For further information relating to the above transactions, please refer to

the Company’s Prospectus.

Sale of goods to Nanpu

The Group sells own brand products and third party brand products to
Nanpu in the ordinary course of its business. On 1 August 2013, Tenwow
Group (on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, excluding Nanpu Group)
and Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) entered into a framework
agreement in respect of the sale of goods on normal commercial terms for
a period of three years commencing on 17 September 2013 and ending on
16 September 2016. Payments will be made upon delivery of the goods

or monthly.

Nanpu is a jointly controlled entity owned by the Company as to 51%
through Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Led. (KWE (%) & 5 A FR/A A )
and Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and Spirits Co., Led. (b 8 K B il 3£
AR ALY collectively, and as to 49% by Shanghai Tangjiu. Although
Nanpu is not a connected person for the purpose of Rule 14A.11 of the
Listing Rules, it is deemed by the Stock Exchange as a connected person

pursuant to Rule 14A.06 of the Listing Rules for the following reasons:-

1. the Group was entitled to appoint four out of seven directors of
Nanpu in the past and the overlapping management between
Nanpu and the Group suggests that the Group may be able to
exercise significant influence over Nanpu's decision and business

operation;
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2. HESREMER > AEEHEEHKK
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B GFE LR EE =
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Tenwow International Holdings Limited

2. the Group's reliance on Nanpu remains material in terms of
monetary value and the Sales and Repurchase Arrangement is not

an industry practice; and

3. deeming Nanpu as the Group’s connected person will enhance the
transparency of the transactions between the Group and Nanpu and
provide the Shareholders an opportunity to review and approve our
future transactions with Nanpu under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the original annual cap for the
above continuing connected transaction in respect of the sale of goods
under the framework agreement is RMB1,453,464,000. However, the
Directors expected the sum of the transaction would exceed the original
annual cap. Therefore, pursuant to a resolution passed by the independent
Shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
30 December 2013, the annual cap for the above continuing connected
transaction in respect of the sale of goods under the framework agreement
was revised to RMB1,813,737,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013
and the actual amount paid for the transaction is RMB1,642,047,000.

For further information relating to the above transaction, please refer to
the Company’s Prospectus, the announcements of the Company dated 18
November 2013 and 30 December 2013 and the circular of the Company
dated 14 December 2013.

Purchase of goods from Nanpu

The Group purchases own brand products and third party brand products
from Nanpu in the ordinary course of its business. On 1 August 2013,
Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, excluding Nanpu
Group) and Nanpu (on behalf of Nanpu Group) entered into a framework
agreement in respect of the purchase of goods for a period of three years
commencing on 17 September 2013 and ending on 16 September 2016.

Payment will be made upon delivery of the goods or monthly.
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Report of the Directors

Nanpu is a jointly controlled entity owned by the Company as to 51%
through Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Led. (KR (18 & 5 A FRAH)
and Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and Spirits Co., Led. (b ¥ K 85 i 3£
A B2 D) collectively, and as to 49% by Shanghai Tangjiu. Although
Nanpu is not a connected person for the purpose of Rule 14A.11 of the
Listing Rules, it is deemed by the Stock Exchange as a connected person
pursuant to Rule 14A.06 of the Listing Rules. For further information,
please refer to continuing connected transaction for sale of goods to

Nanpu above.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the annual cap for the above
continuing connected transaction in respect of the purchase of goods
under the framework agreement is RMB1,156,140,000 and the actual
amount paid for the transaction is RMB931,486,000.

For further information relating to the above transaction, please refer to
the Company's Prospectus, the announcements of the Company dated 18
November 2013 and 30 December 2013 and the circular of the Company
dated 14 December 2013.

Partially-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

Set out below is a summary of the continuing connected transactions for the
Group, which are exempt, under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements, but are subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

1. Leasing of properties from Mr. Lin Jianhua and his associate

The Group leases premises from Mr. Lin Jianhua (“Mr. Lin”) and his
associate, Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd. (B RERRAR
N (“Tiansheng Warehouse”) in the ordinary course of its business.
The table below sets out: (1) the principal terms of the various tenancy
agreements entered into between the Group and Mr. Lin or Tiansheng
Warehouse; and (2) the annual caps for the year ended 31 December
2013:
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BE-%=
+ZR
=ik
SRR R
(ARMET7)
BT RY Annual Cap
CEIx) AM/ &M for the year
Gross  (ARHE) ended
floor Monthly 31 December
ZSii) Hikiibig LA H AL LES ik area rent/fees 2013
Lessee Lessor Date of lease Term Property Use (m) (RMB) (RMB’000)
GOITTRIE S MOEk R —F—f IR A = RAE 492 60,000 720
HIRAT Mr. Lin AH—H AH—HZE i ot LR Office
Shenzhen Nanpu 1 June 2011 TR 33AEK3FE
Industrial Co., Led. TZH=+—H Units 33A and
1 June 2011 to 33F of Noble
31 December 2015 Financial Centre
Main Building,
Fuzhongsan Road,
Futian District,
Shenzhen
[RERC] KR ZE - SR Bo L it WnE 2513 109,298 1,850
Nanpu Tiansheng —H—H —H—H=z JUF B 1300 9% Office
Warehouse 1 January 2011 ZR-EAE 55 RN
+ZHA=+—H Y % B
1 January 2011 to An office unit
31 December 2013 located at Building

No. 5, 1300 Jiugan
Road, Shanghai

ZE ZERE L#ILTR 30088 WHE 970 30,555
—H—H —H—Rz 5 6 91 A K Dormitory
1 January 2011 —E-=4 1-41%

+=H=+—H 1st-4¢h Floors,

1 January 2011 to No. 6 Dormitory

31 December 2013 Building, 1300 Jiugan

Road, Shanghai

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
ABEBRERERLT
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Lessee Lessor

LigmmaA R KA
T 4324 ) Tiansheng

Shanghai Nanpu Food ~ Warehouse
Pudong Limited

A H I

Date of lease

TR
—~A—H
1 January 2011

S
~A—H
1 January 2011

-k
—HA—H
1 January 2013

T

Term

i
—H—HB=®
“ER-ZAE
+oA=t+—H
1 January 2011 to

31 December 2013

D
—H—H=z
e
+ZAZ=Z+—H
1 January 2011 to
31 December 2013

e
—H—H=z
SEHAE
TZH=+—H
1 January 2013 to

31 December 2015

L/ES

Property

AL i
JUF % 1300 9
EL PN 3
A LA

An office uni

located at Building
No. 5, 1300 Jiugan
Road, Shanghai
LT 1300 9%
EIY AN
141

1st-4th Floors,

No. 6 Dormitory
Building, 1300 Jiugan
Road, Shanghai
s E g

JUT B 1300 BEHY
3 EA e S By e
Warehouse No. 3 and
auxiliary facilities
located at 1300 Jiugan
Road, Shanghai

EE R

Report of the Directors

B5-3=
=
=ik
SRRV IE |
(ARMT7)
g gy Annual Cap
CEIX) AM/ &N for the year
Gross (AR ended
floor Monthly 31 December
ik area rent/fees 2013
Use (m?) (RMB) (RMB’000)
WA= 3,769 163,947 7865
Office
T 1455 45,837
Dormitory
=1 19,705 4,151
Storage
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BE-%=
TZA
=L
SRR R
(ARET7E)
BT RY Annual Cap
CEIx) AM/ &M for the year
Gross  (AERH) ended
floor Monthly 31 December
ZSii) Hikiibig LA H AL LES ik area rent/fees 2013
Lessee Lessor Date of lease Term Property Use (m) (RMB) (RMB’000)
LigmREE S KA ZE e S PLps £ WAE 3,769 163,947 7,925
AR H Tiansheng —H—H —H—HZz JUF #1300 5% Office
Shanghai Puxing Warehouse 1 January 2011 SR 55 SRR
Trading Limited +=A=+—H MY 5 BT
1 January 2011 to An office unit located
31 December 2013 at Building No. 5,
1300 Jiugan Road,
Shanghai
ZE . LT 3009 EE 1455 45,837
—H—H —H—HZ 5 6 BRI M Dormitory
1 January 2011 ZR-ZAE 1-44%
+=-H=+—H Ist-4th Floors,
1 January 2011 to No. 6 Dormitory
31 December 2013 Building, 1300 Jiugan
Road, Shanghai
e . B i =1 19,262 429,169
—H—H —H—H= JUT B 1300 598/ 258 Storage
1 January 2013 e S KD IR R B e
+ZH=+—H Warehouses No. 2
1 January 2013 to and auxiliary facilities
31 December 2015 located at 1300 Jiugan

Road, Shanghai

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
ABEBRERERLT



ZNiivi AL

Lessee Lessor

FEERWEARAT KA
Shanghai Royal Wines  Tiansheng
and Spirits Co., Led.  Warehouse

EERRAEERE KA
KR Tiansheng

Shanghai Tiancheng Warehouse
Enterprise Development

Limited

A H I

Date of lease

ZE
~H—H
1 January 2011

S
—HA—H
1 January 2011

e
—H—H
1 January 2011

S
—HA—H
1 January 2013

T

Term

“Ff
i E
“F-ZE
ToAZt—H
1 January 2011 to
31 December 2013

SE
—HZ
Bk
+ZAZ=Z+—H
January 2011 to

31 December 2013

S
i E

— =
TZA=+—H
January 2011 to

31 December 2013

3k
—H—H=z
%
+=A= 40
1 January 2013 to

31 December 2015

L/ES

Property

firf L

JUF 513005
EALIN

i A A

An office unit located
at Building No. 5,
1300 Jiugan Road,
Shanghai

ff Lt

JUTE 13005
EAL N !
A E B

An office unit located
at Building No. 5,
1300 Jiugan Road,
Shanghai
LT 1300 9%
5 6 BT &
1-4 1

Lst-4th Floors,

No. 6 Dormitory
Building, 1300 Jiugan
Road, Shanghai

s b
LT H 158 %
4 SRR R R T D e
Warehouses No. 1 and
4 and auxiliary facilicies
located at Jiugan Road,

Shanghai

T

Dormitory

N
A%
Storage and

office

EE R

Report of the Directors

HESETH AL
(FI5K)
Gross
floor
area

()

523

1,256

485

23,541

REZZ-=
+ZA
=t—Aik
B BERARE B
(ARF7)
Annual Cap
ELiiVE-diil for the year
(NRH) ended
Monthly 31 December

rent/fees

2013

(RMB) (RMB’000)

22,768 301
54,651 8,240
15,279

609,549
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BE-%=
+ZR
=L
SRR R
(ARMET7)
BT RY Annual Cap
CEIx) AM/ &M for the year
Gross  (ARHE) ended
floor Monthly 31 December
ZSii) Hikiibig LA H AL LES ik area rent/fees 2013
Lessee Lessor Date of lease Term Property Use (m) (RMB) (RMB’000)
FERERRARAT KRR Sk “Fk fift b MAE 523 22,768 301
Shanghai Tiansheng Tiansheng —~A—H —--HZE JUT B 13005 Office
Wines and Spirits Warehouse 1 January 2011 “E-CE L9
Co., Ltd. +ZA=+—H M % B
1 January 2011 to An office unit located
31 December 2013 at Building No. 5,
1300 Jiugan Road,
Shanghai
El—-ERARAT KB S Tk fif Lt WAE 1,256 54,649 925
Shanghai Yijia Logistics  Tiansheng —H—H —A—HZ JUFH 13005 Office
Limited Warehouse 1 January 2011 ZE-EE F3EWN
TZAZT-H A E B
1 January 2011 to An office unit located at
31 December 2013 Building No. 5,
1300 Jiugan Road,
Shanghai
“H e L#ILTR 30088 WHE 485 15,279
—J—H -A—-A% 8 69 AE & Dormitory
1 January 2011 SE-ER R 148
+-A=1+—H 1st-4¢h Floors,
1 January 2011 to No. 6 Dormitory
31 December 2013 Building, 1300 Jiugan
Road, Shanghai
i
Total 28,127

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Report of the Directors

Tiansheng Warehouse is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nan Pu (Hong
Kong) Investments Limited (Fg T (FF %) 1% EHRA A ), which is
in turn owned by Mr. Lin Jianhua as to more than 30%. Therefore,
Tiansheng Warehouse is an associate of Mr. Lin Jianhua and a connected

person of the Company.

As Tiansheng Warehouse is connected with Mr. Lin, the continuing
connected transactions under the above tenancy agreements have been

aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.25 of the Listing Rules.

As shown in the table above, the annual cap of the aggregate rent and fees
payable to Mr. Lin and Tiansheng Warehouse, on an aggregated basis,
for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the actual amount paid for the

transactions are as follows:

BEZZ-ZHTZH=1T—HILFE
Year ended 31 December 2013

AR R TR
Annual Cap Actual Amount
AR AR¥T
RMB RMB
KU 42 W (R A S R H Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself

oy 7N I N T and its subsidiaries, excluding the
FH A ) Nanpu Group) 1,322,000 1,322,000
F (R ) Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) 26,805,000 24,715,000
28,127,000 26,037,000

F B LS5 I — L BB WS RA L R
AR -

2. AR A I N I
A AR B — M E B AR AR v ) AR AR Y
gk IN %E%ﬂi/\ﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬁi}\i’)
BEE, R _F—=ZFAH—H X
REE(RERASREMBEAR » A
PR ) SR I (USRI AR ) £ | B
% R TR R 2 42 I 7 2 R ERT S AE
Bk B-F—=FLATLARE
—=ANEILATABIE B4
A BRI 2S5 B i RF 5 R A

For further information relating to the above transactions, please refer to

the Company’s Prospectus.

Purchase of goods from Mr. Lin Jianhua’s associates

The Group purchases goods from some of Mr. Lin’s associates (who are
each a connected person of the Company) in the ordinary course of its
business. On 1 August 2013, each of Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself
and its subsidiaries, excluding the Nanpu Group) or Nanpu (on behalf
of the Nanpu Group) entered into a framework agreement with each
relevant connected person on normal commercial terms for a period of
three years commencing from 17 September 2013 and ending on 16
September 2016. Payments will be made upon delivery of the goods or
monthly.
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TR (1) BB AR M R AR The table below sets out: (1) the information in relation to each relevant
EBRENLHEMBAZTTMER & seller that is Mr. Lin’s associate and the connected person of the Group;
QOBE-F-=F+"A=+—HIL4 and (2) the annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2013:
JE B4R IR
REZZ =8
+=A
=t—Hik
AR I A AR LR
(NRWT8)
Annual Cap
for the year ended
By SR IV IS 31 December
B Seller (Mr. Lin’s associate and 55 2013
Purchaser connected person) Goods (RMB’000)
KRG (RRA B S FCH g A ) LR B R 5 2 A BN B
AEAEFE ) Jiangsu Province Linning Food
International Company Limited 758
Tenwow Group (on behalf of T B A PR A (b
itself and its subsidiaries, Putian Xinghua Food Limited Packaging materials 316
excluding the Nanpu Group) g R A PR B
Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited ~ Food 46,582
it
Sub-total 47,656
FH (ORI ) W E A R A A B
Nanpu (on behalf of the Putian Nanpu Shiye Company Limited Food 16
Nanpu Group) B R A R B
Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited  Food 2,015
it
Sub-total 2,031
At
Total 49,687

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Report of the Directors

Mr. Lin Jianhua is a controlling Shareholder and a Director of the
Company and hence a connected person of the Company. Jiangsu Province
Linning International Company Limited is owned by Mr. Lin Jianming,
a brother of Mr. Lin Jianhua, as to more than 50%, and is therefore an
associate of Mr. Lin Jianhua and a connected person of the Company.
Putian Xinghua Food Limited is collectively owned by Mr. Lin Quangin
and Mr. Lin Jianhong, both brothers of Mr. Lin Jianhua, as to more than
50%, and is therefore an associate of Mr. Lin and a connected person of
the Company. Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited is owned by Ms.
Yan Yuzhen, the spouse of Mr. Lin Jianhua, as to 30% and Mr. Chen
Lei, a senior management of the Company, as to 70%, and is therefore
an associate of Mr. Lin and a connected person of the Company. Putian
Nanpu Shiye Company Limited is owned by Ms. Zhou Yulan, a sister-in-
law of Mr. Lin Jianhua, as to more than 50%, and is therefore an associate

of Mr. Lin Jianhua and a connected person of the Company.

As Jiangsu Province Linning International Company Limited, Putian
Nanpu Shiye Company Limited, Putian Xinghua Food Limited and
Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited are all Mr. Lin’s associates, the
continuing connected transactions under the above framework agreements
have been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.25 of the Listing Rules for
purpose of determining its compliance obligations under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.
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mExRFR BE_F-=ZF1+_H
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As shown in the table above, the annual cap for the above continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2013, in relation
to all of the above framework agreements on an aggregated basis and the

actual amount paid for the transactions are as follows:

BEZZ-ZHTZH=1T—HILFE
Year ended 31 December 2013

AR B B
Annual Cap Actual Amount
NG AR
RMB RMB
KIZEE M (RFRA S H Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself

@A w o AEHE and its subsidiaries, excluding the
FAT A E) Nanpu Group) 47,656,000 42,078,000
mH (R R A ) Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) 2,031,000 1,983,000
49,687,000 44,061,000

A B LA A 5 10— G R
NERRER o

EELES

I PR 2 50 2 T R B

A SRR L — SR A v MRS AE 1Y
3 i BN (439 75 7 S 1 Y B N £ )
EEM - R_F-=FN\H—H > RE
S (RA S LEME A A
AR ) s (UK R ) & A B
R ) B 22N I R S M AT S RE R
k> B - F-=FA+EREE"
F-RELATARIE BW=4FF
B AR TR S A2 A5 B i Rp i A S A

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

For further information relating to the above transactions, please refer to

the Company’s Prospectus.

Sales of goods to Mr. Lin Jianhua’s associates

The Group sells goods to some of Mr. Lin’s associates (who are connected
persons of the Group) in the ordinary course of its business. On 1 August
2013, each of Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries,
excluding the Nanpu Group) or Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group)
entered into a framework agreement with each relevant connected person
on normal commercial terms for a period of three years commencing from
17 September 2013 and ending 16 Spetember 2016. Payments will be

made upon delivery of the goods or monthly.
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Report of the Directors

The table below sets out: (1) the information in relation to each relevant
purchaser that is Mr. Lin’s associate and a connected person of the Group;

and (2) the annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2013 :

IR AR B IR
BREZF—-=4
+=A
=+—HIk
AR RERAE B R
(AR#ETIT)
Annual Cap
for the year ended
EVAE SR NV T ISR 31 December
9] Purchaser (Mr. Lin’s associate and 55 2013
Seller a connected person) Goods (RMB’000)
KB (REA S S A w b R A A R B
AELAE T A ) Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited —Packaging materials
Tenwow Group (on behalf of
itself and its subsidiaries,
excluding the Nanpu Group) 620
/NG
Sub-total 620
I (UK H) Y R R R A R ) ]
Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) Putian Nanpu Shiye Company Limited Wine 154
it R AT PR A HORE 5 K MALEL
Shanghai Buy Well Company Limited Beverage; household
chemicals 1,791
b R A R A A 5 i
Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited = Wine; food 7,196
it
Sub-total 9,141
At
Total 9,761
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A 500 o DRy MR 2 S A Y T
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B 2E PR ) Ay bR e R Y BB MR
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R E A ERARAR - Lk
W ZEA PR R Ll K& i A R
A AMERELENBREA BAE
R BRI AE T SRR
£ BRI ek TR B S 2
AR LRI 14425 R B FSTE -

mERpR BE-F-=F1+2H
= HIR A A B B A A AE AR R
)& BE T AR LR R 5 BB E AT
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Mzr. Lin Jianhua is a controlling Shareholder and a Director of the
Company and hence a connected person of the Company. Shanghai
Tianpu Food Company Limited is owned by Ms. Yan Yuzhen, the spouse
of Mr. Lin Jianhua, as to 30% and Mr. Chen Lei, a senior management
of the Company, as to 70%, and is therefore an associate of Mr. Lin and a
connected person of the Company. Putian Nanpu Shiye Company Limited
is owned by Ms. Zhou Yulan, a sister-in-law of Mr. Lin Jianhua, as to
more than 50%, and is therefore an associate of Mr. Lin Jianhua and a
connected person of the Company. Shanghai Buy Well Company Limited
is collectively owned by Mr. Lin Jianhong, a brother of Mr. Lin Jianhua,
and his spouse as to more than 50%, and is therefore an associate of Mr.

Lin Jianhua and a connected person of the Company.

As Putian Nanpu Shiye Company Limited, Shanghai Buy Well Company
Limited and Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited are all Mr. Lin
Jianhua's associates, the continuing connected transactions under the
above framework agreements have been aggregated pursuant to Rule
14A.25 of the Listing Rules for purpose of determining its compliance

obligations under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As shown in the table above, the annual caps for the year ended 31
December 2013, in relation to all of the above framework agreements on
an aggregated basis and the actual amount paid for the transactions are as

follows:

RE-FR-=HF+"HA=1—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2013

R LR s
Annual Cap Actual Amount
N P ARHET
RMB RMB
KBS M (RA S R H Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself

oy 7N N T and its subsidiaries, excluding the
FATHSEE) Nanpu Group) 620,000 353,000
mH (R R A ) Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) 9,141,000 585,000
9,761,000 938,000

AR L 5 W — R 2 A

NERRER -

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

For further information relating to the above transactions, please refer to

the Company’s Prospectus.
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Report of the Directors

Confirmation from the Auditor and Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company in relation to the

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company'’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, was engaged to report
on the Group's continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2013 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect
of continuing connected transactions set out above in accordance with
Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The auditor of the Company has confirmed that regarding the above
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe that: (i) the above continuing connected
transactions had not been approved by the Board; (ii) as regards the
transactions involved provision of goods by the Group, such transactions
were not conducted in accordance with the pricing policy of the Company
in all material aspects; (iii) the above transactions were not entered
into in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements governing
such transactions in all material aspects; and (iv) the amount of the
above continuing connected transactions have exceeded their respective
cap amounts as disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 14
December 2013 and 5 September 2013.

In accordance with Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the abovementioned continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that these continuing connected

transactions have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

2. on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Company than terms available to or from (as appropriate)

independent third parties; and

3. inaccordance with the relevant agreement governing then on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders

of the Company as a whole.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by the Group
in the normal course of business are set out in Note 33 to the financial
statements. Those related party transactions which constituted continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are set out in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” above, and the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the percentages of purchases from
the Group’ s largest supplier and the five largest suppliers were 13.9% and
46.1%, respectively. The percentages of sales attributable to the Group’ s largest
customer and the five largest customers were 29.5% and 40.2%), respectively.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, none of the Directors or any of their
associates, or any shareholders of the Company (which to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’ s issued share capital) had

any interest in any of the Group' s five largest suppliers or customers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 1 August 2013, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO share option scheme
(“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) of the Company. The purpose of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to give the participants an opportunity to
acquire a personal stake in the Company and to help motivate such participants
to optimize their performance and efficiency, and also to help retain the
participants whose contributions are important to the long-term growth and
profitability of the Group. As at 31 December 2013, the maximum number
of shares of the Company available for issue in respect of which options were
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 17,916,667 shares for Pool
A and 19,166,667 shares for Pool B, representing approximately 0.86% and
0.92% respectively of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of

the annual report.
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Report of the Directors

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 was paid by the grantees upon acceptance
of the grant of option by the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. The exercise price per share under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is HK$1.80, representing a 42.86% discount to the offer price of the shares
during Listing. Each option was subject to a vesting scale and exercise period as
detailed in the note to the movement of outstanding share options of the Pre-

IPO Share Option Scheme during the year set out in the table below.

As at 31 December 2013, no share option under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme has been exercised. Save for the options which have been granted as
described below, no further options will be offered or granted by the Company

pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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TREEEF AL FE TR BREE KA The following table discloses details of the Company’s outstanding share options
R T PR S TR AR ) i AT (0 AR held by the Directors and certain employees of the Company under the Pre-IPO
HURHRBE —F—=F+"A=+—HI Share Option Scheme and its movement during the year ended 31 December
FEINEE) - 2013:

JE R
Number of Share Options

BE B’z L& L3

R = R S R
+ZA +ZA tZA TZA R
=f-0 =t-H =t-H St REFEE Toffe
REZ-=6 EEERE  REECTE  REEEEE  REEDER TZA Exercise
—H—H Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed =1—n price

B AE [iF3 5 during the during the during the during the iF 5 per share Tt

ESAINZ ) Dateof  Balance as at year ended year ended year ended vearended  Balance as at 7 Exercise

Name or category of grantees Grant 17172013 31/12/2013 31/12/2013 31/12/2013 31/12/2013 31/1212013 HKS$ period

#E(LH)

Directors (Pool B)

THRSE ZF-= 0 1,666,667 0 0 0 1,666,667 1.80#TC ik 1

Mr. Wang Juewei JH—H HK$1.80 Note 1

1 August
2013
i e U 0 4,166,664 0 0 0 4,166,664 180T Wik 1
Mr. Lam Hang Boris AA—H HK$1.80 Note 1
1 August
2013
s “F-Ek 0 1,666,667 0 0 0 1,666,667 L8 Wik 1
Mr. Yeung Yue Ming JA—H HK$1.80 Note 1
1 August
2013
[ %t —F-Ch 0 1,666,667 0 0 0 1,666,667 1.80 ¢ Al
Ms. Au Lai Hang AA—H HKS$1.80 Note 1
1 August
2013

FAEEERIHbIER (74 “Fck 0 17916667 0 0 0 17916667 18037 Wik 2
(43h) A=A HK$1.80 Note 2

Senior Management and 1 August
other employees 2013
(Pool A) (in aggregate)

TRAE AR RSl (241 e 0 10,000,002 0 0 0 10,000,002 1.80357¢ Wik 1
(H3h) JUA—H HK$1.80 Note 1
Senior Management and 1 August
other employees 2013
(Pool B) (in aggregate)

At %= 0 37,083,334 0 0 0 37,083,334 L8037

Total JUI—H HKS$1.80

1 August
2013

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
ABEBRERERLT



A B U2 B 8 5 A A M e
HERY 5 L AURAR A HE# DA 05 XA (LM

i

@

()

(3)

“4)

(5)

A Z—ZHAA LR EZZ—ER
AL A ECR R Z 10%

H_Z—NENLA AR E_F T
AL A R £ 30%
WEATH RS

HoZF—HENLAFAAEFE—RE
JUR AL Bl AT C 4% R IR 2 509
WEATHERAERE

HoZ—-NELATFABE_F— L
JUR L H AT C 3 R 2 70%
WOATHE R RERE

S S ok VWS WANEF ES 3 i S g
FI R 38 9 4F (52 1 2 Bl 8 45 0
B b ) 4R LA B SO MR ) a0
AT 45 O S kA )
Ho

A T U2 B 8 5 i AR A M e
HHE 25 AR AR AT R LA 7 5UAT B FE M

1

1)

(2)

(3)

4)

T e S WA R E e o)
AAHC R EE R MR 10% :

HZoF—NENLA+AAEF LA
JUR AL Bl T C 4% R IR 2 359
WOATHERAERE

HoZE—HENLAFAAEF—RE
JUA L H AT C R R 2 65%
WOATH R RERE

SIS A VWS WANEF ES 3 g S g
FI R it 380 8 4 (52 1 2 Bl 8 45 0
B b 4R LAk B SO ML) a0
AT (8 45 O S kA )
Ho

EE R

Report of the Directors

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company to each

grantee who falls under Pool B will be entitled to exercise his/her options in the following

manner:-

1

3

)

)

up to 10% of the share options granted are exercisable from 17 September 2013 to
17 September 2014;

up to 30% of the share options granted less the number of share options exercised

are exercisable from 18 September 2014 to 17 September 2015;

up to 50% of the share options granted less the number of share options exercised

are exercisable from 18 September 2015 to 17 September 2016;

up to 70% of the share options granted less the number of share options exercised

are exercisable from 18 September 2016 to 17 September 2017;

such number of share options granted less the number of share options exercised are
exercisable from 18 September 2017 and ending on the expiration of 9 years from
the date of grant of the option (subject to the provisions for early termination under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme).

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company to each

grantee who falls under Pool A will be entitled to exercise his/her options in the following

manner:-

1

@

(3)

)

up to 10% of the share options granted are exercisable from 17 September 2013 to

17 September 2014;

up to 35% of the share options granted less the number of share options exercised

are exercisable from 18 September 2014 to 17 September 2015;

up to 65% of the share options granted less the number of share options exercised

are exercisable from 18 September 2015 to 17 September 2016;

such number of share options granted less the number of share options exercised are
exercisable from 18 September 2016 and ending on the expiration of 8 years from
the date of grant of the option (subject to the provisions for early termination under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme).
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POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 19 August 2013 (the “Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to selected participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group. The Directors
consider that the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, with its broadened basis of
participation, will enable the Group to reward its employees, Directors and other
selected participants for their contributions to the Group and to encourage them
to give their best performance and efficiency to the Group in future. It is also
designed to attract and retain or utilize other means to maintain good relations
with qualified individuals who are or will be beneficial to the Company’s
development or success. The Directors may, at their absolute discretion, invite
any directors and employees of any member of the Group (including the
Nanpu Group), any advisers, consultants, distributors, contractors, customers,
suppliers, agents, business partners, joint venture business partners, and service
providers of any member of the Group to take up options to subscribe for shares
of the Company. The options may be granted to any company wholly owned
by one or more persons belonging to any of the above classes of participants.
The eligibility of any of these classes of participants shall be determined by
the Directors on the basis of the Directors’ opinion as to the participant’s

contribution to the development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company

from time to time.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the day on which trading of the shares of the Company
commenced on the Stock Exchange but excluding any shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of the Over-allotment Option during Listing, which
were 207,361,200 shares representing 10% of the issued share capital of the

Company as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the

issued share capital of the Company.
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Report of the Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2013, no share options had been granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are
exercisable within a period of 10 years after the date of grant. The Directors
are entitled to determine the performance targets to be achieved as well as the
minimum period that an option must be held before an option can be exercised
at the time of offer of the Options to the participants. The subscription price per
share under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be a price determined by
the Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of the offer of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date
of grant. The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
was adopted. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance

of the grant of an option.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2013 was the Company or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the relevant laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its

existing shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Saved as those disclosed under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis”, the Group did not have any significant investment during the year

under review.
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PURCHASE, SALE, OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the period from 17 September 2013 (the “Listing Date”) to 31 December
2013, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

TAXATION

Details of the taxation of the Group are set out in Note 28 to the financial

statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the level of public

float as required under the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

NON-COMPLIANT BILL FINANCING

In the past, the Group has engaged in non-compliant bill financing. The Group
has ceased entering into any new non-compliant bill financing transactions
since 25 June 2012 and settled all related bills by 25 December 2012. Since
the cessation of the non-compliant bill financing arrangements, the Group
has undertaken a series of measures (out of its own initiatives and/or as
recommended by its independent internal control consultant) to ensure non-
compliant bill financing arrangements will not occur in the future. In March
2014, the independent internal control consultant reviewed the design and
implementation of the remediated controls in relation to the issuance and
discounting of bank acceptance notes at Tenwow Group, Wuhan Nanpu Food
Co., Led. (RETTHH EMA R F) (‘Wuhan Nanpu”) and Ningbo
Contemporary Trading Co., Led. (S i B HERE M E A A 7)) (“Ningbo
Contemporary Trading”) for the period from September to December 2013
and has reported to the Company that it has not raised any further deficiencies
regarding the remediated controls relating to the issuance and discounting
of bank acceptance notes at Tenwow Group, Wuhan Nanpu and Ningbo
Contemporary Trading. The independent internal control review was conducted
based on information provided by the Company and no assurance or opinion on
internal controls was expressed by the Company’s independent internal control

consultant.
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Report of the Directors

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations in the amount

of approximately RMB6.8 million.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2013 with the Company’s auditor, and discussion has
been conducted regarding auditing, internal control, and financial reporting

(including review of the general accounting principles adopted by the Group).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no matter occurred between the balance sheet date (i.e. 31 December
2013) and the date of this annual report that would cause material impact on

the Group.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting. PricewaterhouseCoopers, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Lin Jianhua

Chairman

Hong Kong
25 March 2014
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mzr. LIN Jianhua (MREESE) aged 59, is the founder and chairman of the Group

and was appointed as an executive Director of the Company in August 2011.
He is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Lin is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and business direction of the Group. Mr. Lin
has more than 20 years of experience in the food and beverage distribution
industry. Mr. Lin worked at Putian Huanan Food Co., Led. (7§ H 17 # R
£ i A BR 72 F) as a manager from September 1985 to September 1992. In
October 1992, Mr. Lin founded Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (T‘ﬁﬁﬁﬂcﬁ (5/‘5
BHA R A FAD (previously known as Shanghai Nanpu Food Co., Led. (b
T R I & 5 A BR A D)), and is currently the general manager. In December
1999, Mr. Lin founded Tenwow Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (RIBE T ERHE
R A ﬁj) (previously known as Shanghai Tenwow Food Co., Ltd. (J: K g
B fh A B~ Al)), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and has since
served as the chairman. Mr. Lin is also a director of Praise Sheen Limited (514
HPR/A7]) and Nan Pu International Limited (877 Bl A PR 7 ), wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lin was appointed as the chairman and
authorized representative of Tenwow (Chengdu) Food Co., Ltd. (R () &
A PR/ ) and Tenwow (Tianjing) Food Co., Led. (KN (i) & dh A R
i~ T]), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company in June 2013 and December
2013, respectively. Mr. Lin has been a director of Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited
(BBEFEABR/ARD, the controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. WANG Juewei (F EE J&), aged 44, is the chief executive officer of the
Group and was appointed as an executive Director of the Company in May
2012. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Wang oversees
the day-to-day business and the general management of the Group. Mr. Wang
graduated from East China Normal University (ﬁ%gﬂﬁﬁj{%) in 1991 with
a bachelor’s degree in English literature. From October 1991 to March 1997,
Mr. Wang worked as a teacher at Shanghai Medical Workers' College ( - ik
T BB and later from March 1997 to May 2003 at the School of Foreign
Languages at East China Normal University (42 5 i i K 22 M EEL B ). M.
Wang joined Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (P B S CEEDA R AR
in June 2003 and served as a brand manager until June 2006, where he was in
charge of managing the distribution of products from several brands, including
“Changyu” (“TRAR”), “Great Wall” (“HER FRI8”) and “Cook’s Choice” (“Bi#E”).
From July 2006 to June 2007, Mr. Wang was in charge of the human resource
department of Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd.. Mr. Wang joined the Group as
the general manager of Tenwow Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (f%ﬁlﬁ% (;%@)ﬁ
PR/ ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in October 2007.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. LAM Hang Boris (%K), aged 43, is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Group and was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company in May 2012. Mr. Lam is responsible for the overall financial
operation of the Group, investor relations related matters and overall secretarial
matters of the Company. He is also in charge of communications with The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and other regulatory authorities. Mr. Lam
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s degree
in accountancy in 1996. Mr. Lam has more than 17 years of audit and finance-
related experience. He joined KPMG (5 J & 71 Ali %5 7) in September
1996 and resigned in March 2011. Mr. Lam has been an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 1999, and a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since November
2000.

Mr. YEUNG Yue Ming (B35i88 ), aged 48, is a vice president of the Group
and was appointed as an executive Director of the Company in May 2012.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the Group’s overall sales. Mr. Yeung received his
bachelor’s degree in social sciences (journalism and communications) from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1988. After graduation until March 1994,
Mr. Yeung worked at Nestlé (China) Led. (B (PEHABRAT). Mr. Yeung
then worked as the senior regional manager in charge of the Beijing Region for
Maxxium Shanghai Limited (BB E 5 ( 11§) AMRAA) from March
1994 to June 2006. From June 2006 to April 2012, Mr. Yeung worked at
Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Led. (T‘ﬁﬁﬁn‘zﬁ (9&@ VA BRZA D) as a vice general
manager, overseeing Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd.’s marketing and sales
activities. Mr. Yeung joined the Group as a vice general manager of Tenwow
Food (Group) Co., Led. (K W& £ i (% Bl) A B 24 1), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, in May 2012.
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Ms. AU Lai Hang ([& &) 1), aged 45, is a vice president of the Group and
was appointed as an executive Director of the Company in May 2012. Ms. Au
is responsible for the overall sales and marketing and promotions of the Group.
Ms. Au graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1989 with a bachelor’s
degree in social work. Ms. Au worked at Nestlé (China) Led. (£ 5% () A R
/AH]) after graduation to May 1995, starting as a marketing executive trainee
and was promoted to the position of senior product manager. Ms. Au then
worked at A. $. Watson Group (Jii FL [CAE ) from May 1995 to August 2011
where she was the marketing director for water & beverages for Mainland China
when she departed. During her employment, Ms. Au continued her education
and received a master degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1997. Ms. Au joined the Group in May 2012 as a
vice president of Nan Pu International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of

the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ms. CHEN Shirley Shiyou (BR1), aged 48, is the non-executive Director.

Ms. Chen was nominated by CICC TW Investment Limited pursuant to its
right under the Investors Rights Agreement dated 31 May 2012 and was
appointed as a Director in May 2012. Ms. Chen has over 18 years of experience
in investment banking. She has been working with China International Capital
Corporation Limited (7' [ [ [ 4 fl A BR /A 7)) since February 2003 and is
now a managing director mainly responsible for strategy, business development
and investment decisions of its private equity business. Ms. Chen is also the
chairperson of CICC Jia Cheng Investment Management Co., Led. (4 42 f A%
BEE AR/ ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China International Capital
Corporation Limited. Prior to joining China International Capital Corporation
Limited, she was a director in the investment banking department of Credit
Suisse First Boston in New York and Hong Kong from August 1995 to March
2002. Ms. Chen obtained a master degree in Business Administration in 1995
from Yale University. From August 2009 to September 2012, Ms. Chen has
been a director of Zhejiang Beingmate Scientific Industrial Trade Share Co.,
Led. ({*ﬁ{lﬁ R 2R T8 e A PR A ), a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 002570). From August 2011 to December 2013,
Ms. Chen was a non-executive director of Freetech Road Recycling Technology
(Holdings) Limited (22 B FHAERHE (SEB) AR ), a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 06888). From
December 2010 to November 2013, Ms. Chen was a director of GI Technologies
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (SR (AL =) By 2 F) ), a company listed on the
growth enterprise market of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300309).
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. LIU Chang-Tzong (BI¥5%), aged 58, was appointed as an independent

non-executive Director of the Company since 17 September 2013. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. Liu graduated from Chien-Hsing Industrial College (now

known as Chien-Hsing University of Science and Technology) in 1975. Mr.

SR A1 A BRZA 7 ) from May 1988 to July 1990, and then as a national sales
manager at Taiwan Nestlé Led. ( é(%%;ﬁﬂﬁﬁl\ IR F] ) from August 1990
to October 1995. Mr. Liu subsequently worked at Nestlé China Led. (F 5% (1
Bl ) BRR/A ) as the director of national sales from November 1995 to June
2002, and then at Nestlé Purina (Shanghai) Ltd (L@%%%fﬂuﬁ% et A fR
/AWl ) as executive general manager and director from July 2002 to May 2006.
Mr. Liu was last employed by Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corporation
from July 2006 to February 2012, and served as executive vice president of the

convenient food division and was chairman of North China before departure.

Mr. CHEUNG Yui Kai Warren (IR% ), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 17 September
2013. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Cheung graduated from University of Southern Queensland of Australia with
a bachelor’s degree in business and has more than 20 years of corporate finance
experience. Mr. Cheung held management positions of corporate finance in
several financial corporations such as Standard Chartered Asia Limited, Standard
Chartered Australia Limited, ABN AMRO Asia Corporate Finance Limited,
SMBC Nikko Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and Ping An of China Capital
(Hong Kong) Company Limited. Currently, he is the Managing Director and
Head of Investment Banking Division of Great Wall Pan Asia International
Investment Company Limited. Mr. Cheung is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. From June 2006 to July 2011, Mr.
Cheung served as an independent non-executive director of Hisense Kelon
Electrical Holdings Company Limited (stock code : 00921.HK and 000921.5Z),
a company listed on both The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Mr. WANG Longgen (E # ), aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 17 September 2013. He is also
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee Mr. Wang was qualified as a senior
economist by the Shanghai Economics (Circulation) Senior Professional and
Technical Title Qualification Evaluation Committee in 1995. Mr. Wang
graduated from Air Force Political College of the People’s Liberation Army
of China in economics and management in 1999. Mr. Wang also received
a master’s degree in economics from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics in 1999. From May 1979 to June 1989, Mr. Wang worked at
Huangpu District Tobacco & Wine Co., Led. (#IH I/ /A 7] ) and Huangpu
District Commerce Commission (E{% EH¥ZES ) From June 1989 to
March 1991, Mr. Wang served as the deputy director-general of Huangpu
District Industrial and Commercial Administration Bureau ( i [ T 7§47
HILJR)). Subsequently, from March 1991 to October 1996, Mr. Wang served
as the deputy director-general, director-general and then deputy secretary of
the Chinese Communist Party Committee of Huangpu District Industrial and
Commercial Administration Bureau (E{ﬁ RN ﬂmﬁﬁ) From October
1996 to June 1999, Mr. Wang was the director-general and then deputy
secretary of the Chinese Communist Party Committee of Huangpu District
Economic and Trade Commission (2 1 [ 48 7§ & 5 & B ). From June
1999 to April 2011, Mr. Wang served as vice chairman, president and deputy
secretary of the party committee in Shanghai New World (Group) Co., Ltd., and

chairman and secretary of the party committee from April 2011 onwards.

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
ABEBRERERLT



RS

BRA G > 400 > ARMABIRE . ARASE
AT B N B BRSBTS — T4 H
MO EREH T ER - R oFFFRER
LA BEE R B > B Bl BB A B
(AR e == UK IEE N 3R YN Y L
S R L I A L L R
() T o A LB BROEER — UL A&
AZ AR L HERE (42 ) 28 Al i i —F F % 4F
TH AR - LA - BRSEER %
FNE=AEET RO R AL RN
NEBRBMATHEE « BOEAER —F— =4
— A B Z R B -

B Lt 445 AEMAIAE . FTEAR
AL M o Bl R UL AR R
REBH B @ at SEAR R - Bt R
—NIARERBEFEER > Rt EEN
R Lt T e R A e e B o R
—INEFLAZZFFTFET A ot
AR TR T AL TR A BR2 7]t al > BN
BB TR E st 24 - B R Bm R — 2R RAE
+ oA E CEE AR MR R
TELG R A Al B B AL o PR L R R
FEE-ARZZF)E+AMMEL LEYD
THEARA AR &M RATBT
fE o B LR ZFFAE+— A IMAARER
AR AR o v [ 452 2 I 2 ) K R 4 9 5 4
B o B T T AR EEEB -

8RR RE g

Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHEN Lei (Bi##), aged 40, is a vice president of the Group and is in
charge of the Group’s administration and human resources. Mr. Chen received
a certificate in foreign affairs secretary in 1995 and graduated from Shanghai
International Studies University (L FAINEIFEREE) in 2001 with a bachelor’s
degree in English language and literature. Mr. Chen received a master degree
in Business Administration in 2004 from the MBA program jointly organized
by the Shanghai Maritime University (_F¥# 85 K5) and the Maastricht
School of Management of the Netherlands O T P R BB By M,
Chen worked for Shanghai Huili Group Company Limited (_ 18 [ RE(EE [H) 2>
H]) from July 1995 and joined Nanpu as an assistant to the general manager in
May 2000. Mr. Chen was promoted to the position of deputy general manager
of Nanpu in March 2009 in charge of human resources and office administration
matters. Mr. Chen was appointed to his current position in the Group in
January 2013.

Ms. LU Ying (FER), aged 44, is a vice president of the Group and is
primarily responsible for the Group’s financial operations. Ms. Lu received a
bachelor’s degree in accounting in 1994 from Changchun Taxation College
(%%*ﬁﬁ%% B%). Ms. Lu received her accountant qualifications in 1996 and
became a non-practising member of the Shanghai Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in 2009. From July 1989 to December 2000, Ms. Lu worked at
Jilin Chemical Industrial Co. Led. (FH WAL LR H FE/A\@) in the accounts
department, and was promoted to the position of chief accountant before her
departure. Ms. Lu then served as the financial manager at Petro China East
China Refining & Marketing Taicang Company (H B 1 #E HU{b T HLgH &
KB /AF]) from December 2000 to March 2002. Ms. Lu served as a deputy
general manager in charge of finance and administration at Shanghai Miaoshi
Dairy Co., Led. (R LFEFRA ) from January 2003 to October
2008. Ms. Lu joined the Group in November 2008 as the financial controller for
Tenwow Group, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. She was

appointed to her current position in August 2010.
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Mr. DONG Chen (#JR), aged 40, is a vice president of the Group
and is responsible for the marketing and sales of the Group’s non-alcoholic
beverages. Mr. Dong graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (- 3¢ % K
) in 1994 with a bachelor’s degree in nuclear reactor engineering. Mr. Dong
served as the general manager of Shanghai Tropicana Beverages Co., Led. ( 1
Al h R S OB PR A ) from January 2000 to March 2009. Mr. Dong joined
the Group in January 2010 as the chairman of Shanghai Tenwow Tea Co., Ltd.
(i R HEAR A BR/A A ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Dong also served as deputy general manager concurrently in Nanpu since

April 2011. He was appointed to his present position in January 2013.

Mr. CHENG Jiliang (FRZ K ), aged 51, is a vice president of the Group and
is responsible for the Group's overall administration and human resources. Mr.
Cheng graduated from Shanghai Television University (| %5 # K2 ) with
an associate degree in auditing in 1989. Mr. Cheng also studied operations
management at Shanghai University of Finance and Economics (- 1 B 8 K
) between May and August 1992. Mr. Cheng served as the assistant to the
general manager of Shanghai Hongkou District Fruit and Groceries Company
(@A LN [T L /N 7)) (later known as Shanghai Yedachang (Group)
Holding Company ( F 1 ZE K & £ [)) from August 1989 to October 2000.
Mr. Cheng joined the Group in February 2001 as a plant manager of Shanghai
Tenwow Food Co., Led. (_F K BEmA FR 23 7l ) (now known as Tenwow
Food (Group) Co., Led. (K 1B & il (5 B)A R 2 7)), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. He then served as the chairman of Tenwow (Fujian)
Food, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, from June 2005 to March
2011 before becoming the vice president of Tenwow Group, an indirect wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company, in April 2011.

Mr. ZHOU Yanwen (%), aged 38, is a vice president of the Group and
is primarily responsible for the marketing and sales of the Group’s food and
snacks. Mr. Zhou graduated from the Wuhan University of Technology (/£
T #K%2) (now known as Wuhan University of Technology (2 % # T. K
£:)) with a bachelor’s degree in management engineering in 1999. Mr. Zhou
received an executive MBA degree from Wuhan University (2 # K £ ) in
2008. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in March 2000 as the general manager of
Wuhan Nanpu. Mr. Zhou also serves as the general manager of several other
jointly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, including the general manager of
Tenwow (Wuhan) Food Co., Led. (K W (2 {%)ﬁ i A R 23 7)) since June
2009, the general manager of Wuhan Tenwow Drinks Co., Led. (H # K I8
o HE OB A BR A A since August 2010, the general manager of Tenwow
(Chonggqing) Food Co., Ltd. (F BT KR & A B F ) since December
2010 and the general manager of Xiangyang Nanpu Food LLC (%% [% i Fd i
i A PR A A A) since November 2011, overseeing the operations and
management of each company. Mr. Zhou was appointed to his present position

in January 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ms. YANG Xuyi (B48), aged 33, is a vice president of the Group
and is primarily responsible for the Group's legal and compliance and
investment matters. Ms. Yang received her bachelor’s degree in law from the
East China Institute of Politics and Law (FEHBUEEL[Z) (now known as the
East China University of Political Science and Law (FEREERE)) in 2003
and obtained the PRC legal practicing certificate in 2006. Ms. Yang worked
from July 2003 to February 2004 as a legal assistant at Shanghai Tong He Law
Offices ( A A AR HS T ) (now known as Shanghai Jiuzhou Tong He
Law Offices (78 JUMIE AN ARG G55 T ). Ms. Yang then worked as a special
assistant to the chief operating officer of Project Solutions International Group
(Shanghai) Led. (SR EIE B & s AR A A) from February
2004 to July 2005. Ms. Yang joined Nanpu in April 2006 as a legal manager,
overseeing legal and compliance and investment matters. Ms. Yang was

appointed to her current position in the Group in January 2013.
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@ Tenwow International Holdings Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Stock Exchange with effect
from the Listing Date. The Board of the Company is committed to achieving

high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are essential
in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of
shareholders, to enhance corporate value and accountability, and to formulate its

business strategies and policies for the development of the Company.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles and
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)

contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is of the view that throughout the period from the Listing Date to
31 December 2013, the Company has complied with all the code provisions as
set out in the CG Code, except for code provision E.1.3 which states that the
Company should arrange for the notice to shareholders to be sent for annual
general meeting at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be sent
at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings. Details in relation
to the above are set out under “Communication with Shareholders and Investor
Relations” in this Corporate Governance Report. The Company will continue
to review and enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure that it will
continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code and the rising expectations

of the shareholders and investors.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees

Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine members, including five executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive

Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mer. Lin Jianhua, Chairman of the Board and
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Mr. Wang Juewei, Chief Executive Officer and
member of the Remuneration Committee

Mr. Lam Hang Boris, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary

Mzr. Yeung Yue Ming

Ms. Au Lai Hang

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Chen Shirley Shiyou

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong, member of the Audit Committee,

the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren, Chairman of the Audit Committee
Mr. Wang Longgen, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and

member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed

“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 80 to 87 of this annual report.
None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Lin
Jianhua and Mr. Wang Juewei, respectively. The Chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the Board. The
Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business development and
daily management and operations generally. Their respective responsibilities are

clearly defined and set out in writing.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Since the Listing Date up to 31 December 2013, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with
one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors

are independent.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors
shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code
provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment
and that every director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be

subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
is engaged by a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of 3 years

commencing from the Listing Date.

All Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation once every
three years and any new director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders
at the first general meeting or next annual general meeting after appointment

pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association.

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board
and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions objectively in the

interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective

functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company.
The Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense for discharging their

duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them
and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each Director to

perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant operational matters
of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of the

Company are delegated to the management.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors are regularly kept up-to-date with the legal and regulatory
developments, and business and market changes to facilitate the discharge of

their responsibilities.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements. Such induction shall be supplemented by visits
to the Company’s key plant sites and meetings with senior management of the

Company where appropriate.

Directors are encouraged to patticipate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. They
are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expense.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading

material on relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.

During the year under review, a training session has been organized by the
Company to Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren and Mr. Wang Longgen (independent
non-executive Directors) on briefings and updates of the business of the
Company. Mr. Lam Hang Boris (executive Director) has attended a seminar
on Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting and Updates on the New
Companies Ordinance Rewrite organized by professional advisor. Ms. Chen
Shirley Shiyou (non-executive Director) has also attended seminars on New
Listing Regime in Hong Kong, Macro-economic Analysis, Annual Compliance
Training on Anti-money Laundering, and seminar on case analysis of H Shares

initial public offering.

In addition, all the Directors, namely Mr. Lin Jianhua, Mr. Wang Juewei, Mr.
Lam Hang Boris, Mr. Yeung Yue Ming, Ms. Au Lai Hang, Ms. Chen Shirley
Shiyou, Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong, Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren and Mr. Wang
Longgen have read materials including a guide on directors” duties, disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules, Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, Corporate Governance Code, directors’ duties under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance and Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and

Share Repurchases provided by professional advisor.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Commicttee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to the Company’s shareholders upon

request.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 17 September 2013 with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules
and Code Provision C.3 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee comprises three members who are all independent non-
executive Directors with one of whom possessing the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
members are Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren (chairman), Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong
and Mr. Wang Longgen.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing
the financial information and reporting process, internal control procedures and
risk management system, audit plan and relationship with external auditor,
and arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise, in confidence,
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or

other matters of the Company.

Since the Listing Date up to 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee held
one meeting to discuss the audit plan for the year ended 2013 of the Company,
the scope of the audit, the audit objectives, obligations of different parties,
communication plan with the external auditor, and internal control and risk
management procedures. The Audit Committee had also met with the external

auditor to review the financial information of the Company.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 17 September 2013 with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and Code Provision B.1 of the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, with a majority of
independent non-executive Directors. The members are Mr. Wang Longgen
(chairman) and Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong (independent non-executive Directors),

and Mr. Wang Juewei (executive Director).

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management, the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding

his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has met once since the Listing Date up to the
date of this annual report to review and make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management and other related

matters.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 17 September 2013 with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision A.5 of the
CG Code.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, with the majority
being independent non-executive Directors. The members are Mr. Lin Jianhua
(chairman), (executive Director), and Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong and Mr. Wang

Longgen, (independent non-executive Directos).

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of directors, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning of directors, and assessing

the independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take
into account various aspects set out in the Board diversity policy, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the

Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character, qualifications,
experience, independence and other relevant criteria necessary to complement
the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before

making recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has met once since the Listing Date up to the
date of this annual report to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and to
consider the qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the
annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee considered that sufficient

diversity has been maintained in the Board.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG

Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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E e Y TR A S ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

KEFRELTHPEE " F—=+_H The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board Committee
=t —HIEWMBRTHNERFSREFRE G meetings and the general meeting of the Company held since the Listing Date

E Y& /NN R A € o) S up to 31 December 2013 is set out in the table below:
I/ ki
Attendance/Number of Meetings
i i
2 Him ® BERE  RHKE
ZEE ZEE ZEE Annual  Extraordinary
#FHH  Nomination Remuneration Audit General General
EHUA Name of Director Board ~ Committee ~ Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
liSet Lin Jianhua M 0/0 N1 AT 0/0 11
N/A N/A
TH# Wang Juewei 202 A 0/0 11 0/0 1/1
N/A
W Lam Hang Boris 0 R b 1 0/0 1
N/A N/A
H%ish Yeung Yue Ming 0 Nl AR N 0/0 11
N/A N/A N/A
2Ll Au Lai Hang bl NER NER i 0/0 11
N/A N/A N/A
Bt Chen Shitley Shiyou M i by Ky 0/0 1
N/A N/A N/A
B Liu Chang-Tzong 12 0/0 0/0 1 0/0 1
REHE Cheung Yui Kai Warren 112 N Nl 1 0/0 11
N/A N/A
THMR Wang Longgen 12 0/0 0/0 1 0/0 11

B b H A E 2 AER R H > R IR The Chairman has also held one meeting with the non-executive Directors
UATESF UL B AT S (R (including independent non-executive Directors) without the presence of
MATHSR) HH— KGR - executive Directors since the Listing Date up to the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILTY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial

statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent

Auditor’s Report on pages 101 to 102.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company in respect of
audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2013
amounted to RMB3,300,000 and RMB130,000, respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for

the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:

li&7:%:p2] oA A E
Service Category Fees Paid/Payable
A B U — R AR 3,300,000 7T
Annual Audit Services — Final audit RMB3,300,000
ERA e — HAb I AR s A B 130,000 78
Non-audit Services — Other non-audit service RMB130,000
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group, including financial, operational and compliance controls, risk
management functions, the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function. An independent consulting firm was also engaged
by the Group to review the design and implementation of the remediated
controls in relation to the issuance and discounting of bank acceptance notes
at Tenwow Group, Wuhan Nanpu and Ningbo Contemporary Trading for the
period from September 2013 to September 2014. Please refer to “Report of the
Directors - NON-COMPLIANT BILL FINANCING “.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board has appointed Mr. Lam Hang Boris as its Company Secretary in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and in compliance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules. Since the Listing Date, Mr. Lam has
complied with the professional training requirement as set out in Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2013.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are proposed
for each substantially separate issue at shareholder meetings, including the
election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward at shareholder
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after

each shareholder meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or
more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by

the Company.

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association of the Company, any
member who wishes to propose a person other than a retiring director at a
general meeting for election as director of the Company may lodge a notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for election as director and
a notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected at the Head
Office at Room 2001, 20th Floor, World Trade Centre, 280 Gloucester Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong or at the Registration Office of the Company at
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17¢th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
period for lodgment of the notices will commence no earlier than the day after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to the Company may

be given will be at least 7 days.

Shareholders who wish to put forward other proposals at general meetings may
follow the procedures set out on page 98 to request the Company to convene
an extraordinary general meeting for the transaction of business specified in the

requisition.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board of the Company by sending
written enquiries to the Company at the following address. The Company will

not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the

following:
Address: The Company Sectretary
Room 2001, 20th Floor, World Trade Centre,
280 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2808 1972
Fax: (852) 2808 1721
Email: enquiry@tenwowfood.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may
be) to the above address apart from other specified address, if any, and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.

Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. The Chairman of the
Board, all other members of the Board including non-executive Directors,
independent non-executive Directors, and the chairmen of all Board committees
(or their delegates) will make themselves available at the annual general

meetings to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

According to code provision E.1.3 of the CG Code, the Company should arrange
for the notice to shareholders to be sent for annual general meetings at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business
days for all other general meetings. The notice to shareholders of the Company
for the extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) of the Company held on 30
December 2013 was sent to the shareholders less than 10 clear business days
before the EGM as stipulated in code provision E.1.3 of the CG Code due to the
reason that more time than expected was required to prepare and finalise the
information to be contained in the circular and notice convening the EGM and
there was an urgent need to convene the EGM for the shareholders to pass the
resolutions therein before 31 December 2013. The Company will ensure that
sufficient notice to shareholders will be given for its future general meetings in

accordance with code provision E.1.3 of the CG Code.

Pursuant to a special resolution of the shareholders passed on 19 August 2013,
the amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of the
Company were adopted with effect from the Listing Date. Save as disclosed
above, during the year ended 31 December 2013, there was no significant

change in the memorandum and articles of association of the Company.

The amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of the
Company are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of

the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BRERAKE

To the shareholders of Tenwow International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tenwow International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 103 to 216, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statements of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statements for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013,
and of the Group’s consolidated profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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R-F-ZF+"H=+—H
As at 31 December 2013

As at 31 December

R+=A=t+—H
2013 2012
R -EHE ZETH
Note RMB’000  RMB 000

Bt ANBWTTE ARETT

R ASSETS
FETR B & Non-current assets
I - BB KA Property, plant and equipment 6 520,070 501,842
L A IR Land use rights 7 85,734 75,446
WG E Intangible assets 8 9,187 8,843
E A AR E Investments in associates 10 27,190 26,625
R—HEEARMKRE Investments in a joint venture 11 369,186 340,177
IR AE T 13 B Deferred income tax assets 22 13,475 10,940
1,024,842 963,873
B Current assets
FE Inventories 13 742,163 622,991
B 5 B oAt RE N S IE Trade and other receivables 14 1,916,835 1,460,219
2 PR B Restricted cash 15 118,287 98,685
B4 kB EEEY Cash and cash equivalents 15 1,077,535 187,886
3,854,820 2,369,781
HERME Total assets 4,879,662 3,333,654
RS EQUITY
[iF&N Share capital 16 164,634 8
e A Y A Share premium 16 1,385,486 189,534
HoAh it Other reserves 18 168,621 165,045
TR B 2R Retained earnings 17 642,039 526,345
2,360,780 880,932
FEe b 5 Non-controlling interests 46,262 43,054
T £ HA A Total equity 2,407,042 923,986
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

e
As at 31 December 2013

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2013 2012
R -EHE ZE TN
Note RMB’000  RMB 000

i3 ANBWTE ARHTT

g LIABILITIES
T FLH Non-current liabilities
8 Borrowings 21 88,100 97,700
AL TS5 & Deferred income tax liabilities 22 11,871 14,481
R A B AE A Deferred income on government grants 19 25,420 27,657
125,391 139,838
TR R4 Current liabilities
Z 5y K H A £ 3K0A Trade and other payables 20 1,039,984 1,316,165
RIHA Bir 1555 & 4 Current income tax liabilities 73,590 51,685
EEd Borrowings 21 1,230,740 898,990
O A B AR A S AR B 7 Current portion of deferred income
on government grants 19 2,915 2,990
2,347,229 2,269,830
AR Total liabilities 2,472,620 2,409,668
T J% B AR AR A Total equity and liabilities 4,879,662 3,333,654
FREE E Net current assets 1,507,591 99,951
& AR E R A Total assets less current liabilities 2,532,433 1,063,824

112 F 216 B WM GE B A A B FS ok i s The notes on pages 112 to 216 are an integral part of these consolidated

A o financial statements.

FBI3ENTEMMBERECHEFGR & These financial statements on pages 103 to 111 were approved by the Board of
—WEZA TR HME TRREFEE Directors on 25 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf.
Z o

Director Director

HH g

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Balance Sheet

R-F-ZF+"H=+—H
As at 31 December 2013

As at 31 December
mrt+=HA=+—H
2013 2012

e

Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Bt ANRHFFL ARETE
R ASSETS
FETR B & Non-current assets
TR —THIBAY B 2w BB Investments in a subsidiary 9 572,312 572,312
I — i i J 2 ) ) K Loan to a subsidiary 9 1,293,805 180,000
1,866,117 752,312
B Current assets
1] — i P ) ) K Loan to a subsidiary 9 5,209 8,534
oAb ik Other receivables 8 3,411
e LB 5 EY Cash and cash equivalents 15 256,690 159
261,907 12,104
HEAE Total assets 2,128,024 764,416
TR EQUITY
Jie A Share capital 16 164,634 8
e A Y A Share premium 16 1,385,486 189,534
H A fre s Other reserves 18 554,160 571,312
Z5MEEE Accumulated losses 17 (21,569) (4,702)
T2 HA A Total equity 2,082,711 756,152
HB Current liabilities
JREARH B 2 =) kTR Amount due to subsidiaries 9 45313 8,264
F AR Total liabilities 45,313 8,264
RE2s I B AR Total equity and liabilities 2,128,024 764,416
& Net current assets 216,594 3,840
AR s 8 4 £ Total assets less current liabilities 2,082,711 756,152
1122 216 H W MGt A T 75 St o 1 R The notes on pages 112 to 216 are an integral part of these consolidated
A o financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

WE-Z—=ZF A=A HILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Year ended 31 December
BRE+H=+—HILEE

2013 2012
R -ZE CFE-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
i3 ANREFL ARETE
A Revenue 5 4,724,888 4,252,081
S A Cost of sales 24 (3,988,435)  (3,708,888)
EA Gross profit 736,453 543,193
I3 # A Distribution costs 24 (156,411) (121,635)
(it 53 Administrative expenses 24 (140,300) (93,815)
HAbA — 48 Other income — net 23 23,139 9,550
HAb s 18 Other losses (8,556) (2,817)
-l Operating profit 454,325 334,476
HUA Finance income 8,871 7,655
RS AR Finance costs (91,334) (67,374)
A AR — YR Finance costs — net 26 (82,463) (59,719)
JRE A g ) i ) Share of profit of associates 10 565 1,057
JRE A — 1 58 8 D i Share of profit of a joint venture 27 30,459 25,613
Wik i 255 i ) Profit before income tax 402,886 301,427
RES b Income tax expense 28 (105,501) (71,082)
4 B ¥R Profit for the year 297,385 230,345
Fo At 2 T W A Other comprehensive income
HEREEENE Items that may be subsequently reclassified to
Hall9EH profit or loss
— AT R 2 — Currency translation differences (11,927) (3,112)
PR NS Total comprehensive income for the year 285,458 227,233
A7 BE Y ) B SR S Total profit attributable to:
/NG ETES X DN Equity holders of the Company 286,304 220,758
T R 45 Non-controlling interests 11,081 9,587
297,385 230,345

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
A ey

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Year ended 31 December

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
EE VN 1) Total comprehensive income attributable to:
BATRERTEE N Equity holders of the Company 274,377 217,646
FRig ) Non-controlling interests 11,081 9,587
285,458 227,233
AN T RERS R N AL 52 Earnings per share for profit attributable
) 5 fe 2L ) to equity holders of the Company
— HEAR R IR AL — Basic and diluted earnings per share
(AR N R 51157 (expressed in RMB cents per share) 29 17 15
i35 Dividends 30 242,891 114,240

F112 R 216 MG A 55 A B R BB The notes on pages 112 to 216 are an integral part of these consolidated

B o financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RE=B—ZHF A LR

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BERALAEGRAN

Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium feserves  earnings Total  inerests Equity
BeA  BARE b RERA dir ks ERAR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB 000
ANRETFE NRETE ARETT ARETLE ARBTL AREFT AREFL
(Note 16) ~ (Note 16) ~ (Note 18) ~ (Note 17)
(ftzk16)  (Hakre)  (Makis)  (MfE1n)
“ER-TH—-H-HER Balance at 1 January 2012 - — 137437 442159 579,596 79579 658975
gal Comprehensive income
AR A Profit for the year — = — 2078 220758 9587 230345
LR ETION Other comprehensive income for the year - — (3,112) — (3,112) - (3,112)
ey Lien Total comprehensive income — — B,112) 220758 217,646 9587 227,033
EEEAY Transactions with owners
BT Issuance of new shares 8 189,534 — — 189,542 — 189542
e} Dividends — - — (42400 (114240)  (9651)  (123,891)
YR £ e £ Acquisition of non-controlling interests - — 8,388 — 8,388 (32,610)  (24,222)
R — IR A Dissolution of a subsidiary — — — — — (3,651) (3,651)
U EER TR Total transactions with owners,
TS B recognised directly in equity 8 18953 8388  (114240) 83690 (45912 37,718
B Appropriation to statutory reserve - - 22332 (22,332) - - -
“Z-ZE+ZAZ1—H&# Balance at 31 December 2012 8 189534 165045 526345 880932 43054 923986

Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BRRMAATRERSFAA
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total interests Equity
WA BkEE SR REERA G 21T T ok
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000
ANRITFE ARFTLE ARWTE ARWFL ARBFL AREFLZ AREFL
(Note 16) ~ (Note 16) ~ (Note 18)  (Note 17)
(Wite)  (Wkie)  (Wit1s)  (Whkr)
“E-ZE-f-RER Balance at 1 January 2013 8 189534 165045 526345 880,932 43054 923986
Fal Comprehensive income
R A Profit for the year — — — 286304 286,304 11,081 297,385
EREAMARRA Other comprehensive income for the year — — (11,927) — (11,927) — (11,927)
Frey Lien Total comprehensive income — —  (11927) 286304 274377 11,081 285458
EYYEALY Transactions with owners
BT Capitalisation fssue 119,002 (119,092) = = = = =
BTk Issuance of new shates 45,53 1,315,044 — — 1,360,578 — 1,360,578
4} Dividends — - —  (157,0000  (157,000) (7873)  (164,873)
HRARB SRR Pre-IPO share award scheme

— R LIRS B0 — value of current employee services — — 1,803 — 1,893 — 1,893
TR A A - Total transaction with owners,

T35 P e recognised directly in equity 164,626 1,195,952 1,893 (157,0000 1,205,471 (7873) 1,197,598
BREEEERME Appropriation to statutoty feserve - - 13,610 (13,610) - - -
“Z-ZHEFZAStASR  Balance at 31 December 2013 164634 1385486 168,621 642,039 2360780 46,262 2,407,042
112 % 216 H WY 21 A 455 B HS 3 35 Y Bk The notes on pages 112 to 216 are an integral part of these consolidated
A o financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE—=h L= = L

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Year ended 31 December
BRE+H=+—HILEE

2013 2012
—F = R4
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WfaE ANBETFL AR¥TT
BT B AR Cash flows from operating activities
FR S8 i B 4 Cash used in operations 31 (263,167) (95,087)
A&l Interest received 6,324 5,324
EENYREY Income tax paid (88,741) (68,622)
FETRENE & A Net cash outflow from operating activities (345,584) (158,385)
BEWGB B &0 R Cash flows from investing activities
i o Purchase of land use rights (12,015) (4,022)
PRI B3 - R S i Government grants received in relation to
A B B 4 B property, plant and equipment — 3,060
B E Y - R st Purchase of property, plant and equipment (49,251) (64,112)
HEWE BB kM K Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 31 226 1,593
I B AT Acquisition of intangible assets 8 (545) (576)
il — TP A 2 ) ) B A K Payment of cash for dissolution of a subsidiary — (2,454)
T [ i ] 1 5 Loans collected from related parties 33(b)(iii) 7,951 54,866
BT BN 7 1 B Loans granted to related parties 33(b)(iii) — (3,675)
PG TE B 40 A Net cash outflow from investing activities (53,634) (15,320)

@g

Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
RE—% A R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Year ended 31 December
BRE+H=+—HILEE

2013 2012
—F = R4
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
sk ANBETFL AR¥TT
A 5 B P B i A Cash flows from financing activities
BT R AR K Net Proceeds from issuance of new shares 16(iv)&(vi) 1,360,578 181,628
Rl Wi £ P 152K Proceeds from related parties’ borrowings 33(b)(iii) — 10,000
T 252 R O £ 3K Repayment of related parties’ borrowings 33(b)(iii) (14,710) (108,169)
SRAT I R 153K Proceeds from bank borrowings 1,528,080 1,020,890
TR RAT 2K Repayment of bank borrowings (1,205,930) (731,739)
AR Interest paid (91,986) (68,511)
(), i) 52 R o B i (Payments)/receipts of restricted cash (19,602) 25,840
S I e R £ Acquisition of non-controlling interests — (25,422)
AT AN AR R AR S Dividends paid to equity holders
of the Company (257,283) (13,957)
A AR T FE R £ R Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (7,873) (11,610)
G 0 B 4 A\ S Net cash inflow from financing activities 1,291,274 278,950
B4 T B4 558 vy 0 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 892,056 105,245
ERB B BB EY) Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 187,886 82,649
e 2 528 360 1 4 R B SR (I %8 Effece of foreign exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents (2,407) (8)
ERB L RBE&SEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 15 1,077,535 187,886
55112 % 216 EL I M5 5% VA5 R 2% 1 R The notes on pages 112 to 216 are an integral part of these consolidated
gl financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Tenwow International Holdings Limited

1. GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP AND
REORGANISATION

1.1

General information of the Group

Tenwow International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated by Mr Lin Jianhua (the “Controlling Shareholder”)
in the Cayman Islands on 25 August 2011 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands. The Company's ordinary shares were listed on
the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“SEHK”) on 17 September 2013 (the “Listing”). The address of
its registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The Company, an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing,
distribution and trading of beverages, food and snacks and others
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), unless otherwise stated. These financial statements were

approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2014.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—B =S R
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP AND
REORGANISATION (Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation

Prior to the Reorganisation, the Group’s Business was
conducted through Nan Pu International Limited (the “Nan
Pu International”) which is wholly-owned by the Controlling
Shareholder.

In preparation of the Listing, the Group underwent the

reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) which principally involved:

(@)  The Company was incorporated on 25 August 2011, and
on the date of incorporation, 1 ordinary share was allotted
and issued to Reid Services Limited, which was transferred
to Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited (the “Zhi Qun”), an entity
wholly-owned by the Controlling Shareholder on the same

day.

(b)  On 25 August 2011, the Company subscribed for 1 ordinary
share (being the entire equity interests) in Praise Sheen
Limited (the “Praise Sheen”) at par value of US$ 1, which
was incorporated in BVI on 28 July 2011.

() On 24 May 2012, Praise Sheen acquired the entire equity
interests in Nan Pu International from the Controlling
Shareholder at a consideration of HK$253,356,127, which
was settled by issue of 99 shares in Praise Sheen to the

Company at the direction of Controlling Shareholder.

Upon completion of the Reorganisation, the Company became the

holding company of the Group.
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Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company has been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have

been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statement are disclosed in Note 4.

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following standards have been adopted by the Group for
the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1

January 2013 but have no material impact on the Group:

Amendment to HKAS 1, Financial statement presentation’
regarding other comprehensive income. The main change
resulting from these amendments is a requirement for
entities to group items presented in ‘other comprehensive
income’ (OCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially
reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification

adjustments).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements” builds on
existing principles by identifying the concept of control
as the determining factor in whether an entity should be
included within the consolidated financial statements of the
parent company. The standard provides additional guidance
to assist in the determination of control where this is

difficult to assess.

HKERS 11, ‘Joint arrangements’ focuses on the rights and
obligations of the parties to the arrangement rather than its
legal form. There are two types of joint arrangements: joint
operations and joint ventures. Joint operations arise where
the investors have rights to the assets and obligations for the
liabilities of an arrangement. A joint operator accounts for
its share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Joint
ventures arise where the investors have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement; joint ventures are accounted for
under the equity method. Proportional consolidation of joint

arrangements is no longer permitted.

HKFRS 12, ‘Disclosures of interests in other entities’
includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests
in other entities, including joint arrangements, associates,

structured entities and other off balance sheet vehicles.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Up to the date of issue of this report, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘“HKICPA™)
has issued following new standards, amendments and
interpretations which are relevant to the Group’s operations
but are not yet effective for the annual accounting period
beginning after 1 January 2013 and also have not been early

adopted by the Group:

Effective for annual

periods beginning
on or after
Amendment to HKAS 32 1 January 2014
“Financial instruments:
Presentation” — on asset and
liability offsetting
Amendments to HKFRS 10, 1 January 2014
HKFRS12 and HKAS 27
“Consolidation for Investment
entities”
Amendment to HKAS 36 1 January 2014
“Impairment of assets” on
recoverable amount disclosures
HK(IFRIC) 21 “Levies” 1 January 2014
HKEFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 1 January 2015
HKEFRS 7 and HKERS 9 1 January 2015

(Amendments) “Mandatory
effective date and transition

disclosures”

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—B =h == LA

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of these
standards, amendments and interpretations on the financial
statements of the Group. The adoption of the above is currently
not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements

of the Group other than the disclosure changes.

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the

Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net

assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Tenwow International Holdings Limited

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from

such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or
as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,

and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the

income statement (Note 2.10).

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to

conform with the group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without

change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying amount of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals

to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in OCI in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously

recognised in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Tenwow International Holdings Limited

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

Consolidation (Continued)
2.3.1 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiaty in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including

goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at
cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise
the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investments in associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the
cost of the associate and the Group's share of the net fair value of
the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as

goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to profit or loss where

appropriate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

24

Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in OCI is recognised in OCI with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired.
If ¢his is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share

of profit of associates in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are

recognised in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are classified
as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them
to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the

equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in OCI. The Group’s investments in joint ventures
include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference between
the cost of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses in a
joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred

obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive Directors that makes

strategic decisions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s presentation
currency. Other than the Company and subsidiaries located
outside PRC mainland, whose functional currency is Hong
Kong Dollar, all other subsidiaries’ functional currency is
RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment

hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income within
“finance income or cost”. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income within “other gains/(losses) — net”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities

(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary

economy) that have a functional currency different from the

presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(@)

(if)

(iif)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet;

income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rates on the

dates the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation differences are

recognised in OCI.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the

acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and

liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing

rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised

in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Property, plant and equipment

Construction-in-progress (the “CIP”) represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction or pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes the costs of construction and acquisition and capitalised
borrowing costs. No depreciation is made on CIP until such time
as the relevant assets are completed and ready for intended use.
When the assets concerned are available for use, the costs are
transferred to property, plant and equipment and depreciated in

accordance with the policy as stated below.

Property, plant and equipment include buildings, machinery and
equipment, vehicles and other equipments. All property, plant
and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation and
impairment (if any). Historical cost includes expenditure that is

directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in

which they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

29

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 16-30 years
— Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
— Vehicles 3-10 years
— Other equipments 2-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than

its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“Other gains/(losses) — net” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Land use rights

All land in Mainland China is state-owned or collectively-owned
and no individual land ownership right exists. The Group acquired
the rights to use certain land. The premiums paid for such right
are treated as prepayment for operating lease and recorded as land
use rights, which are amortised over the lease periods of 20 to 50

years using the straight-line method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquitee

over the fair value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment

level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense

and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. The cost are amortised over their estimated

useful lives of 10 years.
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Tenwow International Holdings Limited

() Trademark

Separately acquired trademark is shown at historical cost.
Trademark has finite useful lives and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of trademark

over their estimated useful lives of 5-10 years.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of an

impairment at each reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets

(a)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to maturity investments and available for
sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets held by the Group are loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group's
loans and receivables comprise “trade and other receivables”,
“cash and cash equivalents” and “restricted cash” in the

balance sheet.
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Tenwow International Holdings Limited

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are

carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of

financial assets is impaired.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears

or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Recognition and measurement (Continued)

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market

price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal
of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services provided in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected within one
year, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented

as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments

with original maturities of three months or less.

Restricted cash

Restricted cash represents amounts held by banks, which are not
available for the Group’s use, as securities for issuance of letters of

credit and bank acceptance notes.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the

proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as

non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at

least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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Tenwow International Holdings Limited

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is recognised in equity,

respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the group companies
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to

the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

@

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.
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Tenwow International Holdings Limited

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)  Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group entities in Mainland China participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by relevant
government authorities for its employees in Mainland China
and contribute to these plans based on certain percentage
of the salaries of the employees on a monthly basis, up to
a maximum fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by the
relevant government authorities. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations
payable to all existing and future retired employees under

these plans.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement

benefits beyond the contributions made.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Housing benefits

Employees of the Group entities in Mainland China are
entitled to participate in government-sponsored housing
funds. The Group contributes to these funds based on
certain percentages of the salaries of the employees on a
monthly basis, up to a maximum fixed monetary amount,
as stipulated by the relevant government authorities. The
Group’s liability in respect of these funds is limited to the
contribution payable in each period. Contributions to the

funds are expensed as incurred.

2.23 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based compensation
plans, under which the entity receives services from employees
as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the

fair value of the options granted:

. including any market performance conditions (for

example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);

and

J including the impact of any non-vesting conditions

(for example, the requirement for employees to save).

Annual Report 2013

@

2013 FEHE



B 25 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2

@3

TR BRI (9

2.23 DA 2 BB B S (40)

(a)

52 5 (#)

I i 355 2 B RS R A L 4%
A B T T AT HE A S AR
HE B o BB
TEE IR R RERE > 1
(R 1 0 45 5 T A A T AT HE
CRERIEEIHIE

BEb » AR - BT
ATREAERE Y A 2 AR IR
B o HUCE B A AL
{EL A R 5 A 0 2 1
FI 3512 50 7 B 1 o £
i o

FEREAR s HR - SR Bk E
i 355 R BUR RS BB 7T
T AT R IR
f il 5t o 3 8 AE T SR
W B RS AT (A ) B
S MR R 1 AR T
#

TE AT (IR AL R BT
T IBE o WO B A SR AT BR AT
o] 45 it 8 2 o A $8 A B
A (T ) A A B -

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the

specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore the
grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between service

commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a

corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)

and share premium.
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(b)  Share-based payment transactions among group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a

corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

2.24 Financial guarantee liabilities

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised in respect of the
financial guarantee provided by the Group to the borrowings to

related parties and third parties.

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial guarantee liabilities. After initial recognition, such
contracts are measured at the higher of the present value of the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation

and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Financial guarantee liabilities are derecognised from the balance
sheet when, and only when, the obligation specified in the contract

is discharged or cancelled or expired.
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Tenwow International Holdings Limited

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25

2.26

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the

provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivables for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within

the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities as described below. The Group bases
its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each

arrangement.

(i)  Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when the
risk and reward of the goods has been transferred to the
customer, which is usually at the date when a group entity
has delivered products to the customer and the customer
has accepted the products, the collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assumed and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the

products.

(i)  Rental income from properties is recognised on a straight-

line basis over the periods of the respective leases.

(iii) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is

recognised using the original effective interest rate.

(iv) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive

payment is established.
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Tenwow International Holdings Limited

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27

2.28

2.29

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received

and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are

intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related

assets.

Operating Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders or directors

where appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign currency risk, cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of
the transactions denominated and settled in RMB.
However, the Group has certain trade and non-trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
non-trade payables and borrowings denominated in
HKS$ and US$, which is exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. Details of the Group’s trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
payables, borrowings are disclosed in Notes 14, 15,

20 and 21 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,
the Group has not hedged its foreign exchange risk
because the exposure, after netting off the assets and
liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk is not

significant.
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Tenwow International Holdings Limited

b

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(1)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for cash and cash equivalent and restricted
cash, the Group has no other significant interest-
bearing assets. The Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. Management does not anticipate
significant impact on interest-bearing assets resulted
from the changes in interest rates because the interest
rates of cash and cash equivalent and restricted cash

are not expected to change significantly.

The Group's interest-rate risk mainly arises from
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group does
not hedge its cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk. The interest rates and terms of repayments of

borrowings are disclosed in Note 21.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, if interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 10% higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the net profit for the
year would have been approximately RMB6,538,000
lower/higher respectively (31 December 2012:
RMB4,589,000), as a result of higher/lower interest

expenses on floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises
from cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade and
other receivables, as well as credit exposures to customers,
including outstanding receivables and committed
transactions. Certain Group's sales are settled in cash or by
its customers on delivery of goods. Credit sales are made
only to selected customers with good credit history. The
Group has policies in place to ensure that trade receivables

are followed up on a timely basis.
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b

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of
RMB545,121,000 were due from Nan Pu Food (Group)
Co., Ltd. (the “Nan Pu”), a joint venture of the Group (31
December 2012: RMB368,399,000). Nan Pu has a history
of making profits and the directors of the Group assessed
there is no credit risk in relation to the trade receivables

from Nan Pu.

Other than the receivables from Nan Pu, the Group has
no significant concentration risk. The carrying amounts of
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade and other
receivables included in the consolidated financial statements
represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in

relation to its financial assets.

At 31 December 2013, all cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash were placed in highly reputable and sizable
banks and financial institutions without significant credit

risk.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Cash flow is managed at group level by head office finance
department (“Group Finance”). Group Finance monitors
the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure that it has
sufficient cash to meet operational needs at all times and
does not breach borrowing limits or covenants on any of
its borrowing facilities. Group Finance usually takes into
consideration the Group's debt financing plans, covenant
compliance and compliance with internal balance sheet ratio

targets.

Group Finance mainly invests surplus cash in time deposits,

with appropriate maturities.
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3 WMBHEBAE 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 WEEREE 8 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c)  EhMHE R (4]) (¢)  Liquidity risk (Continued)
TREEMAE HEGHE The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
HAE I 5 BA R > i BEAR B financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
1o 1) $ AR 1 35 A 42 [ T A on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
A SRl B EEIT T o AR contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
T B 8 1) 4 A 5 A A R B B table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

BEhis -

—HER
Within —EWE “EAF st
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total

ANEHTT AR¥FT ARKETT ARKTTL
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

RZZ—"H  Asat 3] December 2012

+=A=+—H
B Borrowings 898,990 59,550 38,150 996,690
ZAMEFFIE  Tnterest payments on borrowings 42,107 4,775 257 47,139
B M AL Trade and other payables
JEA B E 1,316,165 - — 1,316,165
BEFCHE R Financial guarantee (Note 36)
(FitiE 36) 50,000 — — 50,000
2,307,262 64,325 38407 2,409,994
RZZ—Z%#  Asat 31 December 2013
e
EFN Borrowings 1,230,740 88,100 — 1,318,840
YAHEFHFRE  Interest payments on borrowings 47,214 1,978 — 49,192
FV YR Trade and other payables
JE 130 1,039,984 — — 1,039,984
2,317,938 90,078 — 2,408,106

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for equity holders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity holder, return

capital to equity holders or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total bank
borrowings (including “current and non-current borrowings”
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash. Total capital is calculated as

“equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.

#t+-H=+—H
As at 31 December
—E=E T8
2013 2012
AR ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SRATAG SR AR (W 5T 21) Total bank borrowings (Note 21) 1,318,840 996,690
W Bl e S Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15(b))
(B 3E 15(b)) (1,077,535) (187,886)
3% MR B 4 (Note 15(a)) Restricted cash (Note 15(a)) (118,287) (98,685)
B Net debt 123,018 710,119
AR 405 Total equity 2,407,042 923,986
BA LG Total capital 2,530,060 1,634,105
BEARABILER Gearing ratio 5% 43%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets, including
trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
current borrowings, are assumed to approximate their fair values
due to their short-term maturities. The carrying values less any
estimated credit adjustments for financial assets with a maturity
of less than one year are a reasonable approximation of their fair

values.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experiences and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(i)  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles. Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets

that have been abandoned or sold.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment and land use rights are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on value-in-use calculations
or market valuations. These calculations require the use of

judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related asset value may not be recoverable;
(ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to
sell or net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value in
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group'’s financial
condition and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected petformance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii) Estimated write-downs of inventories

(iv)

v)

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based on
an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-downs on
inventories are recorded where events or changes in circumstances
that the balances may not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact carrying values of inventories and write-downs of

inventories in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management estimates the provision of impairment
of trade and other receivables by assessing their recoverability.
Provisions are applied to trade and other receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible and require the use of estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
carrying value of trade and other receivable and impairment charge

in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and in Hong
Kong. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are some transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and

provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using tax
rates that are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax assets are realised or the deferred income tax liabilities are
settled. The expected applicable tax rate is determined based on
the enacted tax laws and regulations and the actual situation of the
Group. The management of the Group will revise the expectation
where the intending tax rate is different from the original

expectation.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive
Directors. The executive Directors review the Group’s internal reports
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on the internal reports provided
for review by the Executive Directors. The executive Directors consider
the performance of the Group from a product perspective. The executive
Directors assess the performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of gross profit for the year and for the period which is consistent

with that in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s operations are mainly organised under the following business
segments: own brand products and third party brand products and each
have the segment of non-alcoholic beverages, alcoholic beverages, food

and snacks, others.

The amounts provided to executive Directors with respect to total
assets, total liabilities and capital expenditure are measured in a manner
consistent with that of consolidated financial statements. The executive
Directors review the total assets, total liabilities and capital expenditure
at Group level, therefore no segment information of total assets, total

liabilities and capital expenditure information was presented.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the Group
has determined that business segments be presented as the primary and

only reporting format.
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5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Turnover

The Group’s revenue which represents turnover is as follows:

BETH=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-ZF —E—4
2013 2012
AREFLE ANR¥TT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
— B R 5 — Own Brand Products

TS R Non-alcoholic beverages 427,562 256,286
A SR Alcoholic beverages 238,217 334,929
BEMEER Food and snacks 709,978 571,218
HAth Others 50,990 37,496
1,426,747 1,199,929

— 5B =05 il JLE i — Third Party Brand Products
RS AR Non-alcoholic beverages 57,427 44,498
RS Rt Alcoholic beverages 2,328,926 2,169,940
Tk ER Food and snacks 830,461 775,941
HAth Others 81,327 61,773
3,298,141 3,052,152
#st Total 4,724,888 4,252,081

Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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23 E R () 5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) HHEER (b) Segment information
BE_EF—-—#+-A=1+—H1E The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2012 is
R LR as follows:
B R BN RMER
Own Brand Products Third Party Brand Products
TR Tl
No- EEBH RARER N RAH REEER
alcoholic Alcoholic Food i It alcoholic Alcoholic Food i it it
beverages  beverages  and snacks Others Sub-total ~ beverages  beverages  and snacks Others Sub-total Total

ARBTE ABHTT ARETT ARKTT ARKTT ARETT ARKTT ARETT ARKTT ARKTT ARETT
RMBUIO  RMBOOO  RMBOO)  RMBOO)  RMBUW  RMBUW  RMBUWO  RMBOO  RMBUO)  RMBOW  RMBUW

ABUA  Segment sles 25686 334929 571218 37496 1,199929 4498 2169940 715941 6,775 3052152 4252081
DIHERE  Segmenccostofsales (202764 (83,135 (11221 (8917) Q26031 (9249) (195799  (BLOH)  (54607) (2782851  (3,708888)

AHER Segment gross profit 53,522 51,794 159,997 8579 273,892 5,49 212,001 44885 7166 269301 543,193

BE-Z—=#+"H=1+—HI The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2013 is
FEER A HERIT as follows:
B AT RRER
Own Brand Products ‘Thitd Party Brand Products
R FimhiR
Non- Ml RERZR Non-  [HHR ARAZR
alcoholic  Alcoholic Food Jitt At aleoholic  Aleoholic Food Jitb it EE]
beverages  beverages  and snacks Others ~ Sub-total ~ beverages  beverages  and snacks Others  Sub-total Total

NERTE NRETE NRRTR ARETRE ARKTE ARBTE ARKTE ARETZ ARETE ARRTZ ARWTZ
RMBO00  RMBUW ~ RMBOW  RMBUW  RMBUO  RMBUO)  RMBUW  RMBOW  RMBOW  RMBYUO  RMB'0D

AUA Segment sales 1560 287 709978 50990 1426747 5141 2308926 830461 81327 3298141 4724888
PISHERA  Segmentcostofsales (322065 (182867) (83,176 (9508  (1,027,616) (3,139 (205166  (779903)  (6,116)  (2960819)  (3,988,435)

SHER Segment gross profi 105,497 5350 226802 11482 399,131 4288 217,265 50,558 5211 B3R 736453
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5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

Operating segments results are reconciled to profit before income

o tax as follows:

BET-HA=F+—HIEEE

Year ended 31 December

e e

2013 2012

ANRETFT NRFETT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

4 HEF Segment gross profit 736,453 543,193
I8 A Distribution costs (156,411) (121,635)
i3 Administrative expenses (140,300) (93,815)
HAbg A Other income 23,139 9,550
HoAth s 15 Other losses (8,556) (2,817)
R A Operating profit 454,325 334,476
BB Finance income 8,871 7,655
RS AR Finance costs (91,334) (67,374)
B AR — A Finance costs — net (82,463) (59,719)
JRE Ak B ) 355 A Share of profit of associates 565 1,057
JRE AL — [H] % 2 ) i A1) Share of profit of a joint venture 30,459 25,613
750 1 va2 A Profit before income tax 402,886 301,427

A G2 [ HE T KR A3 ) B 3
H I HL R H 2> FF 8 B 440
B o

WEEZZ—=4F+=H=1—H
IRERE > RAALE—MAEAR
P I A A AR B A 1Y 29.5%
(BE-ZF——HFT+-H=1+—H
IEAERE < 31.4%) o

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

Most of the Group companies are domiciled in the PRC and

majority of the non-current assets are located in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, revenue derived from
Nan Pu, a joint venture of the Group, accounted for 29.5% (for the
year ended 31 December 2012: 31.4%) of the Group's revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

W~ BBkt — AN E 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP

B Bkt
Machinery it ARLE
i & and HE Other Construction Wt
Buildings equipment ~ Vehicles equipments  in progress Total
ANRETFT ANREFT AT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
REZ-ZH—f—H At 1 January 2012
ik Cost 353,458 132,92 31,676 23,836 55,862 395,755
ZatnE Accumulated depreciation (56,622) (27,742) (15,789) (10,705) — (110,858)
R Net book amount 296,836 105,181 15,887 13,131 55,862 484,807
RE-Z—F Year ended 31 December 2012
FIZRAZEF—HIEEE
~Z-"%—-H-H 1 Januaty 2012 296,836 105,181 15,887 13,131 3,862 484,897
s Additions 1412 13,164 4,980 4,384 34,838 58,778
s Transfer 51,510 21439 = 4346 (77,295) =
e (W3 31) Disposals (Note 31) (29) (1,204) (155) (81) = (1,559)
17 (Wks1) Depreciation (Note 31) (14,869 (15,202) (4,668) (5,539) — (40,274)
ZE-CEYZA=1-R 31 December 2012 334,860 123,288 16,044 16,245 11,405 501,842
RZZF—-ZH+ZA=+—H  At31 December 2012
A Cost 406,131 165,518 35,324 32,250 11,405 650,628
23 Accumulated depreciation 271) (42,300 (19,280)  (16,005) —  (148,780)
IR (E Net book amount 334,860 123,288 16,044 16,249 11,405 501,842
RE-Z=AE Year ended 31 December 2013
FIREF—HIEE
“Z-=5—f-H 1 Januaty 2013 334,860 123,288 16,044 16,245 11,405 501,842
s Additions 2,835 10,685 2,388 11,951 38,669 66,528
el Transfer 32,074 5,947 — 3,376 (41,397) —
(M3 31) Disposals (Note 31) ©) (126) (127) (14) = (276)
1 (ka1 Depreciation (Note 31) (18,556)  (16,114) (4,879) (8,475) — (48,024)
v Sotics iy oy et 31 December 2013 351,204 123,680 13,426 23,083 8,677 520,070
W-F—ZF+"HZ+—H  At31 December 2013
%S Cost 440,766 181,064 35,829 47,284 8,677 713,620
ESiEii Accumulated depreciation (89,562 (57,384 (22403)  (24,201) —  (193,550)
R Net book amount 351,204 123,680 13,426 23,083 8,677 520,070
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6 WX W Eitfi—A%EBE 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP

(%) (Continued)
@ TEMXECRGEEEH G ERNT (@) Depreciation expense has been charged to the consolidated
8 FEBWR statement of comptehensive income as follows:
BET A=+ —HIREE
Year ended 31 December
R -ZE CEFE-TF
2013 2012
AREFLE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
P LA Cost of sales 29,560 25,360
TR 3% Administrative expenses 17,639 14,813
A EE AR Distribution costs 825 101
48,024 40,274
(b) T HRHAE /5 A 5 T i R (BR 3T 21) (b)  The net book amount of buildings pledged as collateral of the
A AT R T E T - Group’s borrowings (Note 21) was as follows:
RTHZA=+—H
As at 31 December
S =4 T4
2013 2012
ANRHFL AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
B Buildings 203,790 227,162

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
ABEEBRERERAF
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—B =S R
For the year ended 31 December 2013

LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP

Land use rights represent the net book amount of prepaid operating lease
payments. All the land use rights of the Group are located in the PRC
and are held on leases from 20 to 50 years.

T RE R B T Movements in land use rights are as follows:

BET-H=+—HILAE

Year ended 31 December

"R -=E CE-TUF

2013 2012

AR¥TFT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

H) B T (L Opening net book amount 75,446 73,107
bl Additions 12,015 4,022
$HE8 B S (PR 31) Amortisation charge (Note 31) (1,727) (1,683)
09 A B T O (L Closing net book amount 85,734 75,446

B S8 B S C R A A T Wi R T 6 B
A JE T8

BEXEE AR N IETER AL
SRR 20) S0 it 9 1 68 P HEE R 3t

Amortisation expense has been charged to “cost of sales” in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The net book amount of land use rights pledged as collateral of the

Group's borrowings (Note 21) as of respective balance sheet dates were as

HaF - follows:
H+ZA=1+—H
As at 31 December
e el A
2013 2012
AR  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
- 3l fef P Land use rights 19,158 19,613

RoE—-CF A= —HEZF
— =+ A=+ —H > REERE
SR A T L R RE RS AH BR L b
RE 7 B T (4 i 2 N B 1,466,000 K
N R 1,347,691 o <55 B AT RERE A A 4
S b I RE R RIS T AT > I R R
AT S A v SRR >
7% AT O A By AR A R M 34 B R o

As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, the Group is still in the process
of renewing certificates for certain land use rights with net book value
amounting to RMB1,466,000 and RMB1,347,691 respectively.
The Group might incur certain obligations in connection with such
application of land use right certificates, while since the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, this obligation

has been disclosed as contingent liabilities in Note 34.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

8 P& — LM 8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP
[k [ Ligis FEy
Goodwill Trademark Software Total
NRETFIr ANRBFTT ARBEFTT AR¥ETIT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000
R-F—-TFE—-J—H At 1 January 2012
%N Cost 7,913 1,001 = 8,914
2T Accumulated amortisation — (362) — (362)
R T Net book amount 7,913 639 = 8,552
BRE-F -4 Year ended 31 December 2012
A=t —HIREE
“E-H—-H—H 1 January 2012 7,913 639 — 8,552
o Additions — 360 216 576
S B 52 (P 3T 31) Amortisation charge (Note 31) — (260) (25) (285)
W FE— A 31 December 2012
+=A=+—H 7,913 739 191 8,843
/P St At 31 December 2012
+=-H=+—H
AR Cost 7,913 1,361 216 9,490
ZETH Accumulated amortisation — (622) (25) (647)
R TR Y Net book amount 7,913 739 191 8,843
BE_Z =4 Year ended 31 December 2013
FZA=Zt—HIRERE
—F—=F—H—H 1 January 2013 7,913 739 191 8,843
o Additions — = 545 545
K B S (P 31) Amortisation charge (Note 31) — (129) (72) (201)
WA 31 December 2013
+=-A=+—H 7,913 610 664 9,187
NR—=4 At 31 December 2013
+ZA=+—H
%S Cost 7,913 1,361 761 10,035
BT Accumulated amortisation — (751) 97) (848)
Hf T (L Net book amount 7,913 610 664 9,187

Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP (Continued)

Amortisation expense has been charged to “administrative expenses” in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The goodwill is monitored by the management at CGU level. The

following is a summary of goodwill allocation for each operating segment:

AT+ A=+—H
Year ended 31 December
e et A

2013 2012

ARETE  ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

W SRR A R A Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring and Food Co., Led. 4,500 4,500
g 5 KT A A Shanghai Royal Winery Co., Ltd. 3,413 3,413
7,913 7,913

MIETBENM > HEC P RE DR
BB EE BT R/AMAE - BlEE
BT IR AT g ) < Y % R B B R0 O
HEE - At AR RS R
o RS ERETEEL > RIEESR
P A 1A = 4 301 B s TR MR o S R
P 5% BBMES 25% - il =4I
Bens hRssErRe - HenEH
BTIHRER 129 WOBLATAERTBLRAG B

RPN BB RE  RF =
A=A — A -

For the purposes of impairment test, goodwill has been allocated to the
smallest individual of CGU identified. The recoverable amount of a CGU
is determined based on value-in-use calculations. The calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budget made by the Directors,
with reference to the prevailing market conditions, covering a period of
three years and assuming sales growth rate of 5% and gross profit margins
of 25%. The cash flows beyond the three years period are assumed to keep
stable. The cash flow projections are discounted at a pre-tax discount rate

of 12% per annum.

Based on management’s assessment, there was no impairment of goodwill
as at 31 December 2013.
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X)W 0 2 v i B B B 1 Y O
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(a)

(b)

(c)

) PAEVE Va8

B& o A

D

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY AND LOAN TO A
SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY

(a)

Investment, at cost

Investment in a subsidiary

BRET - H=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

RS DFT
2013 2012
ARHTE  ARETL
RMB’000  RMB 000
572,312 572,312

WoFE—TFEFHAZF—H A
E—=ME+H=1—H > BB
AR EIE 7 1009 HIRELS o

RoF—=F+ZA=+—H %
2 IR AR M R 35 35 -

RBE-ZF—-=F+"A=+—H
IRAFBE > AR — B — W A FIIN TR
IR i 3 7% A A P 24 S TR 2

I B i 2 ] 4 43t Bk
REF—=F+_A=+—H:
7 B BB A ) B B A A AR - S
B 2R H & )
Al £ 2% 930,000,000 (&) £ A R
182,791,000) > ¥ 885,800,000 (%
5 N R % 698,013,000) Bh Kt A R
418,210,000 (ZE— 4+ A
=+—H : £5£30,000,000) °

HEF B I 28 ) ko
RoE—EF AT ARS
F-= A=t 0 o BERTH
B 24 R SO J MR R AR A A 7
{5 0SB

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

(b)

(©)

As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, investment in subsidiary

represents 100% interests in Praise Sheen.

The particulars and details of principle subsidiaries as at 31

December 2013 are set out in Note 35.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, non-controlling interests in

each individual subsidiary are not material to the Group.

Loan to a subsidiary

As at 31 December 2013, loan to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest
free, denominated in US dollar, HK dollar and RMB amounting to
US$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB182,791,000),
HK$885,800,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB698,013,000)
and RMB418,210,000 respectively (31 December 2012:
US$30,000,000), with no fixed repayment date.

Amount due to subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, amount due to subsidiaries
represents the payable for the expenses paid by subsidiaries on

behalf of the Company.

REEBRZERERAA
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10 WEBAGMPE —ALM 10, INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP

BETAZT—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
“E-CE R

2013 2012

ANRETFL ARETL

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

R—H—H At 1 January 26,625 25,568
JRE A 35 Share of profits 565 1,057
T H=+—H At 31 December 27,190 26,625
R-F—-ZF+ZH=4—H A%H The particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31 December 2013 are
RS AR EAFRNT » TABEL set out as follows, all of which are unlisted and equity method is used to
Al MBCE B I BT Ry EAR RS R AR ¢ account for, are set out as follows:
E37 3 UE YR A

£ Place of business/country P HERE 25 9%
Name of entity of incorporation % of ownership interest

R4 —EF T

2013 2012
T FE T Sl D R /BR8P ABURA ) B 7
Putian Rural Microfinance Co., Ltd. Putian, PRC 24.5% 24.5%
(“Putian Rural”)

EEREENESARAR (T LEEEN ) i b
Shanghai Daoxiangcun Co., Ltd. Shanghai, PRC 39% 39%

(“Shanghai Daoxiangcun”)

7 45 [ 35 Wk A ) SR A T BE i I 4 B R There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the

At associates.

T A 2 B A R Summarised financial information for associates

TP S000R R b v A A G A 2 B R Set out below are the summarised financial information for Putian Rural

W %% R A R AR o and Shanghai Daoxiangcun which are accounted for using the equity
method.

Annual Report 2013 _@
20135 ERE



B 25 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

10 HBEAAMBE-ALH 10

@3

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP (Continued)

(%)
EEABRRE Summarised balance sheet
R LA ot
Putian Rural Shanghai Daoxiangcun Total
SE—=ml % —F BNEsil —X —F BEESSiEN —F T
2013 2012 2013 2012 213 2012
NRETT NREFT ANRETT AREFT ARETT AREFr
RMB'009  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ikl Current
HeRHE%EY Cash and cash equivalents 108 13 363 769 471 782
LB EE (AR Other current assets (excluding cash) 107339 104,849 3,022 1784 110,361 106,633
TEE R Total current assets 107,447 104,862 3,385 2,593 110,832 107,415
HAE A Other current liabilities
(BRI (including trade payables) (949) (538) (1,122) (343) 2,071) (881)
B A Total current liabilities (949) (538) (1,122) (343) 2,071) (881)
FREEEAE Non-current Assets 263 23 385 417 648 640
FEE Net assets 106,761 104,547 2,648 2,627 109,409 107,174

Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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10 BB A MEE — AHEE 10 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP (Continued)

(#)
HEAMBRHE Summarised statement of comprehensive income
S LA it
Putian Rural Shanghai Daoxiangcun Total
v St e St e St S S . Sy S
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
ANREFE ARFTT ARWFX AEWTT ARETE ARETFL
RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
WA Revenue 6,969 5,356 2,533 3,081 9,502 8,037
{78 R Depreciation and amortisation (50 (46) (1) (1) (51) (47)
HEEE A Profit from continuing operations 3,302 4111 23 170 3325 4,281
Fr e R Income tax expense (1,030) — ) 43) (1,032) 43)
BEal Total comprehensive income 2,272 4111 21 127 2,293 4,238
DL E G A B 1 R R R N 2 A The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial
W SR (I IR A 48 B = A 25 AR 1y statements of the associates (and not the Group’s share of those amounts)
AH) > R A 4 B BRI A 2 T e R R adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the Group and the
)22 SLAE R B o associates.
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11. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE - GROUP

BETH=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
=& =4 T4

2013 2012

ABHTE  ARKTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

#*—H—H At 1 January 340,177 320,398
R A 3 ) C B 5 27) Share of profit (Note 27) 30,383 25,451
H AR W 5B A FET B Y Movement of elimination of unrealised profits

B s 2 E) for sales to the joint venture from the Group (1,374) (913)
EE IR B E Dividend declared — (4,759)
R+=A=+—H At 31 December 369,186 340,177

RE-FE—-ZF+ZA=+—H > K%M
R N TE VS E 1 47 HER R
FIEANR - WF

4

Name of entity

Nan Pu

RIERH K AR ERMA > mES
B RAE ) BN oy 2R
B RBE-F—-—H#+-A=+—H
R_F—=HF+ZHA=+—HILMH -
H 3 REHRMALBZEL - TAHHME
T B BB B 5 e A PROR A = v 2
TR DL E R A R A 4 S
i & 8 75 SR I -

AL 6 B N ) A M AR I R Gl
KSR ATE -

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

The joint venture of the Group as at 31 December 2013, which is

unlisted and equity method is used to account for, is set out as follows:

E3/ 3 E YR A E
Place of business/country P HERE 25 9%
of incorporation % of ownership interest
R4 —EF T
2013 2012
1
China 51% 51%

Under articles of association of Nan Pu, the Board of Nan Pu is the
highest authority and decision-making body, which was composed of 7
directors, of which 3 directors were appointed by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. All strategic financial and operation
decision relating to the activities of Nan Pu require the approvals of two
thirds or more of the directors and the Group shared control of Nan Pu

with other joint venture party.

There are no commitments and contingent liabilities related to the

Group's interest in the joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

11. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE - GROUP

(Continued)

Summarised financial information for joint venture

Set out below are the summarised financial information for Nan Pu which

are accounted for using the equity method.

BrEAEERE Summarised balance sheet
RtZH=+—H
As at 31 December
“E - R4
2013 2012
ANRETFL ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
WE Current
Bl BB & EEY Cash and cash equivalents 160,818 112,859
HAb RS & CREEHE) Other current assets (excluding cash) 4,449,498 3,798,154
it Bl 7 Total current assets 4,610,316 3,911,013
Szl A B8 B AT M) Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) (2,136,000)  (1,535,976)
HoAt i & i (55 REATIRRR) Other current liabilities (including trade payables) (1,872,436)  (1,831,575)
HEE A Total current liabilities (4,008,436)  (3,367,551)
T i ) 5 AR Non-current Assets 54,995 52,462
FEE Net assets 656,875 595,924
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

11 #H—-KHBRAAKBE-A 11

M ()
AW R E

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE - GROUP

(Continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

BRET - H=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

S =4 TF 4

2013 2012

AR ARETFT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

A Revenue 5,763,785 5,254,138
e I fi o Depreciation and amortisation 9,687) (7,909)

ibsYies Interest income 3,525 10,778
FEBA % Interest expense (123,733) (93,327)

T 8 i Al Profit from continuing operations 88,492 71,869
FIr A58t B 3 Income tax expense (27,540) (20,103)

s a ke Total comprehensive income 60,952 51,766

LE BB MR AE & 8 28 A I BB R
SE BRI A SR B A U B
iR I R e S e R /N
B BUR I 2 B R -

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial
statements of the joint venture, adjusted for differences in accounting
policies between the Group and the joint venture, and not the Group's

share of those amounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

12 HMEEHMAMAERMTH-A 12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY -
0| GROUP
R+=H=+—H
As at 31 December
= —T——4&
2013 2012

ABBTE  ARKTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

W46 EEA BRI EE Assets as per consolidated balance sheet
2O Ale Iﬁﬁﬁqﬂlmﬂ% Bf5E14) Trade and bill receivables (Note 14) 1,612,452 1,200,524
At JRE MR (B 5 14) Other receivables (Note 14) 52,714 33,272
xﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁé Kﬁ.& 15) Restricted cash (Note 15) 118,287 98,685
Be KB &5EY (M5 1s) Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15) 1,077,535 187,886
2,860,988 1,520,367
Wik a EEABRNAR Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
B 5 Fe HoAb AT I (Bt 20) Trade and other payables (Note 20) 1,039,984 1,316,165
fia (FfF5E 21) Borrowings (Note 21) 1,318,840 996,690
2,358,824 2,312,855
WoE—-"HFE+A=+—HE_F As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, financial assets held by the Group
—ZMETHAZT—H AEE RS represent loans and receivables, and financial liabilities held by the Group
Pl K S MR MR TE T A 4 R i represent the financial liabilities at amortised costs.
45 B 1R 2 4 B AR A IR Y 4 L
E o
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WE-Z—=ZF A=A HILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

13 R —A%EM INVENTORIES — GROUP
Rt+ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
—FE=EE SR -TF
2013 2012
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TR B e b1 R Raw materials and packaging materials 167,558 103,120
TE Work in progress 18,602 13,218
7 B Finished goods 556,498 507,128
742,658 623,466
W A B Less: inventory provision (495) (475)
742,163 622,991

WE - FE =t A=Z+—HIL4E
FBE > RLURE B ST AL C MR AE B
AR #¥20,000 (#E -F— 4+ A
=F—HIEFE: AR®475,000) - i
B LR TE 45 6 A2 T i 3R A T8 A
o

BE_Z—ZFT_H=T—HIF
o e R AL A T B AR K
B NI H3.850,841,000 (H £ —F —
FE+HA=Z+—HIEFE: AR
3,601,033,000) (Fff5k24) o

Inventory provision of RMB20,000 was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: RMB475,000), in accordance with management’s
assessment, which have been included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated

statements of comprehensive income.

The cost of inventory recognised as “cost of sales” amounted to
approximately RMB3,850,841,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: RMB3,601,033,000) respectively (Note 24).

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
ABEEBRERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP

AL
Group
RT=ZA=+—H
As at 31 December
—FE=EE SR8
2013 2012
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 RE N JE K B ZE 4 (a) Trade and bill receivables (a)
— BB =5 — due from third parties 1,068,518 832,633
— RENSBR B (BEGE 330)(0)) — due from related parties (Note 33(c)(i)) 545,121 368,408
1,613,639 1,201,041
W B 5 MECER A (E Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (1,187) (517)
& 5 IE N JE K B 22 4 — AR Trade and bills receivables — net 1,612,452 1,200,524
PRIEAE B A S0 Prepayment for procurement of inventories 237,163 223,020
IRAEBH S Deferred expenses 14,506 3,403
oAt iR Other receivables:
— BT B (BT 33(b)Gii) & — Loans to related parties (Note 33(b)(iii)
WHaE 33(0) & Note 33(c)) - 7,951
— JRE e A MG 5 HAth 2RO (FRFEE 33(0)) — Other amounts due from a related party
(Note 33(c)) 1,885 385
— — Deposit 13,018 -
—HAth ~ Others 38,120 25,073
53,023 33,409
T8+ Al R R T A A Less: provision for impairment of other receivables (309) (137)
52,714 33,272
304,383 259,695
1,916,835 1,460,219
JA A A e A BB A b The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying

T IS AR TE A B T =

value of each class of receivable mentioned above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

14 BRI/ HERSIE — A% 14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP

e (Continued)

) B 5RO B R (@ Trade and bill receivables
A% 4R B R 4 8 LR R O s i The majority of the Group's sales are on open account with credit
T BN TF—HAZ=M/A - terms ranging from 1 month to 3 months. The ageing analysis of
i85 F I S ) REMSGRIH e the trade and bills receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

WO R A BRER AT AN T

R+=ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
TR -ZE CEFE-TF
2013 2012
ANRHFL ARETE
RMB’000 RMB 000

3E ALK Within 3 months 1,532,346 1,123,242
3 & 6 A 3 to 6 months 43,575 60,416
6% 1218 A 6 to 12 months 35,281 10,872
1210 A LAk Over 12 months 2,437 6,511

1,613,639 1,201,041

N B+ H=+—H > As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of RMB81,293,000
S A NRH 81,293,000 1Y & 5 JE were past due but not impaired (31 December 2012:
Wik TE 2 B H I AR (E O =& RMB77,282,000). These relate to a number of independent
—— &+ H=+—H: AR¥ customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The
77,282,000) ° 744 # IH BL# T ageing analysis of these trade receivables was as follows:

A RGBS B F A B - 5%
S8 5 MR IR BRI BT A T
A T+ZA=1+—H
As at 31 December
e e A
2013 2012

ARWTFE  ARWTFL
RMB’000  RMB’000

a3 H H PAA Past due within 3 months 43,575 60,416
w3 EH % 6 il A Past due in 3 months to 6 months 35,281 10,872
w6 fE A L Past due over 6 months 2,437 5,994

81,293 77,282

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
ABEEBRERERAF
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WIT
B gk
Bt

RMB
US$

HKS$
GBP
EUR

B 25 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—B =h == LA

For the year ended 31 December 2013

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - GROUP

(Continued)

(a) Trade and bill receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are

denominated in the following currencies:

Rt+ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
—ER-ZE FE-TF
2013 2012
ANRHFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB 000

1,901,051 1,453,012

3,524 6,504
6,688 447

504 224
5,068 32

1,916,835 1,460,219

REF—=F+_A=+—H:
SR N 89,807,000 1) E 7 &
IO TR X IR B (s = — L AF
A=+ —H ) BRI
B (ML 21(a))

As at 31 December 2013, trade and bill receivables of
RMB89,807,000 (31 December 2012: nil) were pledged for
borrowings (Note 21(a)).
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15 BREeRREFEHMVKLZR 15
WBLA — A B B AR A

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH - GROUP AND COMPANY

) BERBEEFEY (a) Cash and cash equivalents
AAE B AN A A R A S EY The carrying amounts of the Group's and the Company’s cash and
BT (B DA R 51 & e st cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:
ALH
Rt+ZA=+—H
Group
As at 31 December
e e
2013 2012
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
N RMB 709,625 104,277
BT HKS$ 367,182 83,450
XL US$ 728 159
1,077,535 187,886
YN/
RtZA=+—H
Company
As at 31 December
TR SE T
2013 2012
ARl TE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
T HK$ 194,755 —
N RMB 61,733 -
XL US$ 202 159
256,690 159

Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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BRE-Z—=F1=

S e E WK

For the year ended 31 December 2013

15 BRERBE5EWUKRZR 150 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

B4 — AR A RESTRICTED CASH - GROUP AND COMPANY
(%) (Continued)
(b) SZRRHI B 4 (b) Restricted cash
ALEH
#t+ZH=+—H
Group
As at 31 December
e T 4
2013 2012
ANREFLE ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
WATR DR R R & Deposit for bank acceptance notes 86,790 97,621
BH 75 TR B O bR 7 Deposit for issue of letter of credit and
letter of guarantee 31,497 1,064
118,287 98,685
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

16 WA REARNE — A4EE K 16 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM — GROUP
AN AND COMPANY
9
L@pE HEBEE WA AR
Equivalent
Nominal value  nominal value
Number of of ordinary of ordinary Share
ordinary shares shares shares Premium
B ARBFTFIL ARBFFIL
HKS RMB'000 RMB'000
B Authorised:
REF-"HFE—-H—-HR Asat 1 January 2012 and
SE—THEFTHZF—H 31 December 2012 (i) 3,800,000 380,000
RZZF—=F/\J+LH Capital increase
AL on 19 August 2013 () 9,996,200,000 999,620,000
WoZ—ZF+A=+—H Asac 31 December 2013 10,000,000,000  1,000,000,000
% i Issued:
I AR AT A Issue of shares to Zhi Qun (iii) 93,687 9,368.7 7.684 —
i — BB GBI ssue of shares to a financial investor (iv) 6,313 6313 0518 189,534
RoF—T4 Balance at 31 December 2012
A=+ A4k 100,000 10,000 8.202 189,534
REZ-=FAHTEH Capitalisation issue
AT on 17 September 2013 W 1,499,900,000 149,990,000 119,092 (119,092)
A ZE-=HENA TR Issue of ordinary shares on
BT ER 17 September 2013 (vi) 500,000,000 50,000,000 39,700 1,143,561
REZF—=%+H+H Issue of ordinary shares
Bl on 10 October 2013 (vi) 73,612,000 7,361,200 5,834 171,483
WoF—=4F Balance at 31 December 2013
o=t —HER 2,073,612,000 207,361,200 164,634 1,385,486
I Representing:
BEEABE (5 30) Proposed final dividend (Note 30) 85,891
Hits Others 1,299,595
1,385,486

Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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AR (50

(i)

(ii)

(ii1)

ARAHR_FE—-—FENFZ+ L
H ok M Sz 0 d6 vk B A 7
380,000 5 JG > 43 %% 3,800,000 [ f
IR T 5 0.1 ¥ 76 F A A o A R i
WL H A R AT 1 IR A
F Reid Services Limited » 3 it ] H
PR T AR

WoE——FEANA T+ HH > AR
T {1 25 Rl I A
Jie (B2 1) » s =% ——
oSz e WANER oy
Rl A

WEALEEEG R RAER
SR = \H LA R
TPk 0 A A A 2k E A
380,000 JC > 4> £%3,800,000 B
M T (Eo.1 % oC 1
i %1,000,000,000% 7T 4 5
10,000,000,000 & & % T8 {H.0.10 #5
TG 0 A 3 119,996,200,000 % [k
o

WZF—-ZH#HALH ARXA
Fie 45 B T (i 0.1 TT 1] 5 R B AT
93,687 B4 o

RoF——4FRH-+MA > FiE
1) 52 I S SRS e VP 4 e
HE > fE1E 253,356,127 70 » DA%
2 MINE PN /NI R W)
i 3 T R A 1 7 A o

B 25 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—B =h == LA

For the year ended 31 December 2013

16. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM - GROUP
AND COMPANY (Continued)

(i)

(if)

(iif)

The Company was incorporated on 25 August 2011 with an initial
authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000
ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.1 each. On the date of
incorporation, 1 ordinary share was allotted and issued to Reid
Services Limited, which was then transferred to Zhi Qun on the

same day.

On 25 August 2011, the Company subscribed for 1 ordinary share
(being the entire equity interests) in Praise Sheen at par value of
US$1, which was incorporated in BVI on 28 July 2011.

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the Company’s board
of directors and shareholders on 19 August 2013, the authorised
share capital of the Company increased from HK$380,000 divided
into 3,800,000 Shares of HK$0.10 each to HK$1,000,000,000
divided into 10,000,000,000 Shares of HK$0.10 each by the
creation of an additional 9,996,200,000 Shares.

On 7 May 2012, the Company issued 93,687 ordinary shares to
Zhi Qun at the par value of HK$0.1 per share.

On 24 May 2012, Praise Sheen acquired the entire equity interests
in Nan Pu International from the Controlling Shareholder at a
consideration of HK$253,356,127, which was settled by issue
of 99 shares in Praise Sheen to the Company at the direction of

Controlling Shareholder.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

16 JBeAS e JBe A 6 6 — A 4 1 B
AR ()

@3

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

R_F—ZFHRA=+—H>
AN ) B & A cice TW
Investment Limited #5717 6,312 f& 3
> B2 30,000,000 F 75 > H
S N R 189,535,000 TG © #
BB AT IO 18 (BN W 518 JT 346
ARt AR E > S AR
189,534,000 JG ©

REF—ZFNATEH gL
NFEHRE R = E—=4EAH
A I R R FAS A vl A i
18 R A 2 3R 5 5 1 15 1 R 4
#.149,990,000 5 70 (4% 1S A R B
119,092,000 JG ) 78 B A > Wi 4% 7
B T H BT — H o R AN R
72 B AR 2 T IR G B O 5
NE RS A0 I 1 ) 0 25 P %
Je B 47 1,499,900,000 i 74 T {H A
BB RS O B o

REF—ZFNATLEH - AAH
TEH AR RREE PR 3.5 oo ik
£7500,000,000 & A5 & T {E 0.1 #5 G
B A > AT A SR A
£51,575,000,000 ¥ 7G (4 A5 A R
1,250,550,000 JG ) ° A% 72 ] ) A {7
A E AR BTG 387 T AR A
EMR LT

MZF—=41THTH KAH
8 AT iR A P B A R 3.15
i G %5 17 73,612,000 A% 45 A% 1 2
0.1 JC 1 3 % 48 > 5 15 3K H
#1231,878,000% 7T (41 B A R ¥
183,763,000 JG) °

AT TR SR IE AR bR S
%A B N R %1,360,578,000 JC
A ) BB AT AR 3 A R
45,534,000 7 > FBEA Vi 33 m A R
1,315,044,000 BT ©

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

16. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM - GROUP
AND COMPANY (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

On 31 May 2012, the Company issued 6,313 ordinary shares
to a financial investor, CICC TW Investment Limited, at the
consideration of US$$30,000,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB189,535,000. The excess over the par value of RMB518 for
the shares issued was credited to share premium with amount of
approximately RMB189,534,000.

On 17 September 2013, pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution
dated 19 August 2013, conditional on the share premium account
of the Company being credited as a result of the global offering, the
Company capitalised an amount of HK$149,990,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB119,092,000), standing to the credit of its
share premium account by applying such sum to pay up in full
at par a total of 1,499,900,000 shares for allotment and issue to
the persons whose names were on the register of members of the
Company at the close of business on the day immediately preceding
the listing date in proportion to their respective shareholdings in

the Company.

On 17 September 2013, the Company issued 500,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at HK$3.15 per share in
connection with its global offering and raised gross proceeds of
approximately HK$1,575,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,250,550,000). The Company’s shares were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the

same day.

On 10 October 2013, the Company issued 73,612,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at HK$3.15 per share by
exercising over-allotment option, and raised gross proceeds of
approximately HK$231,878,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB183,763,000).

The listing proceeds to the Company, net off listing expenses, were
approximately RMB1,360,578,000 resulting in the increase in
issued share capital of the Company by RMB45,534,000 and the
share premium by RMB1,315,044,000.

REEBRZERERAA
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RE-F—=F A= —HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

17. RETAINED EARNINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY

AREH
BRETZH=+—HIL4ERE
Group
Year ended 31 December
“E-SE R -TUF
2013 2012
ANREFLT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
—HA—HRBEF Retained earnings at 1 January 526,345 442,159
A JE g ] Profit for the year 286,304 220,758
JEB () Dividends (i) (157,000) (114,240)
LA 5 Appropriation to statutory reserve (13,610) (22,332)
T H=1+—HHEEEAF Retained earnings at 31 December 642,039 526,345
AT
RE+TZ-H=1+—HILFEE
Company
Year ended 31 December
R -SE DR
2013 2012
ARHFL ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
—HA—HZ&5HE#H Accumulated losses at 1 January (4,702) —
Gy i Loss for the year (16,867) (4,702)
T+ HA=1+—HEREE Accumulated losses at 31 December (21,569) (4,702)

() AHZZF-FFE+ZA=1+—HTH
s Y B B Ay N BB 114,240,000
TGERZEFE—"FERAANBER ;
MARBE_-_Z——44F+2A4
o el = W18 [0 =N UDE DN
R #157,000,000 CE i =% — =
FERATHER o i REHR
FE—Z4HE+ A=+ HAS 4
JB SR (3% 20) ©

(i)  Dividends amounting to RMB114,240,000 was declared on 9
May 2012 in relation to the profits before 31 December 2010,
and dividends amounting to RMB157,000,000 was declared
on 10 May 2013 in relation to the profits for the year ended 31

December 2011. All dividends have been paid to the Company’s
then shareholders during the year ended 31 December 2013 (Note

20).
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18 JCAb Al — A4 I B A 2 ¥i)

18. OTHER RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY

ALH
Group
HRAME
Bk U
B Rh it ) fak
BARE ) Pre-IPO  ERfiG)  Currency
Capital ~ share award Statutory  translation ELEiy
reserve (1) scheme reserve (ii) reserve Total
ANEWTE  ARETT ARETLE ARKFT ARFTT
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
W=ZF—-_#—-H—H At 1 January 2012 70,416 — 61,845 5,176 137,437
IR Currency translation differences - — - (3,112) (3,112)
BT Appropriation to statutory resetve - — 22332 — 2332
iR F e Acquisition of non-controlling interests 8,388 - - - 8,388
REF—"4 At 31 December 2012
+-H=+-H 78,804 — 84,177 2,064 165,045
SN R Cutrency translation differences — — — (11,927) (11,927)
Rk Appropriation to statutory reserve - - 13,610 - 13,610
HRA R ER Pre-IPO share award scheme
Tty et 81— B A — value of current employee
B THRH B H i) services (iii) — 1,893 — — 1,893
A S At 31 December 2013
FZAZEF—H 78,804 1,893 97,787 (9,863) 168,621

Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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(#)

(@)

(i)

EA Ml E B A A R E A 7
B PR EAEA - BT E
TR WO JF PO AR iR

R o I e A A A5 N R A
R EFEANA » 7E 2R AF BE Y 15 ik
R > AR SR B A v A 1 45 A )
JEL TP S G AR R A T vl I 1 2 )
JERAEAT | — 4 847 - AR
A3 22 V8 3 A Y 109 18 AT E B
Bl o SR AN A R A A
A AR 509 I 7] 4R R A 4
AR BEOA o

B 25 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

18. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

(i)

(if)

Capital reserve represents primarily the paid-in capital of Nan
Pu International, the subsidiary of the Company. The addition to
capital reserve represents gain from acquisition of non-controlling

interests.

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the articles of
association of the companies of the Group, before distributing
the net profit of each year, companies of the Group registered in
the PRC are required to set aside 10% of its statutory net profit
for the year after offsetting any prior year's losses as determined
under relevant PRC accounting standards to the statutory surplus
reserve fund. When the balance of such reserve reaches 50% of each

company's share capital, any further appropriation is optional.

AR H
Company
BHIRAH
ST BERTRA
fit s HE Dt 8
BASE Currency Pre-IPO
Capital  translation share award FE
reserve reserve scheme Total
ANRETE ARETLT AREFL ARETFL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AT — 4 At 31 December 2012
+ZHA=+—H 572,312 (1,000 — 571,312
AN B 2 R Currency translation differences — (19,045) — (19,045)
EERION R g Pre-IPO share award scheme
PB4 5 i - 1 — — 1,893 1,893
NoE—=4E At 31 December 2013
+ZH=+—H 572,312 (20,045) 1,893 554,160
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18 Hbpsfl — A% EAAW  18. OTHER RESERVES —- GROUP AND COMPANY

(%) (Continued)

(111)

B Y BB A A7 8% Bt

BRI —F —=FN\H— HIBR
Rk o AL FAT B W B S
S A 3 2 B 4 T
PERTE 1) o B RS B R AT
MRt B2 R IE S (BFES)
AR e A A R JBCHE > I
OB B DA R B R - A
RE LA B B 1 5 > AP0 R
HALBORNERELEMENE
B E o

AR VR /A B o M PR 1 42
i HL PRI ECAT Bl 0T REEEAT RO 0 4
£537,083,334 B > 1A Al AR
BB AT 1.79% o L IR B
BRI = E N —
HEET o

R TRBR R - AR AL
AL s 16 50 5 BT AT R A SE AR
LR R AR B A B A R
RS SRR IR A A 7] > B T A3 A
R-F-=Z1A+LtH  _F
—TERA LR ZF-HER
At+tH > ZF—R"ENRATLH
B=F—tFENA T LT HEE
JBHE -

BEFZ =+ _H=1T—Hi
91 H AT o] B85 B AR 17 £

(iii)

Pre-IPO share award scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated on 1 August 2013, the Company
adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is to give the employees (including directors) an
opportunity to acquire a personal stake in the Company and
help motivate such employees to optimize their performance
and efficiency, and also to help retain the employees whose
contributions are important to the long-term growth and

profitability of the Group.

Total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is 37,083,334 shares representing approximately 1.79% of the
enlarged issued share capital of the Company. The Pre-IPO share

options were granted on 1 August 2013.

For shares granted to the employees, subject to the meeting of
the criteria of the Company being listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the employee being
still on service at the end of each vesting period, the granted shares
can be vested in five tranches on 17 September 2013, 2014, 2015,
2016 and 2017, respectively.

No options had been exercised up to 31 December 2013.

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
ABEEBRERERAF
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(111)

B Y B A A7 8% Mt
R-FB—=F+_A=+—H #&
YR B 4 i R 3 1 B R
BATHEfEARSQIT -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—B =S R
For the year ended 31 December 2013

18. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

(ii1)  Pre-IPO share award scheme

The Pre-IPO share options outstanding as at 31 December 2013

have the following vesting dates and exercise prices:

FTHERIM
(FEJB) oo i B SR Ay
Exercise prices Outstanding
55 85 H 39 Vesting Date (per share) shares
HKS$
“F-ZFAATEH 17 September 2013 1.8 3,708,334
ZEZ—AESA LR 17 September 2014 1.8 8,312,500
“EF-nAENH LR 17 September 2015 1.8 9,208,333
—E—NENLH+EH 17 September 2016 1.8 10,104,166
S RS & R o | 17 September 2017 1.8 5,750,001
37,083,334

N _E-=FNA—H T
H o ARE UK B B i 0 i HE
FH B 2 A R B A AR
6,799,895 > . 45 H 8 5L A B K A
{ELRER P — R A (AR A o

WEF-=FF+_A=+—
HoIk 4R B > A 4 B AR N R
1,893,000 7C (ff 5E 25) 25 4% 2> 7]
BB A M B S

The fair value of the shares granted under the Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme as at 1 August 2013, the grant date, was
RMB6,799,895, and has been valued by an independent qualified

valuer using Binomial valuation model.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recognised an
expense of RMB1,893,000 (Note 25) in relation to the shares
awarded by the Company to the employees.
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19 BRI RERR A — A% 19. DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT

L GRANTS - GROUP

BETZHA=ZT—HILEE

Year ended 31 December

R -SE F-T4

2013 2012

ANRETL ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R4 Bl A AR AE i A Deferred income on government grants

— B4 — Current portion 2,915 2,990

— FE B — Non-current portion 25,420 27,657

28,335 30,647

BETH=T—HILEE

Year ended 31 December

TR CEFE T

2013 2012

ANBETL AR¥TIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Hw—H—H As at 1 January 30,647 29,388

A A 2 OB A B (GE) Government grants received during the year (Note) — 3,060
S Amortisation 2,312) (1,801)

wr=ZHA=+—H As at 31 December 28,335 30,647
B S RS R B T BN A T Note: These mainly represent government grants received from certain municipal
BURAHRBY - 1 A SR R R - governments of the PRC as an encouragement for the Group's construction of

& i property, plant and equipment.

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
ABEEBRERERAF



20 $5 B S Al HE A sk 0 — AR 4R
L

B 25 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

RE-F—=F A= —HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - GROUP

RT+ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
—FE = CER-TUF
2013 2012
ANR¥ETE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
B 5 e AT 3T A S Trade and bills payables
— =T — due o third parties 713,539 712,202
— A BRI 7 (B 5 33(0)(ih)) — due to related parties (Note 33(c)(iii)) 127,487 359,174
841,026 1,071,376
WIZE ~ B JE T AR 1 e A I Payables for property, plant and equipment 25,814 9,189
JEAS 5 4 B AL € 48 Al Salary and social welfare payables 9,630 7,334
B AT 46 (F83 B L At o T Value-added tax and other taxes payables 50,507 32,905
& F R Advance from customers 62,123 49,492
TEIEE Accrued expenses 22,890 3,434
JRE A% 2 i HE R S Dividend payable to Controlling Shareholder
(B E 17 BRERE 33(0)v) (Note 17 and Note 33(c)(v)) - 100’283
2 I B K (B 33(b) (i) Borrowings from related parties (Note 33(b)(iii)
B MERE 33(c)(v) and Note 33(c)(iv)) — 14,710
O AT R B 4 JEC At Other amounts due to related parties
(BH%E 33(0)(iv)) (Note 33(c)(iv)) 796 5,555
oAb REA 3R Other payables 27,198 21,887
198,958 244,789
1,039,984 1,316,165
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20 9B RIMBES 2 — A% 20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — GROUP (Continued)

B (g0)
FBE S H S0 R b A 2 TE B A The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables based on invoice date
BAIRE AT T is as follows:
R+ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
R -ZE CEFE-TF
2013 2012
ANRHFL ARETE
RMB’000 RMB 000
2fEH A Up to 2 months 581,886 894,765
2MAZE 38 H 2 months to 3 months 103,509 115,336
3MEH E 6 A 3 months to 6 months 149,340 47,604
6fH A £ 14F 6 months to 1 year 4,038 11,126
140 E Over 1 year 2,253 2,545
841,026 1,071,376
74 £ T ¥ B 5 T At R AT 3K L MR 1 The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are
DA 41 & st denominated in the following currencies:
R+=ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
R g CFE-TF
2013 2012
ANRBETL  AREFIL
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AR¥ RMB 1,025,082 1,306,874
Boc EUR 11,061 9,047
HAh ¥ Other currencies 3,841 244

1,039,984 1,316,165

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

fisak — A HE 21. BORROWINGS - GROUP
P+ A=+—H
As at 31 December
=2 =8 —ZE-—F
2013 2012
ANREFL  ARFTFT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
FERH) Non-current
RHARITHE K Long-term bank borrowings 88,100 97,700
b Current
S HERTT 15 2K Short-term bank borrowings 1,210,940 898,390
TR HARAT KA IR B #1843 Current portion of long-term bank borrowings 19,800 600
1,230,740 898,990
5 % R % Total borrowings 1,318,840 996,690
o : Representing:
— A — Unsecured 809,070 544,090
— A LA (a) — Secured (a) 368,220 226,000
— B (b) — Guaranteed (b) 141,550 226,600
1,318,840 996,690

@  AEMETOIT

B AT 514 JE (A4 -

(@)  Analyses of the secured borrowings are as follows:

#t+ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
R -ZE CFE-TF
2013 2012
ANRHEFL ARETE
RMB’000 RMB 000

Borrowings balance secured by:

— T R — Buildings and land use rights
(a6 & 7) (Note 6 and 7) 245,000 226,000
— B 5y REMS A T — Trade and bill receivables
JRE WSS (Bt 5 14) (Note 14) 123,220 —
368,220 226,000

Annual Report 2013 @
20135 ERE



B 25 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—% AT R
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21 Ak — AR om) 21. BORROWINGS — GROUP (Continued)
(b)y AERERE ST (b)  Analyses of the guaranteed borrowings were as follows:
R+ZH=+—H

As at 31 December
RS R
2013 2012
ANRHFLE ARETIE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ML & PR Guaranteed by:

— BT (B 3k 33(d) — Related parties (Note 33(d)) 50,000 165,000
o =Vl — Third parties 91,550 61,600
141,550 226,600

ALLEEFREERIT

The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows:

mt+=ZH=+—H

As at 31 December
oSN
2013 2012
ANREFT ANRETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
1R Within 1 year 1,230,740 898,990
12 24F Between 1 and 2 years 88,100 59,550
2E S Between 2 and 5 years — 38,150
1,318,840 996,690

B AR H T2 B AR A
YT

SRATHE K Bank borrowings

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum at the

balance sheet date were as follows:
mrt+=H=+—H
As at 31 December
BN T TAE
2013 2012

6.24% 6.77%

Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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21 fink — A M ) 21. BORROWINGS — GROUP (Continued)
A G B S AR OR K s MBS The fair values of current borrowings approximate their carrying amounts
AREEBEREEMS o R EK as the impact of discounting is not significant. The carrying amounts and
A& EEAERE IR E RS B fair values of non-current borrowings as at each balance sheet date are as
W - follows:
MR A
R+ZHA=+—H

Carrying amount
As at 31 December
S T4
2013 2012

AR TE  ARWTT
RMB'000  RMB’000

AT R Bank borrowings 88,100 97,700
A RAEfE
mt+=HA=+—H
Fair value

As at 31 December
e A
2013 2012

AR TE  ARWTT
RMB'000  RMB’000

HATHE Bank borrowings 84,646 95,130

S U B K 2 B (2 A Y B 3 4 U The fair values of non-current borrowings are estimated based on

B HR A B2 Bk R % R ROR BOM R 1Y discounted cash flow using the prevailing market rate of interest allocated

R C B4 BRI SR B AR R B to the Group for financial instrument with substantively the same terms

Fri s R Af Gt o and characteristics at the respective balance sheet dates.

A 45 B 1) A R R T (B DA RS RHE - The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are all denominated in
RMB.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

22 BHEBLHEE R — AL 22. DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP
AT+ A=1+—H
As at 31 December
e e A
2013 2012
ANRWFL  ARFTFT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
TEAER EEPE Deferred tax assets:
— #1218 A N E — Deferred tax asset to be recovered
IRIE R IH within 12 months 13,475 10,940
EAER IH £ 15 - Deferred tax liability:
— R 12 M8 AR T R — Deferred tax liability to be
RIEBIH A settled after 12 months 11,871 14,481

AT TS BLAR B AR B I T

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

IRAL PR Deferred income tax assets:
AR
Tax loss R REBEAN HHEH
carried Provision for ~ Unrealised Accrued At
forward  impairment profit expenses Total
ANREFE  AREFE ARFFL  AREFT AREFIE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REZ—"4—H—H At 1 January 2012 1,338 131 6,201 2,255 9,925
TRER & 2T % N Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
A/ (i) statements of comprehensive income (399) 151 203 1,060 1,015
RoF—"HE+"H=Z1+—H At31 December 2012 939 282 6,404 3,315 10,940
A2 HIE RN Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
FEA/ (k) statements of comprehensive income (903) 215 868 2,355 2,535
RZB—ZF+ZH=+—H At31 December 2013 36 497 7,072 5,670 13,475

Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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22 BEBIEE R — AEE ()
AL B L1 -

22. DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities:

A B v

Fif g 2 W)

A JE ]

BA BB
Withholding
tax on
unremitted

earnings of

PRC

subsidiaries

ARWTF T

RMB’000

W _FE——HF—H—H At 1 January 2012 20,494
BRI S A FE AR Payment of withholding tax upon declaration of dividends (6,013)
R-F—-HFFA=Z+—H At 31 December 2012 14,481

RERE T f2 R AR Charged to the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income 4,050
BRI IR S A AT Payment of withholding tax upon declaration of dividends (6,660)
REF-=H#+ZH=+—H At 31 December 2013 11,871

TE A B B0 IR i 7] A 28 48 A A E R B v
MIBEBLE UL T > WA BB IE s 12 e R
RIEFTIFBLEE -

RoF——F+_A=+—HE_%F
— =T A= —H > AL
B H A 5 N R 15,067,000 76 B A
R % 18,651,000 70 () Fi 18 5 18 #fE 52 4
AR B N R 2,486,000 78 S A R
3,078,000 JG F 78 4E iy 15 B0 75 o e Vil
B2 SR E RS R R G B o

RE R PEMEA A ERE
F—ZHZH =+ — H IR AR
11 36 Il 35 O B R v IR oK 2R SE T
& WUk AR o nRIEE E G
i BE-Z-=#£+-"HA=+—H
1 45 B B Jai 1 309 A% 7 B OK T R
SN ST o TR M R T T AR BN R
4,050,000 JG ©

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forward to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future

taxable profits is probable.

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
RMB2,486,000 and RMB3,078,000 in respect of the tax losses
amounting to RMB15,067,000 and RMB18,651,000 as at 31 December
2012 and 2013 respectively. These tax losses from Nan Pu International

have no expiry date.

In accordance with the board resolution of the PRC subsidiaries, all
profits earned by PRC subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2012
were retained in the PRC for future business expansion and accordingly
no withholding tax was provided. In accordance with the board
resolution, 30% of the net profit for the year ended 31 December 2013
will be paid outside of PRC mainland and accordingly withholding tax of
RMB4,050,000 was provided for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Annual Report 2013 @
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
23 JCABWCA — S8 23. OTHER INCOME — NET
BE+H=1—H L4

Year ended 31 December

—F =g R0
2013 2012
AREFTE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
UGB (GE) Government grants (Note) 21,897 7,844
HElA Rental income 1,199 1,295
HAts Others 43 411
23,139 9,550

FE 0 RZAEA B R B AR B T BUN 4 T I Note: These mainly represented government grants received from certain municipal

R0 > A 2 S AR A I 7 T 4 P e
FE T IRR A0 S5 DA% T 4l B AT A A S

governments of the PRC as an encouragement for the Group's contributions to

the development of the local economy, and amortisation of deferred income on

24

(BffaE19) »

33 <E Pidi] b

government grants (Note 19).

24. EXPENSES BY NATURE

BREFT-H=Z+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

R -ZE CF T
2013 2012
ANRETFL AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000
I FE A R B SR i BELE Raw materials used and changes in inventories
M7 B of finished goods and work in progress 3,850,841 3,601,033
18 B AR A BA ST (P 5E 25) Employee benefit expenses (Note 25) 142,928 106,781
I8 B A (M sk 6, 7 & 8) Depreciation and amortisation charges
(Notes 6, 7 and 8) 49,952 42,242
i 5 B A Advertising and promotion costs 59,098 44,725
L B 52 Transportation expenses 28,813 20,763
RETR A Utility costs 21,350 19,325
SN Outsourcing fee 29,133 13,936
iRili:ba Listing expenses 17,024 4511
WA AT B Machinery maintenance expenses 16,500 11,223
ol 28 % B o Taxes and surcharges 13,577 15,941
REFE Operating leases 9,759 7,176
- ¢ Travel expenses 11,194 7,578
ARt Entertainment fee 9,458 9,006
AR Office expenses 6,490 6,836
B 5 T oAb JE AT VE B Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of trade
TE WA R (1)) and other receivables and inventory 861 (103)
HABA 52 Other expenses 18,168 13,365
4,285,146 3,924,338

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

@3
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25. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BE+H=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

“E-SE CEF U

2013 2012

ANREETFL AREFL

RMB’000 RMB’000

TE NS Wages and salaries 116,290 89,494

g ORI A Social security costs 24,745 17,287
TR A 473 58 B ) — Pre-TPO share award scheme-value of

AR 55 (B 5 18) employee services (Note 18) 1,893 —

142,928 106,781

(a)

R
BE-F— "+ A=+—HiE
R AEBEN MM AT S

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director of the Company paid/payable by

the Group for year ended 31 December 2012 are set out as follows:

HERERFHMEIIINT -
oAt Az A

¥ Other st
EHES Name of Director Salary benefits Total
AR ARHETLE ARETL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
AR 2S5 2L i) Mr. Lin Jianhua (i) 370 377
Wik $5 etk Mzr. Yeung Yue Ming 240 242
EFRRSAE ) (ERATE) Mr. Wang Juewei (CEO) (ii) 204 36 240
MREBSELE () Mr. Lam Hang Boris (i) 341 7 348
YR N ) Ms. Au Lai Hang (i) 341 7 348
1,496 59 1,555

Annual Report 2013
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25 f B AR B S (s)

(a) HHME(H) (a)
BE_F—=F1T_H=1—HL

25. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of each director of the Company paid/payable by

R REEE A AL R the Group for year ended 31 December 2013 are set out as follows:
EHEHMEIIWT
HRAR
B
g
il #l
Pre-IPO
HAbRAl share
b fEAL Other award it
EREY Name of Director Salary Bonus  benefits scheme Total
AW TR ARWTE ARMTFL ARWTE ARKTT
RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
UhEE Executive Directors
MR (i) Mr. Lin Jianhua (ii) 449 — 12 — 461
aE v Mr. Yeung Yue Ming 481 — 10 85 576
THRES Mr. Wang Juewei 401 10 61 85 557
MR (i) Mr. Lam Hang Boris (i) 608 — 12 213 833
I By 4 ) Ms. Au Lai Hang (i) 608 — 12 85 705
HorES Non-executive Director
Bl Ms. Chen Shiley Shiyou = = = = —
AN = KT Independent non-executive Directors (i)
Bl 7k Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong (i) 70 — = = 70
TR M:r. Wang Longgen (i) 70 - - - 70
REESE Mt. Cheung Yui Kai Watren (i) 70 — — - 70
2,757 10 107 468 3,342

(®

MRS L B 2+ A =
FHEANARERIERF
NEESE - BlEOREE - R
BERERTERELER
“E-=FRATEREE
ZAE AN w B L AT
Ho

®

Mr. Lam Hang Boris and Ms. Au Lai Hang were appointed
as the directors of the Company since June 2012. Mr. Liu
Chang-Tzong, Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren and Mr. Wang
Longgen were appointed as the Independent Non-executive

Directors since 17 September 2013.

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
ABEEBRERERAF
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(a) BEFEMWE(H)

(i)

(1i1)

% AF T T A B B T
FH B A OO 2
I3 B S5 i) A ) 2 A A i
BAR o i S
S [ A% ) i i (RS % )
el gt O T AR (A M s A AT Y
SEAYIE R > Sl A
AR 73 BL -

WilE %=+ A
Sob H R - SR
17 AT -

BE-Z-—HFtA=+—HK
R EZHEF A=+ —HLF
JE > WRAETE = [ AR 4R RO AT I
> A J O o B A A R B o B
2B 1R A B < AR R 1
Slf 48 5 24l 5 o] A T P

A
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—B =h == LA

For the year ended 31 December 2013

25. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

(a) Directors emoluments (Continued)

(i)  Those directors received emoluments from both the Group
and the related parties or Nan Pu Food part of which are in
relation to their services to the Company. No apportionment
has been made as the directors consider that it is impractical
to apportion the amount between their services to the

Company and their services to the related parties.

(iii) No emolument was paid to non-executive Director for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no directors
received emoluments from the Group as inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. No

directors waived or had agreed to waive any emoluments.

Annual Report 2013 @
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25 f B AR B S (s)

(b) LAHEFHMAL
WE_F—=FTA=1T—HIt
R REMMEREN RS AL
hhgHESE > K4 25070 LS
WK o HE _F—4FE+ A
S H IR AR LB SRS
WA N gL ESR A
BB ANLHMEIT

HAT &
HAtAE A
fEAL

25. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the five individuals whose

emoluments were the highest in the Group are 5 directors, whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. For
the year ended 31 December 2012, the five individuals whose
emoluments were the highest in the Group include four directors,
and emoluments payable to the remaining 1 individual are as

follows:

#wE
+ZH=1+—H
1L 4EE

Year ended

31 December
2012

AR T
RMB 000

Basic salaries 252
Other benefits 56

Bonus 5

313

WEE-"HFTH=E4—HK
SR A= HIEF
JE > ASEE B 4 1) 145 B A
+ AT A: > 1F B AR 3 A
A T S i A 4 B 4% 4 4 < A
Py e 0

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the five highest individuals as
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office.

cbg
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26. FINANCE COSTS — NET

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BETA=ZT—HILER
Year ended 31 December
R =g R
2013 2012
ANRETFL AREFIL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

B A Finance costs

— SRAT M B0 A B BA S (B 3k 31) — Interest expense on bank borrowings (Note 31) 91,334 67,374
WA - Finance income:

— SRATTEAR A B A (FfHEE31) — Interest income on bank deposits (Note 31) (6,324) (5,324)

— H A AU — Other finance income (2,547) (2,331)

(8,871) (7,655)

B A 1 AR Net finance costs 82,463 59,719
BEAG — K A8 vl i R A 27. SHARE OF PROFIT OF A JOINT VENTURE

TR (B 5E 11)

BETZH=T—HIEE
Year ended 31 December
B =g F-T4F
2013 2012
ANREFLE ARFTT
RMB’000 RMB 000

Share of profit (Note 11) 30,383 25,451

G HH R TR 1) A 42 B A T 8 R 1 Movement of elimination of unrealised losses for
REBEEEE) sales from Nan Pu to the Group 76 162
30,459 25,613

Annual Report 2013 @
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28 PifaBib X 28.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BET A=+ —HILAEE
Year ended 31 December

@3

—-z=k %k
2013 2012
ANRETL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB 000
RIVAA P 75 i Current income tax 108,036 72,097
R AE T AL (M5 22) Deferred income tax (Note 22) (2,535) (1,015)
PR30 B 5 Income tax expense 105,501 71,082
G) BAEBERAR (i)  Cayman Islands profits tax
AN T B BN AT ] B S B IS T A The Company is not subject to any taxation of the Cayman Islands
BLBLIE - income tax.
(i) B AR B A SR (i) British Virgin Island profits tax
MR8 0% o A T o B S P i A The subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (under
AR > 1E LB AT o R B A R the BVI Business Companies Acts of the British Virgin Islands) is
7 () R A D Sl A 0 o A4 exempted from payment of British Virgin Islands income tax.
FRER TR -
(i) A FIEH (i) Hong Kong profits tax
F s FIEBL T sl A 1 RE A Uk £ 4% Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5%
16.5% WL R G Ll - on the estimated assessable profits.
(iv) B ENR (iv) PRC Corporate income tax

AR H BB A B SRR > A
s A S 5 B 2 ) B HL i o i
A 37366 T R R S B B 7%
BLEOWCIE BT s 1% > st
KB (TEERBH ) - RE
(GiE NS Eie R E YR
(TEEPTRBLE D) - T A B
H TR BIBLRBIRS— R
25% °

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

The Corporate income tax (“CIT”) is calculated based on
the statutory profit of subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC
in accordance with the PRC tax laws and regulations, after
adjustments on certain income and expense items, which are not
assessable or deductible for income tax purposes. Pursuant to the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “CIT Law”), the tax rate of
CIT is unified at 25% for all types of entities.

REEBRZERERAA
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28 Bt BEB 3 () 28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(v)  HEE AR (v) PRC withholding income tax
HAR AR SE TR B - 7 rh B R B AR Pursuant to the CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax will be levied
S ANE AR 2 1 R AR B EIR AN on the dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
% B JRE B U 109 B9 TE AN BE « 7% 4 investment enterprises established in the Mainland China. The
FAZEZE/NE—H—HHAR requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
WHAR - ZELET+ A =+— earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of
H 2% A A A o n e B e B 5% may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
BN BT AE R A RE R T A B and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
B A FUTT R 59 0 LAR 7 40
BRI o

7% B 8 6 T i 1) 22 4800 A O JEL A R The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical

B A O B B 05 R A 0 R T 2 B R amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to

At B BRI profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

BET A= —HIEEE
Year ended 31 December
“E-SE R -TUF
2013 2012
ANREFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

I T 45 ot T s ) Profit before income tax 402,886 301,427
A TR 5% v 1 8 1 R 9 o R Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable
HEMBLIE to profits in the respective countries 100,147 75,319
[k Adjusted by:
N AT IR TE 1Y B 5E Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 6,733 1,195
B BB Tax holiday and preferential tax treatment (751) (856)
A e R A JE T 1580 8 Y B T A 4R Tax losses for which no deferred income tax
asset was recognised 3,078 2,486
Withholding tax on the profits attributable
[ K o 35 4 50 B A i A A B to the investors outside of Mainland China 4,050 —
JEAG B N R e — KB A F Share of post-tax profits of associates
14 o815 i ) and a joint venture (7,756) (7,062)
REY Income tax expenses 105,501 71,082
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29 HIRERH
(@) FEAR

29. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

BETH=1+—HIEE
Year ended 31 December

2= —T——&

2013 2012
AN AR R 5 AT A AL Net profit attributable to the equity
(NER®TIT) holders of Company (RMB’ 000) 286,304 220,758
OB T i e IR R A 8 A Y Weighted average number of ordinary shares
TIRET- 298 (B in issue for basic earnings per share (thousands) 1,661,945 1,499,997
TIBEEA T (N5 Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 17 15

BB AN I HAN A R
NSRRI E =T — =R
R AIREE
L2 384735 48 i 0 i - 1 Bt
BoBMEBRE T -ZHK %
—ZEFZA=—HIEEERE
B4 7 0 200 PR ) TS R > AR
AR ZF—=HJLA+LH ki
I35 08 Pt 47 T 6 RS 0 R AR T A T
T2 B % 19 1,499,900,000 B % £ (Bt
A 16) B B E R —E— A
—H—H#7 -

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit
attributable to the Company’s equity holders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares deemed to be in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. In determining
the weighted average number of ordinary shares deemed to be in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the
1,499,900,000 shares issued and allotted through capitalisation
of the share premium account of the Company upon Listing on 17
September 2013 (Note 16) have been regarded as if these shares

were in issue since 1 January 2012.

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
ABEEBRERERAF
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29. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted

BE12H31 HILEE

Year ended 31 December

R R0
2013 2012

A m R NEARALF] Net profits attributable to the equity holders
(AR¥F0) of the Company (RMB’ 000) 286,304 220,758

B AT 0 R IR A A Y Weighted average number of ordinary shares
T2 8 () in issue for basic earnings per share (thousands) 1,661,945 1,499,997
A8 B8 i FBOHEE (T Adjusted for share options (thousands) 7,162 —

OB T A IR R Weighted average number of ordinary shares
TIRE ST 24 3 (F %) for diluted earnings per share (thousands) 1,669,107 1,499,997
AR (NRE ) Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 17 15

i B IS A BB T A1 7 A R T
A B AR RABE ATl
B BT BT o AR R
R YR 3 A AR ALK -
EFRRE - ARIERAT (IR TR Y
AR EWEE > EERARE
e (8 52 J AR 2 W) BLAR H P 339 4F B
iE) AT REA R B - %L
T AF R BEE - SRS
A {6 T R . AT A9 M A B B A e b

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company’s

dilutive potential ordinary shares comprised share options. For

the share options, a calculation is done to determine the number

of shares that could have been acquired at fair value (determined

as the average annual market share price of the Company’s shares)

based on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached

to outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated as

above is compared with the number of shares that would have been

issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

Annual Report 2013
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EHRA YIRS R .2 A

30. DIVIDENDS

BEFA=ZT—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
SR EE R

2013 2012

ANREFFL ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

Proposed final dividend of HK5.2 cents

per ordinary share 85,891 —

T R R A R TR R M R Dividend to Controlling Shareholder before
(PisE17) listing (Note 17) 157,000 114,240
242,891 114,240

RoZ—I4E=H - +HH > EEad
REE_F =+ A=Zt+—HILF
FE > 45 5 B3 4 5.2 9 1l R K
B FE51108,718,909 5 ot (4 45 8 A R
85,891,200 7C) o BLHEE IR 19 K A
ToARAEA W H K B 34T 1 B 4 48 8
RHE o M PR3 YR 2 5 A 4 ) 4R B MR
R 58 Eh PR o A B R R R R
IEHE A B, o

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

On 25 March 2014, the Board recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK5.2 cents per ordinary share, totalling HK$108,718,909
(equivalent to RMB85,891,200) for the year ended 31 December 2013.
The proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2013 is calculated based on the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of this report. The payment of the proposed final dividend is to
be approved by the shareholders at the Company’s forthcoming annual
general meeting. The financial statements do not reflect this dividend

payable.

REEBRZERERAA
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31. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
BETZH=ZT—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
R R0
2013 2012
ANRBEFLT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
W% B A5 B8 7 s Profit before income tax 402,886 301,427
R Adjustments for:
— 9785 (M5t o) — Depreciation (Note 6) 48,024 40,274
—JHE8H (FffsE 7 & 8) — Amortisation (Notes 7 and 8) 1,928 1,968
— MBI - W KB — (Gains)/losses on disposal of property,
(fezz) /8 plant and equipment 50 (34)
— B A A R B e 4 — Losses on dissolution of a subsidiary — 2,454
—Fl B A (B 5 26) — Interest income (Note 26) (6,324) (5,324)
— ) 5 B 3 (Bt 3% 26) — Interest expense (Note 26) 91,334 67,374
— I E AR R— R A E AR — Share of profit of associates
11 i 1 and a joint venture (30,948) (26,508)
— MBS IE M A B B — Provision for/(reversal of) impairment
(E[E]) (BfF5E 24) of receivables and inventory (Note 24) 861 (103)
BEE R Change in working capital:
— &8 — Increase in inventories (119,192) (177,145)
— % Gy T H A MR i TR B8 T — Increase in trade and other receivables (494,844) (253,280)
— B 5y J E A A} 3 — Decrease in trade and other payables (156,942) (46,190)
RGN B B Uik A Cash outflow from operating activities (263,167) (95,087)

REEaBERERN > HEWE - KFE
B B P R B4

HR T (L (Wif5E 6)

In the consolidated cash flow statements, proceeds from disposal of

property, plant and equipment comprise:

BETZAZT—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
=& =4S TF T4

2013 2012

ARBTE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Net book amount (Note 6) 276 1,559

HEWZE - BB R fiilss, (B5#H)  Gains/(losses) on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (50) 34

Y - BR5T K B AR

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment 226 1,593

Annual Report 2013 @
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32 il 32. COMMITMENTS
(a) BEAAKGH (@ Capital commitments
NEEEAMBEHEFTLHEHMEKE Capital expenditure contracted for at each balance sheet date but
AR EAR B ST not yet incurred is as follows:
RTZA=+—H
As at 31 December
R -=E DR
2013 2012
ANRHFL  ARETE
RMB’000 RMB 000
THbAE FIRE 3 > R Ml Land use right, property, plant and equipment 55,639 46,538
(b) REME A — AREHNE (b) Operating lease commitments — the Group’s entities as
LAY PN lessee
ASAE BARYE A S L o e A The Group lease buildings under non-cancellable lease agreements.
M o MR R AN vl i AR e Al The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments under
B A G H R AR B I A S R E A AR these non-cancellable operating leases were as follows:
W -
BETZAZT—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
=l s
2013 2012
ANRHEFL ARETE
RMB’000 RMB 000
R 1 AR No later than 1 year 5,948 9,136
TR FEAHEE S 4F Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 8,775 8,487

14,723 17,623

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
ABEEBRERERAF
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RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party, has joint control over the party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operation decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are

subject to common control.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the following is a summary
of the significant transactions carried out between the Group and its
related parties in the ordinary course of business during the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2013, and balances arising from related party
transactions as at 31 December 2012 and 2013.

(a) Name and relationship with related parties
(i)  Controlling Shareholder
Mer. Lin Jianhua

(ii) Wife and children of Mr. Lin Jianhua
Ms. Yan Yuzheng, Mr. Lin Qi, Ms. Lin Liping

(iii) Key management personnel

Mr. Wang Juewei

(iv)  Associates of the Group

Putian Rural, Shanghai Daoxiang Cun

(v)  Joint venture of the Group

Nan Pu

(vi) Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder

Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd.
Nan Pu (Hong Kong) Investments Limited

(vii) Controlled by the wife of Mr. Lin Jianhua
Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd.
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(viii) HEAREAFERBE D
O s PNEECT
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33. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Name and relationship with related parties (Continued)

(viii) Controlled by the Key management personnel with

(ix)

w3k

significant influence to the Group

Shanghai Futian Business Consulting & Management
Co., Ltd. **
Jingongquan Mineral Water Co., Ltd. **

Controlled by non-controlling shareholder, that has
the significant influence to the Group, of the Group’s

subsidiary

Ningbo Tiansheng Huaye Trading Co., Ltd. *

These companies are no longer related parties of the Group as at 31
December 2012.
These companies are no longer related parties of the Group as at 31

December 2013.

The following transactions were carried out with

related parties:

@)

Sales of goods and services

BRETH=1+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 December

R -ZE CEFE-TF
2013 2012
ANRHEFL ARETE
RMB’000 RMB 000
ST Sales of goods:

— —NanPu 1,393,631 1,336,306
— bW R ERARAR - Shanghai Tianpu Food Co. Ltd. 353 300
1,393,984 1,336,606

TR AR ok R B Provision of warehousing services
— —NanPu 508 879
— FERHEMAERAR - Shanghai Tianpu Food Co. Ltd. 279 —
787 879

Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—B =h == LA

For the year ended 31 December 2013

33. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) The following transactions were carried out with

related parties: (Continued)

(i)  Purchases of goods and services

BETZHAZ+—HIE4EE
Year ended 31 December

—ER-=EE CF-TF

2013

2012

ARETE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

A Purchase of goods
— R — NanPu 683,069 1,038,981
— L RHEMARAR - Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Led. 41,376 22,562
— R — Daoxiang Cun 8 —
—&EREWAKERAR - Jingongquan Mineral Water Co., Led. — 1,567
724,453 1,063,110
2 it B IR Receipts of warehousing and logistics services:
— MR EE LA — Mr. Lin Jianhua 720 720
A SNE A — Ningbo Tiansheng Huaye
HRAH Trading Co., Ltd. — 447
— P RBEAFABRAR - Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Led. 602 574
1,322 1,741

bt BB O AT H
5 V9% 5T #0757 B AR R B
B IEST -

The above sale and purchase transactions with related parties
are carried out based on mutually agreed prices between

respective parties.
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33. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b)
related parties: (Continued)

(ii1)

Treasury transactions with related parties

The following transactions were carried out with

BETZH=Z+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

R -ZE R4
2013 2012
ANBETL AR¥TIT
RMB’000 RMB 000
BT BT EEK Loans to related parties:
R—HA—H At 1 January 7,951 59,142
i Granted
— B REEMAMAT - Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Led. — 175
— ERHEMSARAR - Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd. — 3,500
— 3,675
Wi [e] Collection
— M — NanPu — (3,179)
— FEREAMARAR - Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Led. (7,951) (22,724)
I TREE — Ningbo Tiansheng
AR A Huaye Trading Co., Ltd. — (11,340)
— bR A2 — Shanghai Futian Business Consulting &
A RA T Management Co., Led. — (3)
— FERFSEAE — Mr. Wang Juewei — (10,590)
— L RHEMAERAR - Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Led. — (7,030)
(7,951) (54,866)
wt—HA=+—H At 31 December — 7,951

Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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RE-F—=F A= —HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

33. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) The following transactions were carried out with

related parties: (Continued)

(iii) Treasury transactions with related parties (Continued)

BETZHAZ+—HIE4EE
Year ended 31 December

TR g CEFE T
2013 2012
ARHEFLE ARETE
RMB’000 RMB 000
RE R ey A5 A BE K Borrowings from related parties:
R—H—H At 1 January 14,710 112,879
Bk Additions
— T M3 — Putian Rural — 10,000
— 10,000
fi= Repayment
— MRETESLAE — Mr. Lin Jianhua — (80,714)
— F —NanPu — (4,478)
— T H U — Putian Rural (14,710) (19,590)
— I (i) B8 — Nan Pu (Hong Kong)
ARAF Investments Limited — (686)
— iR RS — Shanghai Futian Business Consulting &
R Management Co., Ltd. — (2,701)
(14,710) (108,169)
wrZH=+—H At 31 December

— 14,710
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33 BB RS 4)

33. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) B4R (c) Balances with related parties
REZH=+—H
As at 31 December
“E=E CF -
2013 2012
ANRBETL AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Q) MEAHRRK : (1) Trade receivables:
— R — NanPu 545,121 368,399
— FBRRMSARAR — Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd. — 9
545,121 368,408
(i) AL R (i1) Loans and other receivables:
— — NanPu 1,885 385
— B RERMARA R — Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd. — 7,951
1,885 8,336
(i) FEATIR K - (iii) Trade payables:
— F i — NanPu 125,665 348,087
— bigREER — Shanghai Daoxiang Cun 10 —
— BRI A A A — Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd. 1,812 11,087
127,487 359,174
(iv) oAt A BRI 7 R (iv) Other payables to related parties:
— MREEESE A — Mr. Lin Jianhua — 2,033
— R —NanPu 796 293
— 7 3R — Putian Rural — 14,710
— bR A SRk A B — Shanghai Futian Business Consulting &
HIRAT Management Co., Ltd. — 3,086
— BB RERMHARAR — Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd. — 143
796 20,265
) MBS (v) Dividend payable:
— Mg et — Mr. Lin Jianhua = 100,283

A o B B 9 A T B
B 7 B B o H A B £5F B B 7 KR
TR A BB B i K o

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

Other receivables from related parties mainly represented the loans
to the related parties. Other payables to related parties mainly

represented for the borrowing from the related parties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE—B =S R
For the year ended 31 December 2013

33. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

R 0B 98 R F £ 3K (d) Borrowings guaranteed by related parties
REZH=+—H
As at 31 December
R CER—T4
2013 2012
ANRBEFL  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Eil KRR A RRA A Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd. — 95,000
RSt~ & SRE R Ms. Yan Yuzhen, Mr. Lin Qi and
MM L+ Ms. Lin Liping 50,000 70,000
50,000 165,000
I B i 5k A L 4 £ (e) Provision of guarantee to related party’s borrowings
RT+ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
R DR
2013 2012
ANRBEFLT ARWETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
P Nan Pu — 50,000
FEAFHA B () Key management compensation

FEREMANBGOFEESE T RFE
WAT) R E - AR B R
E AT B AT 2 AT B A5 51
AT

T& B HARE & A5 A

Key management includes Directors (executive and non-executive)
and senior management. The compensation paid or payable to key

management for employee services is shown below:

#+ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
RS R -TUE
2013 2012
ANREFL AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

Salaries and other employee benefits 3,567 2,369
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34 BB AB 34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
W oE T HER EFE—-=4F+_"H As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, the Group is still in the process
=+ —H > A E LA AR A of renewing certificates for certain land use rights with net book value
2Bl A N B 1 466,000 T K N B amounting to RMB1,466,000 and RMB1,347,691 respectively.
1,347,691 TG [ 25 T 4 fff i B3 o A 4R The Group might incur certain obligations in connection with such
4] 7] B A R G a2 2 (e R R R A application of land use right certificates, while since the amount of the
FEAL > 1 R % E AT N &R T obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, no provision
W SEHNER B o WO R AR A RS R was made in the consolidated combined financial statements.
T i Hg A -
35 RERHEA i 35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
N _E—-ER _FE—-=HFE+_H Particulars of the principal subsidiaries comprising the Group as at 31
=+—H > AL R 5B A E December 2012 and 2013 are as follows:
BT :
Fris BB T 4 1k
-3z 3=
TZAZT=H  +ZAZ-H
BF GALIEN Effective Effective
FiALA (Fx) interests interests
B% /5 Registered held % held %
A4 Country/Place capital/paid up 31 December 31 December  FEHH
Company name of incorporation (1000) 2013 2012 Principal activities/operation
HEHEA -
Directly Owned:

DR 2 ] — A B

Subsidiaries - incorporated in

British Virgin Island
FEHRA R 100 100 fEEBARRERERR
Praise Sheen Limited BVI - Investment holding in BVI
A -
Indirectly Owned:

WRAT-RERER

Subsidiaies - incorporated in Hong Kong

FiEmRARARAR Fit 68,000#TC 100 100 EREDHRMEHAL SR
Nan Pu International Limited HK HK$68,000 Distribution of food and beverages
(Hong Kong Company) and investment in Hong Kong

@! Tenwow International Holdings Limited
ABEEBRERERAF
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35 BB E A [ e o)

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Bk SR B4R T 23 b
=&== e S
L e IR e
CHGERE A Effective Effective
Al WA (F72) interests interests
H%/ 5 Registered held % held %
A4 Country/Place capital/paid up 31 December 31 December  FEHH
Company name of incorporation (1000) 2013 2012 Principal activities/operation
AR
Subsidiaries ~ established in the PRC:
LEREER (EHHRAR i 500,000 4 100 100 B R RO SRR
Shanghai Tenwow Foods PRC HK$500,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
(Group) Co., Led. food and beverages in PRC
LR EaERRARAR " B8 25,000 72 65.65 65.65  TEERBE R R M BAH
Shanghai Dingshang Packing Material PRC RMB25,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
Co., Led. food and beverages in PRC
R R A RA HE ARHE 20007 52.5 525 fERERE R RN
Shanghai Tenwow Paper Products PRC RMB2,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
Co,, Led. food and beverages in PRC
IR A A A Gl NEH 6,000 72 100 100 fEPREE I
Shenzhen Nanpu Industrial Co., Led. PRC RMB6,000 Trading of food and beverages in PRC
RETRERARELART I ARH 76,0007 100 100 EREERAREKH
Wuhan Nan Pu Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB76,000 Trading of food and beverages in PRC
HERERBEEARAA Gl ARH 1,000 9 95 TR R o LR
Shanghai Tenwow Food Production PRC RMB1,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
Co., Led. food and beverages in PRC
L RRARRHRAT Gl B 13,000 7T 635 655  TEHRRERIMHA RN
Shanghai Mornflake Food Co., Led. PRC RMB13,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC
KB (5t ) R R HH NBH30,000 T 100 100 EFRMERDHAMERH
Tenwow (Inner Mongolia) Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB30,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC
K () &M ARAT Gl R 100,000 78 100 100 e RO A K
Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB100,000 Manufacturing and distribution of

food and beverages in PRC
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35  EEBIE A [ i EEE o)

e

Company name
LEERMBARAR
Shanghai Royal Winety Co., Led.

RREAERAEHAARAT

Fujian Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd.

LEREWERRAA

Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and
Spirits Co., Led.

LR RRARAR

Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring and
Food Co., Ltd.

EBIRSERAR

Shanghai Chuanxiang Food Factory

LRERWERRRA

Shanghai Royal Wines and Spirits Co., Led.
BEXEMRARAR

Fujian Tiansheng Logistics Co., Ltd.

ERAREERRARAR
Ningbo Contemporary Trading Co., Ltd.
B PR R 2 )
Hangzhou Lin's Wines and Spirits Co., Led.
HRERREARAR
Shanghai Huasheng Wines and

Spitits Co., Led.

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

Statements

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
B mEA
A AI (F7c)
B%/ % Registered
Country/Place capital/paid up
of incorporation (1000)
i AREH9,6007C
PRC RMBY,600
il AE#15,0007C
PRC RMBI5,000
i N
PRC 130,000 7
RMB130,000
il AE#135078
PRC RMBL,350
il AE#8007C
PRC RMBS00
i AEH10,000 78
PRC RMB10,000
il NEHS 0007
PRC RMBS,000
i AR 25,000 7
PRC RMB25,000
il AE#15,0007C
PRC RMB15,000
i N
PRC 120,0007C
RMB120,000

FiFr B MR RESS T 23 b
o et ot
FZAZ+—0  +ZAZ+—H
Effective Effective
interests interests
held % held %
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
51 51
100 100
100 100
75 7
75 7
100 100
100 100
100 100
60 60
100 100

FEEH

Principal activities/operation
TE SR Sy i R BB
Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

TE s o 8 2 S AR
Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

TEsh B F A A SRR
Trading of food and beverages in PRC

TE SR Sy 8 2 SRR
Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC

TEsh BB B R SR
Manufacturing and distribution of

food and beverages in PRC
L

Trading of food and beverages in PRC
TEsh B B R R
Warehousing and logistics
distribution services in PRC
L

Trading of food and beverages in PRC
TEh B R R dh B AR

Trading of food and beverages in PRC
EPREEA R AN

Trading of food and beverages in PRC

‘!l}g
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35 EEHHE Al m ) 35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
Bk BV RG24 1
e — ey —
—F= —F-T
TIAZF=0 +ZAEt-H
CHGHEA Effective Effective
Ak (Fx) interests interests
B%/ % Registered held % held %
A4 Country/Place capitallpaidup 31 December 31 December ~ FEHEH
Company name of incorporation (1000) 2013 2012 Principal activities/operation
HER EREMHARAT Gl B #5000 7T 725 725 EHRRERAMHAREEH
Putian Dingshang Packing Material Co., Ld. ~ PRC RMBS,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC
KB (RE) & iARAT Gl NI 100 100 FEAB R R AR
Tenwow (Wuhan) Food Co., Ltd. PRC 220,000 7 Manufacturing and distribution of
RMB220,000 food and beverages in PRC
HERBRARRARAA H AR 33,600 78 100 100 7EF BB B 6 £ A AR
Shanghai Tenwow Drinks Co., Led. PRC RMB33,600 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC
RERE RN ARAT Gl B 15,000 78 100 100 fEAE B RO B A S AR
Wuhan Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd. PRC RMB15,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC
ERTRRRMARA Gl NBHs 00078 100 100 fESHBRES B b Ah SLAH
Tenwow (Chongging) Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMBS,000 Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC
EhmEERSARRAEAT it N8 50078 TErv B R E R SR
Xiangyang Nan Pu Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB500 100 100 Trading of food and beverages in PRC
KU () & A A HH 31,800 %7 TE BB B R SRR
Tenwow (Chengdu) Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$31,800 100 —  Manufacturing and distribution of
food and beverages in PRC
BEXBHEARAR it L 100 —  ETEEERDENH
Fujian Tenwow Shiye Co., Led. PRC 200,000 7C Trading of food and beverages in PRC
RMB200,000
KB (KR R ARAR P AEH10,0007C TR B B R SR
Tenwow (Tianjin) Food Co., Led. PRC RMB10,000 100 —  Manufacturing and distribution of

food and beverages in PRC

Annual Report 2013 @
20135 ERE



B 25 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

WE-Z—=ZF A=A HILEE
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35  EEBIE A [ i EEE o)

i 2 7 B SO SR M A A > DA b
BB RE £ K% B9 o B 2 R RS S04 R A
B 36 LS % ] o SO AR S LR R

36 WEER
N_F—-=F L _F—_F+_H
=1—H > REEE LT HBEER

35.

36.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
The English names of the PRC companies referred to above in this Note
represent management's best efforts in translating the Chinese names of

those companies as no English names have been registered or available.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

The Group had the following financial guarantee as at 31 December 2013
and 2012:

R+ZH=+—H
As at 31 December
RS R
2013 2012
ARHEFL ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
I B 7 Guarantee in respect of bank borrowings
SRAT B LR (B3 33(e) for related parties (Note 33(e)) — 50,000
— 50,000

A8 ) REAG b =05 e BRI 5 i B
AR DL R A A 4 T AR AR AT A Y T
AEPE /D > RIS 488 7 A B S AR TR
SR RAT A o

Tenwow International Holdings Limited

The Company assessed that the financial position of aforementioned third
parties and related parties are in good health and the possibility for the
Group to repay the bank borrowings is remote, therefore no provision has

been made in the consolidated financial statements for the guarantees.
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